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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

In2021.Thailand and the worldwide still face economic and social problems, mainly due
to the spread of the COVID-19 virus that have many infected and dead. In addition, the real
estatemarketin 2021 issluggishwith slow down demandand the construction sector affected
by the outbreak. While the government has announced a temporary relaxation of LTV
measures for loan agreements signed from 20 October 2021 to December 31, 2022, that is
expected to have a positive effect to customers to buy and transfer ownership of more

housings, especially inthe comingyear 2022.

The company is still determined to grow continuously. In 2021, total sales of
“InterContinental Residences Hua Hin” project that launchedin February 2020 was able to sell
up to 80% atthe end of 2021, while the average cash received from customers could collect to
20%ofthesalesvalue,whichwasconsideredasuccessintermsofsales.Currently,thecompany
and employees are preparing for the transfer of ownership that will startin 2022, which will be

agreatyear of growth.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management of Proud Real Estate Public
Company Limited, we would like to thank our executives, and employees for their
determinationanddedicationindiligently performingtheirrolesand duties. We alsowouldlike
to thank our supporters and patrons namely our shareholders, customers, financial
institutions, business counterparties, and stakeholders for always providing support .We,
hereby, would like to assure you of the Company’s commitment to perform our duties under
good corporate governancefinancial disciplineand continuous growth tocreate the bestvalue

for customersand shareholdersinthelongrungrowth.

(Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut) (Mr.Pumipat Sinacharoen)

Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders,

In 2021, The Executive Committee consists of 4 members as follows:

1. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Executive Director
3. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Executive Director
4. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Executive Director

In 2021, there were 22 Executive Committee meetings. The following are details of

meeting attendance of each Executive Committee member:

1. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm Attended 19 meetings
2. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Attended 21 meetings
3. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Attended 22 meetings
4. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Attended 22 meetings

In 2021, the Executive Committee has considered and followed up on the progress of

various important projects to achieve success by being aware of the condition of the world

economyandthecountry'seconomyaffected bytheepidemicofthecoronavirusdisease 2019

(COVID-19) that as a result, the real estate business slowed down. In 2021, the Executive

Committee's key performance can be summarized as follows:

1.

Determine policies, goals, strategies, action plans, annual budget of 2021 and various
administrative powers of the Company to propose to the Board of Directors for
approval. In 2021, the Executive Committee presented the Board of Directors to
consider and approve the Company's real estate development projects, both high-rise
and low-rise projects. The projects consist of InterContinental Residences Hua Hin,
VEHHA Hua Hin, VI Ari and Luxury Condominium: Convent.

. To control and supervise the business operations of the Group in accordance with the

policies, goals, strategies, operating plans and annual budgets approved by the Board
of Directors with efficiency and in accordance with the changing business conditions
during each period and including consulting and management advice to senior

management,

. Board of Directors has assigned the Executive Committee to help monitor the progress

of major construction projects and consider the investment criteria to be clear in the
Company's investment budget as a whole, as well as to monitor the progress of
important investment projects to ensure that the investment is in accordance with the
goals.

The Executive Committee has performedits duties asassigned by the Board of Directors

and the Company’s Charter. The meeting emphasizes on questioning, independent opinions

and recommendations, and performing duties with prudence, upholding the interests of the

Companyandshareholdersareimportant. They performed complyingwith legal requirements

andrelatedregulationsundertheprinciplesof good governanceforbusinessoperationsstable

and sustainable.

OO

Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop

Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of 3 members as follows:

1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut Chairman
2. Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul Member
3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Member

In 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee performed its duties in full

compliance with its Charter. The Committee held a total of 1 meeting to deliberate over various

matters before further submission thereof to the Board of Directors for consideration and

approval. The highlights of the Committee’s work were as follows:

1.

To nominate qualified candidates according to criteria and processes specified by
supervisory bodies to replace the directors retiring by rotation or vacant positions. The
board skills matrix was used as a reference in terms of qualifications, skills and
experiences of directors. The Committee also nominated and proposed subcommittee
member candidates to the Board of Directors.

. To consider payments of remuneration to the directors before proposing the matter to the

shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval. The rates of remuneration were
compared with those as per the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)’s Thai
Directors Compensation Survey and those offered by similar businesses in order to
motivate and retain quality directors.

. To determine corporate key performance indicators (KPIs) for 2021 and 2022, monitor

and evaluate performances against the corporate KPIs, and propose recommendations
and improvement guidelines for operational efficiency in order to achieve specific
objectives and goals and align with the corporate vision and missions for present to the
Board approval.

4. To set out and submit the President and CEO’s KPIs to the Board of Directors for
consideration and approval; to monitor and report his performance against the KPIs to
the Board for consideration and approval; and to use such information for wage,
compensation, and bonus payments.

5. To consider and screen payment criteria for wages, compensation, and bonuses of the
Group’s employees to be appropriate, aligned with the operating results, and
competitive against similar businesses so as to foster a target-oriented work
environment

6. To review the Committee’s Charter to ensure that it was up-to-date and in line with the
current situation

The Committee performed its duties by taking into consideration the interests of the
Company and its stakeholders and the corporate performance while ensuring that the
Company recruited a high caliber workforce with appropriate and fair rates of payments as
incentives for achievement of business goals as specified by the Board of Directors and for

sustainable business growth.

Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Vision

“Transcend the expected”

Weaspiretocraft'livingsolutions’thataredisruptivelyunique, yetauthentictothesurroundings,
so that we can simultaneously surpass the norm of ‘living’ and enrich the society at large while

commemorating the beauty of nature and local heritage.

Mission

“Challenge the boundary of ‘living’”

Our projects must be more than just a house or a home; but ‘living solutions’ that would better
people’s lives and the society. With a strong determination to challenge the extent of people’s
imaginationandthe boundary of ‘living’, all of Proud Real Estate’s projects aim to establish new
standards of how people can livethrough flawless delivery, limit pushing conceptand harmony

with the surroundings.



Corporate Strategy

In2022, Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited focus on run business under
the concept of “Morethanjustliving “ key success factors for strategies as

follows:

1. Diversify to Low rise

2. Moving to Bangkok

History

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limitedis a property developerin Thailand Whichis listed

onthe Market for Alternative Investment (mai) under the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

Our company has significantly progressed over a period of time as followed.

Year1989:

Year2002:

Year 2003:

Year 2004:

Year 2008:

Year2019:

Established on March 30th,1989 under the name of PhasuPhuth company

limited as a contractor company for government and private sectors

November 4th, 2002 the company was converted into a public limited

November 21st, 2003 we changed the company’s name to Focus Engineering

and Construction Public Company Limited
October 5th, 2004 listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand

November 19th, 2008 we changed the company’s nameto

Focus Developmentand Construction Public Company Limited

May 13rd, 2019 we took over “FOCUS” ,increased share capital and changed

the Company’s nameto Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited



Changes in the shareholding structure

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited took over Focus Development and Construction
Public Company Limited by backdoor listing. The Board of Directors from Focus Development and
Construction Public Co., Ltd. passed the first resolution on February 20th, 2019 and reached the
conclusion by closer and offered common stock for sales by adding new capital 451,388,889
shares 1.44 baht per share together with purchasing 2 lands 12 Rai 3 Ngan 57.85 Square Wah
located in Hua Hin, Prachuap Khiri Khan total assets 1,325 Million Baht from Proud Real Estate
Public Company Limited (7 Rai 2 Ngan 48.8 Wah) and Vana Nava Company Limited (5 Rai 1 Ngan
9.05Wah) soinvestmentinthatareahave a potentiallocation of real estate development business
for living and have a reduce the price risk to increases in the future therefore our company can
operatebusinesstosuccess,ourcompanywillmakeprofitandreturnforshareholderappropriately

which have a conditions for payment of land as follows

1. Paid in common stock increase value 650 Million Baht for Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop and Miss
Proudputh Liptapanlop

2. Paid in money (financing from bank amount 650 Million Baht)

3. Paid in cash flow/promissory note amount 25 Million Baht

Accordingto condition 1 (paid in common stock), Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop and Miss Proudputh
Liptapanlop are major shareholders of Focus Development and Construction Public Company
Limited, morethan 70% that changing the name to Proud Real estate Public Company Limited and
callnameis"PROUD"

1.2 Milestone

Formerly Focus Development and Construction Public Co., Ltd. was mainly a building
construction company that ran a business for government sectors, state-owned enterprises,
and private sectors through main contractors or subcontractors. At present, after the fund
increase and change of name to Proud Real estate Public Company Limited. hasfocused onreal

estate development business under the concept of "Morethanjustliving" as the key.



Milestone of the Group
Year 2021

April

¢ Proud Horseshoe Co.,Ltd. was established which Proud Real estate Public Company
Limited is holding 99.99 percent of the shares, with a registered capital of 20,000,000

baht.The company’s objective is development real estate.

August

¢ Convent Beta Co.,Ltd. was established which Proud Real estate Public Company
Limited is holding 99.97 percent of the shares, with a registered capital of 1,000,000

baht.The company’s objective is development real estate.

September

¢ Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited,a subsidiary company which Proud Real estate
Public Company Limited is holding 99.99 percent of the shares, has resolved to increase
the registered capital of 750,000,000 baht (Common shares: 1,500,000 shares and
Preferred shares : 6,000,000 shares, par value 100 baht per share) from 50,000,000
baht(Common shares: 500,000 shares, par value 100 baht per share) to 800,000,000
baht (Common shares: 2,000,000 shares and Preferred shares : 6,000,000 shares, par
value 100 baht per share)



August

Year 2020
¢ Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited signed and appointed Pre-Built Public
February Company Limited as the contractor for the main construction and architectural works. In
addition, A Build Management Co., Ltd. was appointed as the project for the construction
¢ Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited launched the VIP event of “InterContinental management and Control of “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”.

Residences Hua Hin” to the public for the first time. This was the Company’s first complete
project. The event was held at Gaysorn Urban Resort.

September

May ¢ Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited was 2 awards in the event of “Dot Property
Thailand Award 2020” including the Best L Condomini Hua Hi d the Best
¢ Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited laid the foundation stone and the main atland Awar nciuding the Best Luxury Londominidm Hua Hin an € Bes

Branded Residence Hua Hin from the project of “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”.
pillar of the “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin” Project on Petchkasem Road at Soi proJ

Hua Hin 71. ¢ The condominium asset was transferred under the project of “Focus Ploenchit” for
the last unit. Such project was acquired from the acquisition of Focus Development and

Construction Public Company Limited.

July
¢ Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited issued and allocated the warrants to
November
purchase ordinary shares of the Company No. 2 (“Proud-W2 warrants”) amount
31,679,999 units to the existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding on 1st o Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited was awarded in the event of Property
July, 2017, with a term of 3 years. The first exercise date was on 29th September, 2017, Guru Thailand Property Awards of the “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin” project as
and the last exercise date was on 6th July, 2020. However, the last exercise date of Proud- follows:

W2 was on 3rd July, 2020, as 6th July, 2020, was a holiday of the Stock Exchange of

. . . . 1. DEVELOPMENT AWARDS
Thailand. On 25th June, 2020, there was 1 shareholder with 88 shares at an exercise price Being awarded as the WINNER: Best Luxury Condo Development (Hua Hin), WINNER:

of 1.533 baht per share or equal to 134.90 baht. Best Branded Residence

2. DESIGN AWARDS
Being awarded as the WINNER: Best Condo Landscape Architectural Design

3. BEST OF THAILAND AWARDS
Being awarded as the WINNER: Best Condo Development (Thailand)



May
Year 2019

¢ Our company has changed the Company 's name to Proud Real Estate Public

April Company Limited

¢ Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited was established which Proud Real estate Public
Company Limited is holding 99.99 percent of the shares, with a registered capital of November

1,000,000 baht.The company’s objective is development real estate. . . . .
pany J P ¢ Our company launched the project “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”,a luxury

residential project managed by the world-class hotel chain "IHG", the first in Thailand
on 7 Rai 2 Ngan 48.8 Wah land near the beach, Heart of Hua Hin On Petchkasem Road

¢ Hua Hin Sky living Company Limited was established which Proud Real estate Public
Company Limited is holding 99.97 percent of the shares, with a registered capital of

1,000,000 baht.The company’s objective is development real estate. In the area of Soi Hua Hin 71

& Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2019 at 26 April ¢ Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited,a subsidiary company which Proud Real estate
Public Company Limited is holding 99.99 percent of the shares, has resolved to
ncrease the registered capital of 25,000,000 baht from 1,000,000 baht to 26,000,000

baht.

2019 approved a decrease of the Company's registered capital from Baht 227,760,073
to Baht 221,760,062 by cancelling 6,000,011 registered but unissued ordinary shares
with a par value of Baht 1 per share, and the amendment to Clause 4 of the

Memorandum
December
¢ Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2019 at 26 April

2019 approved an increase of the Company's registered capital from Baht 221,760,062
to Baht 673,148,951 by issuing 451,388,889 new ordinary shares, with a par value of

Baht 1 per share, and the amendment to Clause 4 of the Memorandum

¢ Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2019 at 26 April
2019 approved the allocation of 451,388,889 newly issued ordinary shares of the
Company at the par value of 1 Baht to be allocated under Private Placement scheme in
reliance upon the general meeting's resolution specifying the offering price of Baht 1.44

per share

¢ Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.1/2019 at 26 April
2019 approved the sale of all shares in Focus Wheig Corporation Limited, which is
considered the disposition of all investment of the Company in Focus Wheig resulting in
Focus Wheig ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company, to Mr. Anucha
Sihanatkathakul,the director of the Company, or the person and/or juristic person

designated by himself

¢ Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited,a subsidiary company which Proud Real estate
Public Company Limited is holding 99.99 percent of the shares, has resolved to
increase the registered capital of 24,000,000 baht from 26,000,000 baht to
50,000,000 baht.



Year 2018

April

& The Annual General Meeting 2018 approved the cancellation of the issuance and
offering of warrants to purchase ordinary shares of the Company to directors,
management and staff of the Company (ESOP Warrants) in the amount of 6,000,000
units since the Announcement of the Capital Supervisory Board No. Thor.Jor. 32/2551
regarding the offer for sale of newly issued securities to directors or staff dated 15
December 2008 specifies that the Company must complete the offer for sale of the
ESOP Warrants to directors and staff within one year from the date of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for year 2017, held on 28 April 2017. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee have the same opinion as proposed by the management of the Company to
cancel the issuance and offer for sale of the said ESOP Warrants because of the
unfavorable market situation and the exercise price of 1.80 Baht per share is not
attractive enough. It is, therefore, not appropriate to offer for sale of the ESOP

Warrants to directors, management and staff during this time.

July

¢ The Company entered into the contract for the building of waste management
factory for Focus Wheig Bangna Limited which is situated in Amphur Plangyao,

Changwad Chachoengsao with the total work value of 50 Million Baht



Year 2017

April

¢ 28 April 2017 The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017 has resolved to
increase the Company’s registered capital from 126,720,042 Baht to 227,760,073 Baht,
by issuing 101,040,031 new ordinary shares with the par value of 1.00 Baht each, as

follows

To be allocated to the existing shareholders
63,360,021 shares
1.20 Baht per share

(Rights Offering) for not exceeding
at the ratio of 2 existing shares per 1 new share at the price of

. 2.To accommodate the exercise of FOCUS-W2

31,680,010 shares
at the ratio of 1 new share per 1 warrant with the exercise price of 1.80 Baht per share

for not exceeding

. 3.To accommodate the exercise of ESOP Warrants

6,000,000 shares
at the ratio of new share per 1 warrant with the exercise price of 1.80 Baht per share

for not exceeding

Totally 101,040,031 shares

May

¢ 19 May 2017 The Company has registered the capital increase at the Department of
Business Development, Ministry of Commerce from 126,720,042 Baht to 227,760,073
Baht by issuing 101,040,031 new ordinary shares with the par value of 1.00 Baht each

¢ 25 May 2017 The Company has notified the terms and conditions concerning the
sale and allocation of capital increase ordinary shares to the existing shareholders of the
Company according to their proportion ratio (Rights Offering) and has determined the
issue date and the exercise date under the warrants to purchase the said ordinary
shares of the Company No. 2 (FOCUS-W2) as follows:

1. Subscription period and payment for the capital increase ordinary shares : during 12-16
June 2017

2. Issue date and exercise date under the warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of the
Company No. 2(FOCUS-W?2)

* Issue date of the warrants : 8 July 2017

* First exercise date : 29 September 2017

* Last exercise date : 30 June 2020

June

¢ 26 June 2017 The Company has registered its paid-up capital with the Department
of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce from 126,720,042 Baht to 190,080,063
Baht as per details concerning the registered capital and the paid-up capital of the

Company as follows:

= Registered Capital 227,760,073 Baht, divided into 227,760,073 ordinary shares with
the par value of 1.00 Baht each

= Paid-Up Capital 190,080,063 Baht, divided into 190,080,063 ordinary shares with
the par value of 1.00 Baht each

August

¢ 15 August 2017 The Company has notified the transfer of shares in Focus Wheig

Corporation Limited (holding company) as follows:

Transferor Transferee No.of Shares
Shareholding Ratio WheigS.A.S., France Wheign Asia Ltd., Hong Kong
599,999 39.99%

Remarks:

(1) Wheig Asia Limited, Hong Kong is a subsidiary of Wheig Group of Companies with Wheig S.A.S., France
asthemajorsharehold

(2) Thereason of the said transfer of sharesis due to the fact that Wheig Group of Companies would like to
have Wheig Asia Ltd., Hong Kong whichisits subsidiary in the Asian Region as theinvestorin Thailand in place of

Wheig SAS, Francewhichisin Europe Region



¢ 5 August 2017 The Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2017 of the Company has
resolved to invest in the waste management project of Focus Wheig Bangna Limited
which is a subsidiary of Focus Wheig Corporation Limited which is a “holding company”
with the project value of approximately 180 Million Baht. The project will be situated on
the land with the area of 23 Rai 16 Square Wa in the industrial and warehouse zone
(purple zone), High Way No. 331-Baan Nong Rua, Tambon Plangyao, Amphur Plangyao,

Changwad Chachoengsao.

¢ August and September 2017 The Company entered into the contract for the building
of quality of life improvement building for Thai Navy officers, Amphur Sattahee,

Changwad Chonburi with the total work value of 79 Million Baht.

November

¢ 15 November 2017 Focus Wheig Bangna Limited (subsidiary of Focus Wheig
Corporation Limited) has received the land ownership for the waste management project
with the area of 23 Rai 16 Square Wa in the industrial and warehouse zone (purple
zone), High Way No. 331-Baan Nong Rua, Tambon Plangyao, Amphur Plangyao,
Changwad Chachoengsao. Presently, the project is under construction of the plant
which is expected to be completed to start the operations of the waste management

business within the 2nd quarter of 2018.

1.3 shareholding structure of group company
Overview of the business and management policy of the Group

Proud Real estate Public Company Limited is a Real estate development company in Thailand.
We focuses on designing residential projects creatively to lift up the quality of life into a living
experience under the concept of "More thanjust living " which combines relaxation and resort

servicethatwillmake you enjoy the nature and luxury of modern life every day.

Investment structure of the group company

Shareholder

100%

l

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited
(Property development)

99.99% 99.97% 99.99% 99.97%

| |

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited
(Property development)

Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited Proud Horeshoe Company Limited Convent Beta Company Limited

(Property development) (Property development) (Property development)




Organization Structure

Currently,that provide main support servicesinthe following areas:

¢ Providing support for business development and strategies consisting of Business

Development and Strategy Department.

¢ Providing support for project development and project management consisting of
Product Design and Development Department, Project and Construction Department,

Project Operation Department.

¢ Providing support for financial and accounting consisting of Accounting Department,

Financial Department and Investor Relations Department.

¢ Providing support for marketing and sales consisting of Marketing Department and

Sales Department

¢ Providing support for administrative consisting of Legal and Compliance Department,
Information Technology Department, Human Resources Department, Purchasing and

Administration Department and 111 Social Club

Board Of Directors

Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Internal Audit

Audit Committee Executive Committee

Business . . Sales, Marketing and _ - _
Project Development Project Development Finance and Administrative

Development and L. L Customer Service _ L. L
L Division (Team A) Division (Team B) e Accounting Division Division
Strategy Division Division
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Income structure 1. Overviews of products and services

The company has anincome structure classified by business types which are: Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited which mainly focuses on real estate

development business currently has developing projects in major areas in Bangkok and
Incomeclassified by business types

Coastline City. At the beginning of the business, the company only had products or servicesin

condominiums which have details as follows:

Milion Milion Milion Real estate forsale

Baht Baht Baht
Revenuesfromsale of real estate - -| 181.65 91.65 53.82 48.50
£ _ 2% g
Revenues from contact work - - - -| 31.43| 2832 = s E 2 g5
[T © c ©
e | &3 SR
: , £ L = g £ &
Financeincome 0.47 12.98 0.37 0.19 1.26 1.14 . . . 5 o= 5 & 2
Project Project Ownership =z a < w & o
. Land development project
Otherincome 3.15 87.02 16.18 8.16 24.46 22.04
Intercontinental Soi71,HuaHin Condominium HuaHinAlpha | 7-2-48.8 238 3,778 Q3/2563 About
Residences Project District, Prachuap 71 Co.,Ltd. - 80%
Total Revenue 3.62 | 100.00 | 198.20 | 100.00 | 110.97 | 100.00 Khiri Khan Province PGS
Land Bankproject
Land of Vana Nava Water Hua Hin District, Study Hua Hin Sky 5-1-9.05 Under Under Under Under
Parkand Hotel Holiday Prachuap KhiriKhan Living Co.,Ltd. studying | studying | studying studying
InnHuaHinarea Province
Landintheareaof Soi Phaya Thai District, Study Proud 1-0-2.2 Under Under Under Under
Aree ,Bangkok Bangkok Horseshoe studying | studying studying studying
Co.,Ltd.
Landintheareaof Soi Bang Rak District, Study Convent Beta 1-2-38.5 Under Under Under Under
Convent,Bangkok Bangkok Co.,Ltd. studying | studying studying studying




1.1 Current Project

InterContinental Residences Hua Hin Project

Since the company had vacant land for development because Focus Development and
Construction Public Company Limited acquired two plots in Amphoe Hua Hin, Prachuap Khiri
IKhan Province bystartingtodevelopalargeland firstwhich was approximately 7 raiclosed tothe
beach and was the last remaining land in the middle of Mueang Hua Hin District, Petchkasem
Road, Soi Hua Hin 71 (opposite Market Village).From this location, the land prices in this area
reached the highestin Hua Hin at more than 150 million baht per rai. In this regard, the company
designedthis projecttobe ‘Luxury’ byusingthebrandInterContinentalunderthe projectnamed
"InterContinental Residences" The objective is to meet the needs of high-end customersin order
to share a luxury and grand living experience with services and facilities. The hotel is fully

integrated with international standards in the style of InterContinental

As the firstresidential projectin Thailand under the international brand InterContinental
Hotels and Resorts, is the only exclusive brand in the world. It is also a prototype of a residential
development project under the concept of '‘More Than Just Living ', therefore, it is clear that the
success of the InterContinental Residences Hua Hin project is a collection of best components to
fulfillaliving experienceand anextraordinary servicethatis equivalenttoenjoyingaluxury hotel
but more with privacy. The interior design of the project also combines the contemporary and
unique colonial-style architecture, laying the building in the position so that the sea view can be

certainly seen.ltaswellas provides a private pool and other facilities.



The project of InterContinental Residences Hua Hin has key features as follows:

It is a luxury residential project under the brand InterContinental. The first and the only place
in Thailand is located in the best location of Hua Hin which is in the price of New High level
since it is the last piece of beach land in the middle of Hua Hin district

InterContinental Hotel Group (IHG) entered into a contract with Proud Real Estate company
which makes the project qualified and supports various services such as the concierge desks in
the lobby, luggage rooms with porters, Golf carts shuttling in the project area including other

services such as Beach pavilion that can be used as a banquet hall with services from the hotel.

. Support living together among family members with rooms by building spacious area and

common areas to support joint activities such as Chess field, maze, etc.

. Green and the central area of the project, about 4 rai by allocating approximately 70% or

approximately 7,000 square meters was a large garden, private beach with common facilities
such as 7 swimming pools for children, families, the elderly and those who want to do exercise,
including a beach pool, exercise room hidden under the swimming pool (Hidden Gym) and
other facilities.

Privilege to use the service from 5,900 affiliated hotels in InterContinental Hotel Group
worldwide and exclusive "Proud Privileges" membership from businesses in the Proud Group
and alliances as well as the right to use the service 111 Social Club which is a beachfront
colonial style cafe located next to the project. InterContinental Residences Hua Hin

. The unit is approximately 6 meters wide with a full-height glass door. 80 percent of the project

is a room with a sea view and the penthouse provides approximately 9 meters in front of the
sea with a 270-degree sea view.

InterContinental provides 7 day and 24-hour services for the residents in the project with
international standard services. We received international standard hotel services such as
Butler service, concierge services, special meal preparation services delivered directly to the
room, chef preparation service for parties, housekeeping service, laundry, bedding set,
residential repair services, free internet service in common areas as well as a shuttle service to

main locations near the project.

. All 9 buildings are allocated into seven groups to suit various needs, consisting of a building

with seven stories and eight buildings with four-stories in which all units are fully-furnished by

the standards of InterContinental.

. The balcony is nearly 10 square meter with Daybed in order to see a sea view the most

1.2. Future project

Land Bankfor development

Our company aims to study the vacant land located in Bangkok and main tourist cities by
pointing out the feasibility of projects that can make a difference in competition. Under the
unique lifestyle, we focus on the customers who like being different, exceptional and have the
ability to afford both Thai and foreigners which corresponds to the company's concept of "More

thanjustliving".

1.3. Privileges for project customers

Most of the projects that the companyis currently developing and inthe future still create
privileges for the residents in terms of living that covers every lifestyle through the benefits of
"Proud Privilege" which are InterContinental Hua Hin Resort Hotel, InterContinental Phuket
Resort Hotel, Holiday Inn Resort Vana Nava Hua Hin Hotel, True Arena Hua Hin, Vana Nava water
park, Vana Nava Sky, Bluport HuaHin, 111 Social Club (Colonial classic style houses close to

InterContinental Residences Hua-Hin which is now modified to Club House close to the beach).

ws12wS31av (d1kSulasonis InterContinental Residences Hua Hin)
) o =
EXCLUSIVE INTERCON TG INTERCONTIRANTAL
PROUD PRIVILEGES
FOR RESIDENTS

15% off at Tea Salon, Saraan Lounge, 15% off at Sawan, 20% off at Plamong,
Azure Restaurant and Bay, Pirom Pine, Pinto, Jaras and Thalay Bar
and Lee La Bar 15% off at Spa and other services 15% off at Spa and other services
15% off at Spa and other services
REAL ESTATE PLC
true NAva
ARENA NS
HUA HIN
WITH LUXURY FACILITIES
THAT CATER TO ALL
ASPECTS OF LIVING
Lounge at InterContinental Hua Hin Resort
Lounge at Vana Nava Water Jungle 20% off at Sportsman Free Locker, Towel and Water 15% off on drinks and beverages
15% off private Tennis session Fuee pick-up service from the Residences Exclustve offers for Events

Access o TH Social Club Special rate for Tennis Court
Priority Parking at BluPort Hua Hin and Football field
Resort Mall 15% off daily pass

*The details and services are subject to changes and/or terminate under terms and conditions of the services provider(s),
and the project owner reserves its right to make any change to the details and contents specified herein without prior notice.



2. Ma

rket and Competition

Year 2021 will continue to be a challenging year due to the ongoing Covid-19 epidemic
situation. The overall housing market in Bangkok and its vicinity showed a significant slowdown
in the supply of newly launched units. However, Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited has
operated its business cautiously, stably, and closely assesses the situation. We formulate

marketing strategiesin accordance with market conditions in each period.

Characteristics of Customers and Target Market

The main target customers of the company are middle-class customers(B + and above)
because the InterContinental Residences Hua Hin project is a luxury condominium, the selling

pricerange between 7.89-116 million baht.

In 2021, the Company has continuously expanded its customer base and created a new
database by collaborating with business alliances and products in similar segments, including
allowing existing customers to recommend their friends to purchase the project by issuing the

campaign “Friends get friends”, which has been well received by old customers.

Intermsoftheinternationalmarket, duetotheincreasingnumberofforeigninvestorswho
are interested in investing in real estate in Thailand at present. The company has expanded the
baseofforeigncustomersandourprojecthasbeenwellreceived byforeigncustomers, especially
in Europe and Russia. In 2021, the company has developed various media channels, especially
onlinemediainordertobuild brandawarenessforthelnterContinental ResidencesHuaHin inthe

international market.



Sale and Distribution Channel

The Company has strategized distribution channelto beinline with product

type:

(1) Sale bysalesteamunder Proud Real Estate PLC. Salesperson,
undertraining and service development standard of the Company, will
promote marketing and selling activities in sales office of each projectand
outside of the project e.g. setting up boothsinroad shows in various locations

orinhousing expos.

(2) Sale by professional real estate agentis the soleagent with
experience selling some of the country's leading real estate projectsand has a

target customer base.

3) Establishing Agent & International Sales teamtoincrease
distribution channels and create distribution channel partnerships through

real estate agents, both domesticallyandinternationally.

Organizing campaigns and promotional activities
AgentDay

Agent Day activities, the company invited More than 20 International business partners
take a tour of the InterContinental Residences Hua Hin. The event also showcases details of the

projectandits world-class services by InterContinental Hotels Group (IHG.)



Real Estate Industry Overview

From the overview of the country's economy during the 4th quarter of 2021, which
expanded by 1.9 percent from aslowdown of -0.2 percentinthethird quarter of 2021, as aresult
of import-export products have increase in expansion. In addition, the government has relaxed
measures to control the spread of COVID-19. And the Bank of Thailand (BOT) has announced a
temporary easing of LTV measuresfrom October 20,2021 toDecember31,2022tohelpsupport
the Thaieconomy thatis still affected by the Covid-19 outbreak.

The epidemic of COVID-19, which has been protracted for more than two years, has
affected both the supply and demand of the housing marketin the fourth quarterof 2021, which
has continued to decline compared to the same period of the previous year. Especially the
condominium market, whichis affected by the purchasing power of foreigners who cannot enter

the countryandthose who buyforinvestment, slow down their purchases.

The outlook for the Thaieconomy in 2022, the Office of the National Economic and Social
Development Council is expected to grow from 3.5 to 4.5 percent, up from 1.6 percentin 2021,
drivenbyanimprovementin domesticdemand, revival of the tourism sector and the continuous
expansion of exports and driven by government investment. For the real estate sector, the
government has extended measures to reduce the transfer of ownership and mortgage fees for
the housing prices not exceeding 3 million baht and extending to second-hand houses until
December 31, 2022. And the Bank of Thailand (BOT) has announced a temporary relaxation of

LTV measures forloan agreements signed from 20 October 2021 to December 31,2022, too.

However, in 2022, the negative factors that will cause the economy, including the real
estate sector to slow down. The situation of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine that caused
the prices of oil and building materials to increase, the labor shortage in the construction sector
rising household debt and the increase in the loan interest rate due to the positive and negative
factors. The Real Estate Information Center has forecast that trends in 2022, the supply and

demand situation of the housing market willimprove when comparedto 2021.

Summary of Residential Marketin 2021

For2021,transferofownershipfromresidentialjuristicpersoninThailandwasat802,720
million baht decreased from 2020 by 13.5% (Please see Chart no.1). The highest value was from
detached house transfer of 548,813 million baht decreased by 11% YoY (Please see Chartno.2
and 3) and housing transfer was at 253,907 million baht increased by 18.5% YoY (Please see
Chartno.4).

Chartno.l:Unitsand Value of Ownership Transfer of Residencein Thailand
during2017-2021

Source: Real Estate Information Center of Government Housing Bank (REIC-GHB)

Chartno.2:Unitsand Value of Ownership Transfer of Detached Housein Thailand
during2017-2021

Source: Real Estate Information Center of Government Housing Bank (REIC-GHB)



Chartno.3:Unitsand Value of Ownership Transfer of Townhousein Thailand
during2017-2021

Source: Real Estate Information Center of Government Housing Bank (REIC-GHB)

Chartno.4:Unitsand Value of Ownership Transfer of Condominiumin Thailand
during2017-2021

Source: Real Estate Information Center of Government Housing Bank (REIC-GHB)

For 2021, transfer of ownership from residential juristic person in Bangkok and vicinity
wasat 581,659 million baht decreased slightly from 2020 by 5.2% (Please see Chart no.5).

Chartno.5:Unitsand Value of Ownership Transfer of Residence in Bangkokand Vicinity
during2017-2021 (By Product Type)

Source: Real Estate Information Center of Government Housing Bank (REIC-GHB)

Residencial Marketin Cha-am, Hua Hin and Pranburi

The cumulative supply of condominiums in the Cha-am Hua-Hin Khao-Tao area before
2008 to the second half of 2021 totalled 28,055 units. In the second half of 2021, the supply of
newcondominiumslaunchedforsalewasfromone project, withapproximately 136 units, located

inHua Hin Soi94. Most of the condominiums

areinthe Cha-amarea, accounting for 58 percent, followed by Khao Tao and Khao Takiab
at 13 and 11 percent, respectively. The supply of condominiums in Hua Hin accounted for 10

percent of thetotal supply,

while condominiums located in the in-land mountainous accounted for 8 percent. Of the
total supply, most of the condominiums, at 55 percent, arethose without sea views while sea view

condominiums accounted for 45 percent.



Demand Trend

In the second half of 2021, a total of 20,571 condominiums in the Cha-am Hua-Hin
Khao-Taoareahavebeensold outofatotal supplyof 28,055 units, representingasalesrateof 73
percent. Thesalesrateisrelatively stable comparedto 2020. Inthe second half of 2021,0only 154
units were sold, taking the total number of units sold throughout the year to 380 units. Overall,
the number of units left for sale, as of December 2021, is approximately 7,484 units. In projects
that have been launched over five years ago, there are approximately 3,200 units left for sale or

50 percentoftheremaining supply.

At present, 90 percent of the main buyers are Thais living in Bangkok while 5 percent are
Thais from provincial areas. Another 5 percent are retired expats from Scandinavia, Norway, the
Netherlands,and France; mostforeignerslivingin HuaHin prefertobuyahouseoravillabecause

theyarerelatively tranquil and private, and suitable for long term occupancy.



Outlook

TheoverallHuaHincondominium marketin 2022 isexpected toberelatively stable. This
is because developers of condominium projects inthe area are still assessing the situation and
slowing down launches or the development of new projects. However, condos in the seafront
areahaverelatively fewunitsforsaleandtheirselling pricestendtoincrease. Meanwhile,itmay
take some time to move the unsold units in the Cha-am area; some projects may experience a
price drop given the age of the condominiums. Although the Covid-19 epidemic has had a
negative impact on the condominium market in the Cha-am HuaHin Khao-Tao area, it also
generated more interest in the area’s condominiums among the people in Bangkok. Such
potentialbuyerswouldliketoavoid epidemicsituationslikethatwhichoccurredinthepast.This
groupof buyersseetheareaasaplacewheretheyprefertoride outtheepidemicratherthanin
being Bangkok. This results in more demand in the Cha-am Hua-Hin Khao-Tao condominium

market, whichis likely to expand further once the Covid-19 epidemic has passed.
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1 Registered and Paid-Up Capital as of 31 December 2021
Registered Capital : 673,148,951 Bahtdivided into

¢ 673,148,951 ordinary shares

¢ Paid-Up Capital: 641,469,040 Baht
divided into 641,469,040 ordinary shares

with a par value of 1 Baht each.

with a par value of 1 Baht each.

The Company has no other type of share apast from ordinary shares, every shareholder

then has and equality in voting , i.e. one share on vote.

2 SHAREHOLDERS

(1) The name list of top 10 shareholders as of 9 March 2022 is as follows:

Percentage of
Number of shares
Shareholdings
(shares)
(%)

1 MR. PASU LIPTAPANLOP? 226,046,445 35.24
2 MISS PROUDPUTH LIPTAPANLOP? 226,046,444 35.24
3 RAMKHAMHAENG 191 COMPANY LIMITED 62,000,000 9.67
4 MISS NUNNARIN PAIBOONPREDEE 9,789,200 1.53
5 MR. THANINCHOT TANTIPHANRAK 9,500,000 1.48
5 MR. VUTHICHAIPIRIYOTHAISAKUL 7,977,700 1.24
7 MR.SINCHOK PIRIYOTAISAKUL 7,692,300 1.20
8 MRS. NAPHARAT SIHANATKATHAKUL 4,525,800 0.71
9 MISS ORACHORN JAROENPONGANAN 4,476,600 0.70
10 MR. PUMIPAT SINACHAROEN 3,177,500 0.50

Remark: 1 Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop and Miss Proudputh Liptapanlop are directors and executive directors of the Company

(2) Agreement between major shareholders

-None-
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The Company has a policy to pay dividends to its shareholders at the dividend

payoutrateofnolessthan40% ofits net profitafter corporateincometaxesandtoallocate

acertainamount of the net profit thereof for

legal reserve purpose. However, the dividend payment may be changed due to the

Company’s operational results, business expansion plan, liquidity, necessity, and other

appropriatenessthat mayarisein the future.

Dividend Payment Information

Dividend payment details

1. Net profit (loss) (40.09) (44.82) (97.23)
641.47 million 641.47 million 641.47 million
2.The number of paid up shares
shares shares shares
o Nodividend Nodividend Nodividend
3.Dividend payment pershare
payment payment payment
Nodividend Nodividend Nodividend
4.Totalisthedividend payment
payment payment payment
o Nodividend Nodividend Nodividend
5.Dividend payoutratio
payment payment payment

Remarks: (1) Dividend per Share (Baht) was made at the rate approved by the Company’s Board of Directorsinits

board meeting on 23 February 2022 and shall be submitted for the shareholders’ approval during the Annual

General Shareholders Meeting for 2022.
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1. Business Risks

1.1 Risk from Regulatory Changes Affecting Real Estate Business

The Company develops residential real estate projects under the laws and related
regulations. At present, there are many related laws and regulations which are different for each
area, adaptive to economic conditions, and affected by government’s policy e.g. the Land
Allocation Act, the Town Planning Act, traffic planning, and controlled area, etc. Thus, risk may

arisefrom operations not comply with the laws and regulations.

The Company is aware of such risk and thus performs all relevant laws and regulation
check,inallareaswiththe Company’s projects, tobein complianceand ensure timely schedule of

operations.

1.2 Risk from Real Estate Competition

Thereal estate business has many competitors resulting in high competition whether the
competition is from small unlisted developers or large listed developers whom are considered
direct competitor to the Company. The Company track record is limited which may resultin less
credibility when compared against well-known developers. At present, many competitors have
various development plansto capture customers’ demand. And many developers deploy various

stimulatingstrategytoboostsaleandincreasecustomerbaseandreduceoutstandinginventory.

The company has arisk managementapproach by finding its own niche market to make it
known. e.g. capture top-tier customers for the InterContinental Residences Hua Hin. Moreover,
the Company develops strategy to address customers demand with considerations of location,
transportation, and various innovations to be used in future projects. The Company aimsto be a

leading real estate developer within 1 — 2 years from now.

1.3 Risk from Reliance of Key Shareholder

The Company operates business with major shareholders from the Liptapanlop family
consisting of Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop, and Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop holding total 70.48% of
registered and paid-up capital (as of 9 March 2022). Thus, the Company has risk from major
shareholders holding deciding votes in shareholders meeting. This includes appointment of
directors and approval of various agenda, with the exception of matters requiring 3 out of 4
shareholders’ approval per related laws and regulations. In addition, the remaining

shareholders do not have enough vote to check or audit the decision.

However,the Companyhas Audit Committeeandindependentdirectorsresponsiblefor
auditing and assessing business appropriateness to prevent transactions with conflict of
interests. By doing so, this increases transparency in the Company’s business operation and

builds confidence of other shareholders that the Company operates with good governance.

1.4 Risks from the outbreak of COVID-19 infection

The current situation of the COVID-19 epidemic causes the business operations to be
careful.ltisneededtomodifytheoperatingplanfromtheoriginal plannedforthe performance
of employees withinthe Company. The new operating modelis needed in order to comply with
the preventive measures to avoid the spread of COVID-19. Marketing planning which was
originally planned for both short term and long term. Impact to the change in the form of new
marketing plan to respond the needs of customers more. This includes the sales from the
original sales planning toforeign customers. At present, thetarget has notyet been met by the
Company. However, the base of purchasing power of Thai customers helps us to achieve the

overallsalestarget.

The Company has set up a new management guideline focusing on the prevention of
COVID-19 infection by allowing employees to work from home in order not to access other
people, tofacilitate the equipment to employees for performing their work continuously. This
includes marketing and sales planning mainly focusing on the domestic customers but still
paying attention to foreign customers by providing information on projects to foreign sales

representativestoknowthedetailssothatinterested peoplefromabroad cantradealtogether.



2. Ris

k from Main Business Operation
2.1 Risk from Land Acquisition

The several times the potential land require the use of financial resources in high
amount, whilealimited supply of resourcesatthestarting periods, the Company cannotcollect

many lands that will support the futureinthe mediumandlongterm.

The Companyhasstudied additionalapproaches forinvestmentinnew projectswhichis
defined as a business plan for both short-term and long-term for further development of new
projects both in terms of condominiums and low-rise projects at the right time in order not to

dependonjustany part.

2.2 Risk from Labor and Hiring of Contractors

At present, the real estate business faces challenges in hiring qualified and high
potential labors and contractors as there are many developers with intensifying competition.
In addition, the Company has been known as a developer for short period of time; this could
hinder contractors’ confidence towork with the Company when compared to other well-known
long-standing developers. Moreover, the Company’s project is mainly outside of Bangkok
which resulted in long commuting time -- further reducing interests of labors and contractors
in the project. Furthermore, the Company’s project is limited, contractors might be unsure
about continuity for future projects. These reasons have made it challenging for the Company
to select contractors. Consequently, the Company may face construction delay and lack of

efficiency to meetthe Company’s standards.

The Company is mindful of such problem and has been increasing the Company’s
reliability and confidence for contractors to work with the Company. The Company ensures

continuity of future projectsto attract contractors to work with the Company.

2.3 Risk from Reliance of Success from Future Project

The Company has been known as a real estate developer for short period of time;
excluding existing project after the acquisition of Focus Development and Construction Public
Company Limited. Thus, there are high expectations on the InterContinental Residences Hua
Hin project to build public confidence in project development standard and ability to further

develop other projects.

Currently, the Company will have more new projects in the year 2021 both low-rise
projects and high-rise projects as well as has explored various methods in new project
development and formulated business plan in both short-term and long-term for future
projects. The business plan also covers both condominium and horizontal residences at

appropriate timelineto prevent concentration risk.



3. Financial Risks

3.1 Risk from Economic Fluctuations

In2021, the economy negatively affected the real estate sector. There were competitions
from on-going real estate projects, economic slowdown resulting in increasing concern over
spending of Thai customers, and the global economic slowdown leading to reduction in foreign
buyers contribution. Thus, thereis risk that the inventory will face selling challenges and affects

thereal estate business.

The Company considered feasibility to develop project during this economic condition by
analyzing economic conditions which would affect the long-term business and ability torespond
to customers’ demand. To prepare for such conditions, the Company placed high importance in
strategizing various business developments. The Company is trusted by the Intercontinental
Hotel Group (IGH), theworld class real estatedevelopment brand, todevelop thelnterContinental
Residences Hua Hin project. The project will boost public confidence in the Company to weather

the currenteconomic conditions.

3.2 Risk from Tightening Conditions from Financial Institutions

The economic condition for the past years were in shrinkage trend. Financial institutions
become stricter in approving mortgage loans for home buyers to filter customers without
repayment ability. Moreover, the preventive mortgage lending loan-to-value (LTV) measure, to
maintain economic stability from the Bank of Thailand (BOT), has resulted in lower purchase
power of home buyers. This directly affects the Company’s mainrevenue; and securing source of

fund for operations from financial institutions become more challenging.

The Company placed high importance to the situation. The Company has ensured
financial institutions that the Company has adequate repayment ability by formulating
appropriate and careful business plan, the caution of funding from borrowing and the good
cashflow management . Moreover, the Company has formed business alliance with various
financial institutions to increase offerings to customers during the process of applying for
mortgage lending and increase convenience of customers in contacting financial institutions to

apply formortgage lending.



PPPPP

DRIVING BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY

PPPPP



1. SUSTAINABILITY POLICY AND GOALS

Following Corporate Governance Policyand Ethics Manualfor Directors,Management,and

Employeesrevisedin 2019 approved by the Board of Directors Meetingno.9/2019 on 14 August

2019, the Company recognized the importance of corporate social responsibility and remained

driven to developing human resource and growing sustainably with trade partners, customers,

shareholders, alliances,employees,andthesociety. The Companyupholdsandinstillsemployees

with such conceptandtranslated into CSR activities namely:

2. IMPACT MANAGEMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS IN THE BUSINESS VALUE CHAIN
2.1 Value chain management

TheCompany'sbusiness processesfromupstreamtodownstreaminvolvewiththevarious

stakeholders, starting from;

¢ The purchasing potential land for project development contains with process; the
study of feasibility project, the analysis of targeted customers and competitor and the

risk analysis about legal and regulatory issues.

¢ Project design and development preparation by designing concepts and developing
designs for used with the various purposes, selecting materials used in the project,
requesting the permission from relevant government agencies and providing funding

for project development.

¢ Planning of sales and marketing activities by selecting sales tools and marketing

materials, design and construction of a show unit.

¢ The construction of the project starts from the selection of contractors and
construction management of the project, construction of public utilities, construction of
a housing or condominium, cost management and the control and inspection of

construction quality.

¢ Delivery of housing / condominiums to customers. facilitating the bank loan request
to the customers, housing / condominiums inspection, modify defects and transfer of

ownership

& After sale services, in this process, the company has to manage customer relations,
guarantee of the quality of the house / unit, facilitation when the customer informs the

repairment and a establishment of a juristic person for the property management.

2.2 The analysis of stakeholder in the business value chain

Theengagementwithbothinternaland external stakeholdersisakeyelementinsetting

the direction of our operations towards sustainability. The Company has analyzed the

operations to identify the stakeholder related to the Company's business operations and

summarize the expectations of the each stakeholder asfollows:

Stakeholders
Investorand
Shareholder

| Responseto Stakeholder

© Annual General Meeting and
Extraordinary General Meeting

| Expectations

o Business operation results

o Organizing meetings to clarify and

o Direction and policies in work

o Career path

Managementand ST
Employee answer inquiries with employees such as | Compensation and benefits

Town Hall.

o The potential employee
development
o Always survey customer satisfaction

throughout the operation process before .

QIS EEr o The quality of products and

and after unit delivery.

o Call Center

services

Community and

o The Company assess and analyze
Environment Impact Assessment (EIA)

o The Company visits and talks with the

o Do not operate the negatively
affect to the well-being of the

Society . - ) community.
surrounding communities during the
construction period.
o Business operation results
Partnersand . o
o Partner meetings o Fair Trade Competition
Contractor
oTransparency and
Accountability
o Delivery the Environment Impact o Compliance with the law.
Assessment (EIA) to Office of Natural
Government Resources and Environmental Policy and | © Transparency and
A Planning before the construction start Accountability
gency
o Applying for various permits to agencies | ©Accuracy and completeness of
related to the business information.
Competitor o Competition in real estate business. o Fair trade competition.




3. SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT IN ENVIRONMENTAL DIMENSION

The Company strives to operate business while caring for the environment by strictly
following environmental regulations, focusing on efficient use of resources, developing
business operation to protect and mitigate environmental impact, and promoting employees’
knowledge and awareness in the environment and social responsibility leading to entity-wide

treatment and continuous improvement.

Policy of effective utilization of resources

The company expects employees to consume resources efficiently, for instance, using
reuse papers, and saving energy and water by displaying campaign on boards inside the office

building.
Participation in Community or Social Development

The social responsibility polices of the Company in the past year were all CSRin process
incorporated with the Company’s operation. Having expertise in developing quality residence,
the Companyforesawthat quality residence canlead totheimprovementof quality of life. With
experiences in operating business, the Company has the capability and communication
channel to provide knowledge and experience to internal personnel for their own individual
development, as well as the betterment of the society. In addition, the Company strives to
develop personnel with knowledge to develop quality residence from construction,
management, to social responsibility aspects. These people with knowledge and social
responsibility will collectively generate products and buildings with qualified standards which

will be the key foundation for society with long-term sustainability.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activitiesin 2021

Because the company has focused on the safety and cleanliness of the neighbors near
the project InterContinental Residences Hua Hin is so important that cleaning activities are

organized on a monthly basis

4. SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT IN SOCIAL DIMENSION

The Company has a policy to treat employees equally and fairly, promoting the
employment of local workers, disadvantaged people and people with disabilities without
discrimination, although there are differences in race, religion, sex, age, education, etc. The
Company provide welfare, safety, occupational health and working environment, as well as
focus on developing potential and expertise in the field, including raising awareness and
encouraging personnel, contribute to creating good work effective for the organization,
society and environment. The Company listen to the opinions of customers to create

satisfactioninservice as well as take care of the community and society.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary of Auditor’s Report in the last 3 years

¢ Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2021

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 was audited by Miss
Siriwan Suratepin Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604 from EY Office Limited.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis
of mattersis “compliance with loan covenantsinloan agreements”. However, that matters did not

affectthe opinion of the auditor.

¢ Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 was audited by Miss
Siriwan Suratepin Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604 from EY Office Limited.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis
of matters are “recognition of revenue from sale of real estate” and “compliance with loan

covenantsinloanagreements”. However, that matters did not affect the opinion of the auditor.

¢ Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2019

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 was audited by Miss
Wannisa Ngambuathong Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 6838 from Dharmniti
Auditing Co.,Ltd.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis
of matters are “revenue recognition for construction services” and “valuation of deferred tax”.

However, that matters did not affect the opinion of the auditor.

Financial Highlights

Financial Highlights

2564

2563

Financial Position (Unit: Million Baht)

Total Assets 3,988.16 2,001.41 1,715.07
Total Liabilities 3,392.24 1,308.05 977.06
Total Shareholders' Equity 595.92 693.36 738.01
Paid-up Share Capital 641.47 641.47 641.47
Performance (Unit: Million Baht)

Total Revenues 3.62 198.20 110.97
Revenuesfromsale of real estate - 181.65 53.82
Revenues from contract work - - 31.43
Net Loss forthe year (97.23) (44.82) (40.09)
Share Value (Baht per Share)

Loss perShare (0.152) (0.070) (0.084)
BookValue per Share 0.93 1.08 1.15
Financial Ratio

Current Ratio (times) 1.86 3.61 10.14
Return on Equity (ROE) (%) (15.08) (6.26) (9.29)
Return on Assets (ROA) (%) (2.44) (2.24) (2.34)
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 5.69 1.89 1.32
Total Assets Turnover (times) 0.00 0.10 0.06
Gross Profit Margin (%) N/A 19.47 38.39
Net Profit (Loss) Margin (%) (2,685.91) (22.61) (36.13)




Summary of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Cash Flows, and Financial Ratio; comparative for a period of 3 years

Statement of Financial Position

UIEQVFIUNISIDU (C1D)

Description

Million Baht

Million Baht

Million Baht

Long-termloans from financial

1,258.91 31.57 738.88 36.92 808.35 47.13
institutions, net of current portion
Leaseliabilities, net of current portion 3.27 0.08 6.24 0.31 1.71 0.10
Provision for long-term employee

2.05 0.05 1.14 0.06 0.72 0.04

benefits
Provision for decommissioning costs 8.04 0.20 3.01 0.15 - -
Retention payables 19.11 0.48 20.89 1.04 - -
Total non-currentliabilities 1,291.38 32.38 770.16 38.48 810.78 47.27
Total liabilities 3,392.24 85.06 1,308.05 65.36 977.06 56.97
Registered share capital 673.15 673.15 673.15
Issued and fully paid-up share capital 641.47 16.08 641.47 32.05 641.47 37.40
Share premium 263.63 6.61 263.63 13.17 263.63 15.37
Deficits (309.18) (7.75) (211.74) (10.58) (167.09) (9.74)
Total shareholders' equity 595.92 14.94 693.36 34.64 738.01 43.03

3,988.16 100.00 2,001.41 100.00 1,715.07 100.00

Description
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Cash and cash equivalents 288.63 7.24 161.53 8.07 101.90 5.94
Trade and otherreceivables 0.26 0.01 0.22 0.01 0.66 0.04
Inventories 0.20 0.01 0.68 0.03 0.04 =
Real estate development costs 3,344.65 83.86 1,593.42 79.61 1,538.39 89.70
Currenttaxassets 1.90 0.05 3.03 0.15 1.85 0.11
Othercurrentassets 280.27 7.03 184.76 9.23 43.91 2.56
Total currentassets 3,915.91 98.19 1,943.64 97.11 1,686.75 98.35
Restricted bank deposits 0.19 - 0.19 0.01 0.19 0.01
Buildings and equipment 9.83 0.25 9.14 0.46 8.76 0.51
Right-of-use assets 11.11 0.28 15.31 0.76 - -
Intangible assets 4.60 0.12 4.99 0.25 3.68 0.21
Deferred tax assets 45.20 1.13 26.88 1.34 11.27 0.66
Other non-currentfinancial assets 132 0.03 1.26 0.06 = =
Othernon-currentassets = = = = 4.42 0.26
Totalnon-currentassets 72.25 1.81 57.77 2.89 28.32 1.65
Total assets 3,988.16 100.00 2,001.41 100.00 1,715.07 100.00
Bank overdrafts 19.68 0.49 14.10 0.70 14.53 0.85
Trade and other payables 673.89 16.90 47.42 2.37 41.61 2.43
Short-term loans from related companies - - - - 50.00 2.92
Current portion of long-term loans from

101.94 2.56 99.82 4.99 15.25 0.89
financial institutions
Current portion of lease liabilities 5.99 0.15 7.22 0.36 0.57 0.03
Deferred revenuefromsale of real estate 657.39 16.48 358.52 1791 7.61 0.44
Deferred revenue from contract work = = 1.38 0.07 1.38 0.08
Accrued expenses related to the projects 1.73 0.04 6.23 0.31 15.92 0.93
Cumulative and redeemable preference

611.40 15.33 - - - -
shares
Retention payables 25.92 0.65 - - 18.05 1.05
Other currentliabilities 2.92 0.07 3.20 0.16 1.36 0.08
Total currentliabilities 2,100.86 52.68 537.89 26.88 166.28 9.70




Statement of ComprehensiveIncome

Description

Million Baht

Million Baht

Million Baht

Statement of Cash Flows

fortheyear

Revenues fromsale of real estate = = 181.65 91.65 53.82 48.50
Revenues from contract work = = = = 31.43 28.32
Financeincome 0.47 12.98 0.37 0.19 1.26 1.14
Otherincome 3.15 87.02 16.18 8.16 24.46 22.04
Total revenues 3.62 100.00 198.20 100.00 110.97 100.00
Costof real estate sold = = 146.29 73.81 29.87 26.92
Costof contract work = = = = 22.65 20.41
Selling and distribution expenses 0.29 8.01 15.32 7.73 10.04 9.05
Administrative expenses 101.68 2,808.84 93.02 46.93 57.41 51.73
Severance pay = = = = 21.65 19.51
Finance cost 17.15 473.76 4.04 2.04 5.52 4.97
Share of loss frominvestmentinjoint
- - = - 5.43 4.89
venture
Total expenses 119.12 3,290.61 258.67 130.51 152.57 137.49
Loss beforeincome tax (115.50) | (3,190.61) (60.47) (30.51) (41.60) (37.49)
Income taxincome (expenses) 18.27 504.70 15.65 7.90 1.51 1.36
Lossfortheyear (97.23) | (2,685.91) (44.82) (22.61) (40.09) (36.13)
Other comprehensiveincome for the
(0.21) (5.80) 0.17 0.09 6.56 5.91
year -netofincome tax
Total comprehensiveincome
(97.44) | (2,691.71) (44.65) (22.53) (33.53) (30.22)

sS19N1S 2564 2563 2562

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (974.81) 114.38 (1,423.74)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (0.77) (7.27) 64.57
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 1,102.68 (47.48) 1,453.76
Netincreasein cash and cash equivalents 127.10 59.63 94.59
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 161.53 101.90 7.31
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the year 288.63 161.53 101.90
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1 Analysis of operating results and financial position

Overall Previous Operations

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited straighten to focus on only property
development business. In 2019, It invested in 2 new established subsidiaries, Hua Hin Alpha 71
Co.,Ltd. and Hua Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd. which will operate as developers of the residential real
estate. At present, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd. is developing the project “InterContinental
Residences Hua Hin”, the first luxury project in Thailand which would be managed by the
world-class brand “IHG”. The project is located on the last beachfront land 7-2-48.8 Rai in the
centerof HuaHinon PhetKasemRoad nexttoSoiHuaHin71.HuaHinSkyLiving Co.,Ltd.isinitially
developing residential condominium project on land 5-1-9.5 Rai which is located between Vana

Nava Water Jungle and Holiday Inn Resort Vana Nava Hua Hin.

In 2021, The Company invested in 2 new established subsidiaries, Proud Horseshoe Co.,
Ltd. and Convent Beta Co., Ltd. which will operate as developers of the residential real estate. At
present, Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. is initially developing low-rise residential project on land
1-0-22.2 Raiwhich is located on Soi Ari 3, Bangkok. Convent Beta Co., Ltd. is initially developing
residential condominium project on land 638.5 square wah which is located on Convent Road,

Silom, central business district(CBD) of Bangkok.

Regarding the Company has invested in Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd., Hua Hin Sky Living
Co.,Ltd. , Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. , and Convent Beta Co., Ltd. The Company has controlling
power. Therefore, the Company includes the financial statements of such companies in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by using
uniformaccounting policies. Sothat the transactions and the others event which are the same or

the similar circumstances have been used the identical policies torecord those transactions.

1.1 Operating Results

Revenues

The Company’s core business is property

Table of Source of Revenues

Description

developmentwhich revenue are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Property Development
] - 0% 181.65 92% | (181.65) (100%)
Business
Financeincome 0.47 13% 0.37 0% 0.10 27%
Other Revenues 3.15 87% 16.18 8% (13.03) (81%)
Total 3.62 100% 198.20 100% | (194.58) (98%)

Remark: Otherincome, whichareincomefromsales of "11

Property DevelopmentBusiness

1 1 Social Club”, and reversal of estimated cost, etc.

In 2021, the Company did not have the revenue from property development business.

At present, the new projects are under the construction. While in 2020, the Company

transferredthe ownership of 32 unitsin “Focus Ploenchit” condominiumto customerstotaling

avalue of Baht 181.65 million. So, the revenue decreased 100% as compared to the previous

year. The proportion of revenue form the prope
2020was 92%.

rty development business per total revenuein

Asof31December2021,theCompanyhadatradingvalueforsalesagreementsfor131

units of Baht 770 million and sales and purchase agreements for 1 unit of Baht 9 million that

customers would transfer ownership in 2022

purchase agreements as follows:

. The value according to the sales/sales and

Value of Sales/

Percentage of
Number of Total Sales Salesand
Agreements
Project Unitsofthe of the project Purchase I
value

project (Million Baht) Agreements

perTotal Sales
(Million Baht)

Focus Ploenchit 132 779 779 100




Moreover, As of 31 December 2021, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company had a trading value for sales and purchase agreements for 172 units of Baht 2,890
million that the customers would transfer ownership in future. The value according to the sales

and purchase agreements as follows:

Value of Sales/
Percentage of
Number of Total Sales Salesand
Agreements

Project Units of the of the project Purchase

value
project (Million Baht) Agreements

perTotal Sales
(Million Baht)

InterContinental Residences
HuaHin

238 3,778 2,890 76

Financeincome

Finance income were interest income from deposit at banks. In 2021, the Company had
financeincomeintheamountof Baht 0.47 millionwhichincreased by Baht 0.10 millionor27%as
comparetotheprioryearwhichwasBaht0.37 million.Theincrementwasaccordingtoincreasing

indeposit at banks.

Other Revenues

In 2021, the Company had other revenues in the amount of Baht 3.15 million which
decreased by Baht 13.03 million or 81% as compare to the previous year, which was Baht 16.18
million. The main decreasing was due to other incomes from reversal of estimated cost for
maintenance expense decreased by Baht 7.23 million, revenuefrom“111 Social Club” decreased
by Baht 2.04 million, and no gain on compensation received from insurance Baht 2.25 million
whichwasin 2020.

Expenses

The Company’s expenses consisted of cost of salesand expensesinselling of real estate,

administrative expenses, finance cost,and income tax expenses.

In 2021 and 2020, the Company had costs from property development business as

follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Description Increase (Decrease)
Revenues - N/A 181.65 100% | (181.65) (100%)
Cost = N/A 146.29 81% | (146.29) (100%)
Gross Profit - N/A 35.36 19% | (35.36) (100%)
Selling Expenses 0.29 N/A 15.32 8% | (15.03) (98%)
Profitafterselling expenses (0.29) N/A 20.04 11% | (20.33) (101%)

Cost of Property Development Business

In 2021, the Company did not have the revenue from property development business.
Therefore, the cost was decreased by Baht 146.29 millionor 100% as compared tothe previous

year. The cost of salesin 2020 was equal to 81% of revenue and gross profit margin was 19%.

Selling Expenses

In 2021, the Company had selling expenses in the amount of 0.29 million which
decreased by Baht 15.03 million or 98% as compared to the previous year. The significant
decreasewasduetothedecreasinginselling expenses (main expenses wasownership transfer
fee)andalsodecreasinginsalesand promotionexpensesforsupportsalesof projectthe “Focus

Ploenchit” condominium which was sold out.



(Unit: Million Baht)

Description
Administrative expenses 101.68 93.02 8.66 9%
Finance cost 17.15 4.04 13.11 325%
Income taxincome (expenses) 18.27 15.65 2.62 17%
Other comprehensiveincome forthe year -
_ (0.21) 0.17 (0.38) (224%)
net of incometax

Administrative expenses

In 2021, The Company’s administrative expenses was Baht 101.68 million, which
increased by Baht8.66 million or 9% as comparedtothe prior year, whichwas Baht93.02 million.
Mainincreasewasduetodepreciationand amortization expensesincreased byBaht 4.28 million
from increasing in fixed assets, staff costs and management’s benefits increased by Baht 2.89
million fromincreasingin staff number, the specificbusiness taxincreased by Baht 2.34
million from interest received from a subsidiary. While operating expenses at “111 Social Club”

andsales gallerydecreased by Baht 1.53 millionduetoitclosed since quarter 3 of 2021.

Finance cost

In 2021, The Company’s finance cost was Baht 17.15 million, which increased by Baht
13.11 million or 325% as compared to the previous years, which was Baht 4.04 million. Main
increase was due to recognition of the return on cumulative and redeemable preference shares
amountBaht15.25millionaccordingtoadoptionof TFRS 9: Financial Instruments. Whileinterest
of loan from financial institution decreased by Baht 2.22 million due to repayment of entire loan

according toownership transferred at the “Focus Ploenchit” condominiumin 2020.

Incometaxincome (expenses)

In 2021, the Company had income tax revenue in the amount of 18.27 million, which
increasedbyBaht2.62millionor17%ascomparedtotheprioryear,whichwasBaht 15.65 million.
The increment was due to adjustments of deferred tax assets of a subsidiary according to

increasing indeficit.

Other comprehensiveincome for the year-netofincometax

In 2021, the Company had other comprehensive loss for the year - net of income tax in

theamount of 0.21 million, consisted of actuarial loss Baht 0.26 million and related income tax

Baht 0.05 million. Net other comprehensive income decreased by Baht 0.38 millionor 224% as

compared to the prior year, which was Baht 0.17 million, consisted of actuarial gains 0.21

million and related income tax Baht 0.04 million. It came from adjustment of employee benefit

obligationsduetoadjustinformationand changesin financial assumptions.

1.2Financial Position

The Company’s financial position in 2021, when compared to 2020, had significant

changes as follows:

Assets (Unit: Million Baht)
Description
Cashand cashequivalents 288.63 161.53 127.10 79%
Otherreceivables 0.26 0.22 0.04 18%
Inventories 0.20 0.68 (0.48) (71%)
Real estate development costs 3,344.65 1,593.42 1,751.23 110%
Currenttaxassets 1.90 3.03 (1.13) (37%)
Other currentassets 280.27 184.76 95.51 52%
Total currentassets 3,915.91 1,943.64 1,972.27 101%
Restricted bank deposits 0.19 0.19 - 0%
Buildings and equipment 9.83 9.14 0.69 8%
Right-of-use assets 11.11 15.31 (4.20) (27%)
Intangible assets 4.60 4.99 (0.39) (8%)
Deferred tax assets 45.20 26.88 18.32 68%
Other non-currentfinancial assets 1.32 1.26 0.06 5%
Totalnon-currentassets 72.25 57.77 14.48 25%
Totalassets 3,988.16 2,001.41 1,986.75 99%
93



The Company had total assets as of 31 December 2021 in the amount of Baht 3,988.16
million, which increased by Baht 1,986.75 million or 99% as compare to the total assets as of the
endof2020,whichwasBaht2,001.41 million.ltwascategorizedintocurrentassetsintheamount
of Baht 3,915.91 million and non-current assets in the amount of Baht 72.25 million. The

significant changes were:

1. Real estate development costs as of 31 December 2021 consisted of:

(Unit: Million Baht)

InterContinental

Focus Other
Details Residences Hua
Ploenchit . Projects
Hin
Land 1.64 1,128.09 | 200.82 1,294.48 | 2,625.03
Construction costs 2.04 593.63 23.49 5.99 625.15
Capitalized borrowing costs 0.10 78.72 11.35 4.30 94.47
Total 3.78 1,800.44 | 235.66 1,304.77 | 3,344.65

Real estate development costs increased from 2020 because of new land for
development of subsidiaries. Moreover, the 2 residential projects of subsidiaries have

more project progress thanthe previous year.

2. Current tax assets was withholding income tax during the year, which
decreasedbyBaht 1.13 millionduetoin 2021, therewas not withholdingincometax from

transferred the ownership of “Focus Ploenchit” condominium.

3. Other current assets increased by Baht 95.51 million. Main increase was
due to prepaid sales and marketing management fees of subsidiaries increased by Baht
64.99 million. Moreover, there were increase in advance for purchase inventories and

servicesbyBaht21.50 millionandadvanceforfinancecostincreasedbyBaht9.37 million.

4. Right-of-useassets consisted of sales gallery spacerentalfor project “VEHHA” in
theamountofBaht7.60million, head officespacerentalintheamountofBaht2.41 million,and
vehicles lease in the amount of 1.10 million, totaling decreased by Bath 4.20 million. Main
decreasewasduetowrite-off of land lease for sales galleryand”111 Social Club”intheamount
of Baht2.98 million becausetheleaseagreementwasterminated,andsoldleasedvehicleinthe

amount of Baht 0.94 million.

5. Deferred tax assets increased by Baht 18.32 million due to adjustments of

accumulatedtaxloss of subsidiaries that expected to be utilized in the future.



Assets (Unit: Million Baht)
Description

Bank overdrafts 19.68 14.10 5.58 40%
Trade and other payables 673.89 47.42 626.47 1,321%
Current portion of long-term loans from financial e . e o
institutions

Current portion of lease liabilities 5.99 7.22 (1.23) (17%)
Deferred revenue fromsale of real estate 657.39 358.52 298.87 83%
Deferred revenue from contract work - 1.38 (1.38) (100%)
Accrued expensesrelated tothe projects 1.73 6.23 (4.50) (72%)
Cumulativeandredeemable preference shares 611.40 - 611.40 100%
Retention payables 25.92 = 25.92 100%
Other currentliabilities 2.92 3.20 (0.28) (9%)
Total currentliabilities 2,100.86 537.89 | 1,562.97 291%
Long-termloans from financial institutions, net of

current portion 1,258.91 738.88 520.03 70%
Lease liabilities, net of current portion 3.27 6.24 (2.97) (48%)
Provisionforlong-term employee benefits 2.05 1.14 0.91 80%
Provision for decommissioning costs 8.04 3.01 5.03 167%
Retention payables 19.11 20.89 (1.78) (9%)
Total non-current liabilities 1,291.38 770.16 521.22 68%
Total liabilities 3,392.24 | 1,308.05 | 2,084.19 159%

Asof 31 December 2021, the Company had total liabilitiesintheamount of Baht 3,392.24

million, which increased by Baht 2,084.19 million or 159% as compare to the total liabilities as of

theend of 2020, whichwas Baht 1,308.05 million. It was categorized into current liabilities in the

amount of Baht 2,100.86 million and non-current liabilities in the amount of Baht 1,291.38

million. The significant changes were:

1. Bank overdrafts increased by Baht 5.58 million due to there were more progress of

subsidiaries’ projectthat made morerelevant payments.

2.Tradeand other payablesincreased byBaht 626.47 million. Mainincrease was dueto
accrued cost of land amount Baht 550 million. Moreover, there were more progress of
subsidiaries’ project that made more transactions and outstanding balances at the end of the

year.

3.DeferredrevenuefromsaleofrealestateincreasedbyBaht298.87 million.ltwasfrom
advance received of the project “InterContinental Residences Hun Hin” increased in Baht
297.80 million and advance received from 1 unit of “Focus Ploenchit” condominium that the

ownership was not transferred to customer, increased by Baht 1.07 million.

4. Deferred revenue from contract work decreased in whole amount due to the
adjustment of transactions that the Company did not have to perform the remaining contract
work. However, the Company was not required to refund the said amount to the counterparty
because there has a consent to deduct it with retentions that the counterparty had already

deducted.

5. Accrued expenses related to the projects decreased by Baht 4.50 million. Main
decreased was due to the estimated cost for sales price guarantee of “Focus Ploenchit”
condominium decreased in Baht 2.23 million due to the Company paid the guarantee to
customers during the year. Moreover, there was rectification of condominium units according
to the guarantee in the amount of Baht 0.84 million, the reversal of estimated cost for
rectificationand maintenanceexpenseduetooutofwarrantyperiodintheamountofBaht1.43

million.

6. Cumulative and redeemable preference shares increased by Baht 611.40 million
becauseasubsidiaryissued preference sharesintheamountof Baht 600 million. Its deficitwas

Baht 3.85 million, and the recognition of return on preference shareswas Baht 15.25 million.

7. Long-term loans from financial institutions was in the amount of Baht 1,360.85
million. It was categorized into current portion, due date within one year in the amount of Baht
101.94andtheloans netof current portionintheamountofBaht 1,258.91 million, whichwere
formcreditfacilityforland purchaseanddeveloptheproject “InterContinental Residences Hun
Hin” of Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd., credit facility for land purchase of the project “VEHHA” of Hua
Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd., credit facility for land purchase of Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd., and credit
facility for land purchase and develop the project of Convent Beta Co., Ltd. The subsidiaries
mortgaged land of the projects with constructions to secure the loans and the Company
guaranteed the debt for such subsidiaries. Moreover, the Company has soft loan for the

operation. The details of the long-term loans from financial institutions as follows:



Balance

Credit Interest
asof
Facilities Rate
Project 31/12/21 | Period Repayment
(Million per
(Million
Baht) annum
Baht)
Paidin 12 monthly
within
installments, the first
Softloan 2.90 2.90 | Apr. 2.0 ) ) o
installmentwill be paid in May
2023
2022.
within
InterContinental When transfer right of
1,320.00 939.43 Dec. MLR-1.5
Residences HuaHin residential condominium unit.
2023
within
Paid in fullamount withinthe
VEHHA 100.00 100.00 May MLR-1.5 | )
time period.
2022
) within ) )
Project of Proud When transferright of title
172.70 100.00 Nov. MLR-2.0 )
Horseshoe Co.,Ltd. deed of each property unit.
2023
) Within )
Project of Convent When transferright of
1,385.00 220.00 Sep. MLR-1.5 ' ' o '
Beta Co.,Ltd. residential condominium unit.
2026
Total 2,980.60 | 1,362.33

Note: The loan balance before deducting the financing fee.

9. Provision for decommissioning costs was estimated demolition cost for

leasehold improvement of head office space and estimated demolition cost for right-of-use

salesgalleryspace of project “VEHHA”. Theincrementamount Baht 5.03 million camefromthe

project “VEHHA".

10.Retention payables in the amount of Baht 45.03 million. It was categorized into

current portion, due date withinone yearintheamountof Baht 25.92 millionand the after one

year butwithinfiveyearsintheamountofBaht19.11 million.Itincreased byBaht24.14 million

from prior year. Main increase was due to retention payables from construction of

“InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”

Shareholders' Equity

Asof 31 December2021 and 2020, the Company had a shareholders’ equity as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Duringtheyear,the Companyanditssubsidiaries had additional borrowings Baht522.33

millionand did not repayits loan.

8. Lease liabilities was in the amount of Baht 9.26 million. It was categorized into
currentportion,duedatewithinoneyearintheamountofBaht5.99 millionandtheafteroneyear
butwithinfiveyearsintheamountofBaht3.27 million.ItdecreasedtotalingbyBaht4.20 million.
Maindecreasewasduetowrite-offlandleaseforsalesgalleryand”111 Social Club”intheamount
of Baht 3.10 million because the lease agreement was terminated. Further, there was lease

liabilities for space rental for sales gallery of project “VEHHA” in the amount of Baht 6.49 million

Description

Registered share capital 673.15 673.15 - -
Issued and fully paid-up share

641.47 641.47 - ;
capital
Share premium 263.63 263.63 - -
Deficits (309.18) (211.74) (97.44) 46%
Totalshareholders' equity 595.92 693.36 (97.44) (14%)

As of 31 December 2021, the Company had a shareholders’ equity of Baht 595.92
million, whichdecreased by Baht97.44 million or 14% as comparedtotheshareholders’ equity
as of theend of 2020, which was Baht 693.36 million. It was due to loss for the year 2021 Baht
97.23 millionand other comprehensive loss Baht 0.21 million. Therefore, deficits increased by
Baht97.44 millionfromBaht211.74 millionto Baht 309.18 million.



1.3 Cash flow and liquidity

(Unit: Million Baht)

Description
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (974.81) 114.38
Net cash flows used ininvesting activities (0.77) (7.27)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 1,102.68 (47.48)
Netincreasein cash and cash equivalents 127.10 59.63
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year 161.53 101.90
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the year 288.63 161.53

As of 31 December 2021, the Company had a cash and cash equivalents balance in the
amount of Baht 288.63 million with an increase in net cash flows in the amount of Baht 127.10

million, which consisted of:

1. Net cashusedinoperatingactivitieswasintheamountof Baht974.81 million. The
main transactions came from the increase in real estate development costs (exclude capitalized
borrowing costs) in the amount of Baht 1,166.71 million, increase in other current assets in the
amount of Baht 84.12 million, and cash paid for interest expenses Baht 35.20 million. While cash
flowsincreasedfromincreaseindeferred revenuefromsale of real estate of asubsidiary’s project

intheamount of Baht 298.86 million.

2. Net cash used in investing activities was in the amount of Baht 0.77 million. The

main transactions came from cash paid for acquisition of equipment and intangible assets.

3. Net cash from financing activities was in the amount of Baht 1,102.68 million. The
main transactions came from cash received fromissuance of preference shares of a subsidiary in
theamountofBaht600millionand cashreceivedfromlong-termloansfromfinancialinstitutions
inthe amount of 522.33 million. Further, there was cash paid for front-end fee and transaction

costforissuance of preference sharesintheamountof Baht 17.15 million,

The Company’s liquidity ratio in 2021 was equal 1.86 times, which decreased by 1.75

timeswhencomparedwith 2020, whichwasequalto 3.61times.Thedecreaseoftheratiopartly

came fromtheincreasein trade and other payables, deferred revenue from sale of real estate,

and cumulative and redeemable preference shares which were classified as current liabilities.

Thatcausecurrentliabilitieswasinhigher proportionthan currentassets. Mainfundingsource

oftheCompanycamefromlong-termloansand capitalfromshareholders. Therefore, the debt-

to-equityratioas of 31 December 2021 was equal to 5.69 timed, which increased as compared

tothe previous year, whichwas equal to 1.89 times.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Company and its subsidiary had commitments and

contingentliabilities as follows:

1.

3.1.

3.2.

4.

Commitments in respect of service agreements payable in the future

The Group had commitments in respect of service agreements payable in the future,
which the terms of the agreements are generally between 1 and 3 years of
approximately Baht 6 million (2020: Baht 19 million).

. Commitments with respect to project development and related services

The Group had commitments in respect of property development cost and related
services totaling Baht 601 million (2020: Baht 480 million).

. Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed bank credit facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to
Baht 3,833 million (2020: Baht 1,450 million)

As at 31 December 2021, there were outstanding bank guarantees of
approximately Baht 0.3 million (2020: Baht 4 million) issued by banks on behalf of
the Company to guarantee contractual performance.

Other commitment

On 22 November 2019, a subsidiary company entered into a sales and marketing
license agreement with Intercontinental Hotel Group (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. The
subsidiary company is obligated to comply with the conditions stipulated in the
agreement whereby it shall pay 3% of revenue generated by sales of condominium

units



2. Main factors and influences that might affect the operations or financial status
in the future

TheProperty developmentbusinessisabusinesswithagoodrateof returneventhough
there are factors that affect the operation in terms of finding potential land at a suitable price,
location, design, and price, which must respond with the demands of the target customer.
Hence, the Company sees a trend in the real estate market for customers who want to have a
residence in town scenery with a distance that is not too far from Bangkok. Therefore, the
Companyhasthe policytoexpandinvestmentinthevertical property development, especially
in the area of Hua Hin District, Prachuap Khiri Khan Province. The Company had invested in
subsidiariesin order to develop residential condominium projects in such area, which focus on

target customers that have high purchasing power.

During 2021, there still was the Coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic that is adversely
impacting most businesses and industries. This situation may bring uncertainties and have an
impact onthe environmentin which the Company operates. The Company’s management has
continuouslymonitoredongoingdevelopmentsandassessedthefinancialimpactinrespectof
the valuation of assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, and has used suitable estimates

andjudgementinrespect of various issues as the situation has evolved.

Disclosure of Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ Remuneration

1. Audit Fee
The Company and its subsidiaries paid the audit fee to the office, EY Office Limited
during the previous accounting period for the total amount of Baht 2,350,000.

2. Non-Audit Fee

-None-



PPPPP

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
OTHER SIGNIFICANT INFORMATION

PPPPP



Company Information

SecuritiesIssuer Company :
Symbol :

Type of Business :
Registration Number :
Registered Capital :
Paid-Up Capital :
Type of Shares :

Par Value Per Share :

Head Office :

Tel :

Fax :

Website :
Listedonthe MAI :

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited
PROUD

Property development

0107545000331

673,148,951 sharesas of 31 December 2021
Baht 641,468,952 asof 31 December 2021
Common

Baht 1 pershare

900 Tonson Tower Building Floor 6, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,
Patumwan, Bangkok 10330

0-2035-0999

0-2035-0998

www.proudrealestate.co.th

5 October 2004

AsofDecember 31,2021, the Company held over 10 percentoftheissued shares of the

following companies:

1) CompanyName :
Type of Business :
Registration Number :

Registered Capital :

Paid-Up Capital :
Type of Shares :
Par Value Per Share :
Head Office :

Percentage of Shareholding :

2) CompanyName :
Typeof Business :
Registration Number :
Registered Capital :

Paid-Up Capital :

Typeof Shares

Par Value Per Share :

Head Office :

Percentage of Shareholding :

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited

Property development

0105562068876

6,000,000 preferred shares

and 2,000,000 common shares as of 31 December 2021
Baht 800,000,000 as of 31 December2021
Preferredand Common

Baht 100 pershare

900 Tonson Tower Building Floor 6, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,
Patumwan, Bangkok 10330

99.99%

Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited

Property development

0105562068957

10,000sharesasof 31 December2021

Baht 250,000 as of 31 December 2021

Common

Baht 100 pershare

900 Tonson Tower Building Floor 6, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,
Patumwan, Bangkok 10330

99.97%



3) CompanyName :
Type of Business :
Registration Number :
Registered Capital :

Paid-Up Capital :

Typeof Shares :

Par Value Per Share :

Head Office :

Percentage of Shareholding :

4) CompanyName :
Type of Business :
Registration Number :
Registered Capital :

Paid-Up Capital :

Typeof Shares

Par Value Per Share :

Head Office :

Percentage of Shareholding :

Proud Horeshoe Company Limited

Property development

0105564071882

200,000 sharesas of 31 December 2021

Baht 20,000,000 as of 31 December 2021

Common

Baht 100 pershare

900 Tonson Tower Building Floor 6, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,
Patumwan, Bangkok 10330

99.99%

Convent Beta Company Limited

Property development

0105564122312

10,000 sharesasof 31 December 2021

Baht 1,000,000 as of 31 December 2021

Common

Baht 100 pershare

900 Tonson Tower Building Floor 6, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,
Patumwan, Bangkok 10330

99.97%

Other ReferencePersons

Securities Registrar :

Auditor :

Thailand Security Depository Company Limited.
93 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400
Tel. (662) 009-9000 Fax (662) 009-9991

Auditor for the Fiscal Year Ended 31 December 2020
Miss Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Account Registration No. 4604

EY Office Limited
193/136-137,33rdFloor, Lake Rachada Office Complex,

New Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel: (66 2) 2640777,Fax: (66 2) 2640790
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Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited is an organization that is managed efficiently
in business operations, good corporate governance, and excellent management by conducting
businesswith responsibility, ethics, transparency, and accountability. The company determined
to benefit for shareholders and taking into account all stakeholders in order to build trust and

sustainable growth together.

Corporate Governance Policies

The Company has established Good Corporate Governance policies in writing and
reviewedtheaforementioned policiesonaregularbasis. Thegood corporate governancepolicies
have been conducted based on the Stock Exchange of Thailand Principles of Good Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies 2012 (CG Principles) and the Securities and Exchange
Commission Code of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies 2017 (CG Code) with the
purpose of creating benefits for the business sustainably to meet the aims of business sectors,

investors, including capital market and overall society

In addition, the Company has also prepared code of conduct and business ethics for
directors,themanagement, and employees of the Company, and monitored the compliance with
Good Corporate Governance policies, code of conduct and business ethics for directors, the
management, and employees of the Company, as well as best practices regularly. Moreover, the

Company hasalso used publicrelations toinform all employees throughout the organization.

1 Overview of Good Corporate Governance Principles

The Company has established the principles of good corporate governance of the Group.

It consists of 15 sections as follows:

Section 1 Policy and Code of Conduct on Shareholders’ Rights and Equitable
Treatment to Shareholders

The Companyrealizesanimportancetotreat shareholders equally. The Company has set
up aprocessand channel for minority shareholders to participate inthe selection and election of
directors before the general meeting of shareholders by allowing shareholders to propose
meeting agenda, nominate a person to be elected as a director and ask questions in advance
beforethe meetingdateanddisclosed suchcriteriatoshareholdersinadvance.and publishedon

the company's website as well.

Inaddition,onthedayoftheshareholders'meeting,the Board of Directors has ensured
that the meeting was conducted in an orderly, transparent, efficient manner and allowed
shareholdersto exercise theirrights to the fullest extent, for example, ensuring that the notice
of the shareholders' meeting contained accurate, complete and sufficient information, do not
add unnecessarily unannounced agendas and disclose the resolutions of the shareholders'
meeting together with the voting results within the next business day via the information

system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. and the Company's website.

Section 2 Policy and Code of Conduct on the Roles of Stakeholders

The Company conducts business with ethics, responsibility for society and the
environmentanddoesnotviolatetherightsof stakeholders.Itisaguidelineforeverypartofthe
organization to be able to achieve the main objectives and goals that are sustainable. The
Company's policy covers all stakeholders, i.e. responsibility to shareholders, customers,
trading partners, creditors, competitors, employees, and to communities, society and the

environment.

Section 3 Policy and Code of Conduct on Disclosure of Information and
Transparency

This policy is consistent with Principle 7 on Maintaining Financial Credibility and
Disclosure of the Good Corporate Governance Principles for Listed Companies 2017 (CG Code).
The Company’s Financial reports and disclosures of important information are accurate,

adequate, timelyandinaccordancewith relevantrules, standards and practices.

Section 4 Policy and Code of Conduct on the Responsibilities of the Board
of Directors, Chairman of the Board,

Managing Director and Sub-Committees

The Board of Directors understands and recognizes the responsibility as a leader to
oversee theorganization'sgood managementand s responsible for ensuring thatall directors
perform their duties with responsibility, caution and integrity to the organization. And they
supervise the operation in accordance with the law Articles of Association and Resolutions of

the Shareholders' Meeting



This section of the policy defines the responsibilities of the Board of Directors, Chairman
of the Board,

Managing Director and Sub-Committees. It covers the nomination and remuneration of
directorsandexecutives,independence of the Board of Directorsfromthe management, director
development and evaluating the performance of the directors including supervision of

subsidiaries and associated companies.

Section 5 Policy and Code of Conduct on Human Resource Management and
Development

The Company realizes that employees are the most important human resource to the
Company. The key drive to future further success. The Company has set specific guidelines for
human resource management and development, such as managing employees' compensation
for fairness and equality, promoting and supporting employees to receive internal and external

training, etc.

Section 6 Policy and Code of Conduct on Accounting and Finance

The Company realizes that accounting and financial records must be accurate, complete,

truthfuland can be audited.

Section 7 Policy and Code of Conduct on Internal Control

TheCompanyhasariskmanagementandinternalcontrolsystemtoeffectivelyachieveits

objectives and comply with relevant laws and standards.

Section 8 Policy and Code of Conduct on Related Party Transactions

The Companywill considerthe proceedingsrelatingtoconnected transactionsaccurately
andtransparently and discloseinformation completely. The Companyhasestablished a practice

guideline for directors, executives and employees to perform properly.

Section 9 Policy and Code of Conduct on Anti-Fraud and Corruption

The company has a policy against all forms of corruption, whereby all directors,
executives and employees will not get involved or participate in any corruption. They will not
bribe or accept bribes or seek any unlawful benefit and good morals in any form, whether
directly or indirectly. And the Company regularly review the compliance with the

Anti-Corruption Policy.

Section 10 Policy and Code of Conduct on Non-Violation of Intellectual
Property

The Company has a policy and code of ethics not to support any actions that are
infringement of intellectual property rights. Therefore, it has been established as a guideline.
For example, resulting from the performance of duties of executives and employees will be the
Company's intellectual property. The Company does not allow the use of the work or any
software or computer program that infringes intellectual property rights in the Company's

work.

Section 11 Policy and Code of Conduct on Non-Violation of Human Rights

The Company has a policy and code of conduct that does not violate human rights. The
Company will not act in any way that discriminates or discriminates against a person on the
basis of a person's gender, race, religion, status. economic or social status, etc. The Company
will apply policies and codes of conduct in employment assignment promotion and

compensationforworking aswell.

Section 12 Policy and Code of Conduct on Whistle Blowing

The Company ensures that there is a mechanism for receiving complaints and taking
action in case of whistleblowing when employees see actions that may be considered

corruptionrelated tothe Company.



Section 13 Policy and Code of Conduct on the Safety, Health and
Environment

The company is aware of safety Occupational Health and Work Environment of
Employees. The accident and occupational illnesses are preventable by setting a policy for all

employeestofollow.

Section 14 Policy on Management Succession Plan

In order to operate the business continuously The Board of Directors has established a
succession plan to prepare for the succession of senior executives in the event that the position

becomesvacantorunabletoperformduties.

In addition, the Company has a job rotation plan for employees in key positions of the
Company to have the opportunity to learn jobs in other departments, attend the Board of
Directors'meetings or sub-committeesin orderto, preparethe successor asthe Company deems

appropriate.

Section 15 Policy on the Board Meetings

The Company arranges for meetings and agendas of the Board of Directors inadvance so
that the directors can manage their time and attend the meetings. The number of meetings will
considerappropriatewith theduties and responsibilities of the Board of Directorsand the nature

of the Company's business.

2 Code of conduct (if any)

The Company has prepared a business ethics and code of conduct manual for directors,
executives and employees of the Company. The Company monitor the compliance with the good
corporate governance policy, business ethics and code of conduct for directors, executives and
employeesoftheCompanyonaregularbasis,aswellas publicizingallemployeesthroughoutthe

organization.

3 Significant changes and developments in policies, practices, and
corporate governance systems in the past year

The Company reviews the good corporate governance principles and the code of
conductannuallyinordertoincrease the efficiency of governanceand beinline with the Good
Corporate Governance Principles for Listed Companies 2017 (CG Code) in accordance with the

guidelines set by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Other practicesinaccordance with good corporate governance principles

Section 1 Rights of Shareholders

TheCompanyrealizesandrecognizestheimportanceandrightsofallshareholders,and
to ensure the basic equal legitimate rights of shareholders such as the right to attend
shareholders’ meetings and the right to receive sufficient, accurate, complete, and timely

information. The Company supports therights of shareholders as follows:

1. The 2021 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company has promoted and
supported all groups of shareholders including institutional investors to attend the
meeting by proceeding as follows:

Procedures beforethe Date of Shareholders’ Meeting

The Company gives shareholders the opportunity to propose the meeting agenda,
nominateapersontobeelectedasadirectorandsendquestionsinadvanceofthe2019 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, in which the Company has announced the criteria on the
Company’s website and also notify through information disclosure system of the Stock

Exchange of Thailand to shareholders.

The Company published the Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and
related documents in both Thaiand English in advance more than 14 days before the meeting
on the Company’s website and send Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which
clearlyspecifiesthedate, time,venueandagendatogetherwith proxyformandsupplementary
documents for each agenda including the Company’s Articles of Association relating to the

Shareholders’ Meeting in both Thai and English more than 14 days prior to the meeting, with



sufficient information of each meeting agenda and also provided the opinion of the Board of

Directorsforshareholderstomakeadecisioninexercisingvotingrights.Inaddition,theCompany

has notified the details, documents and evidence that shareholders or proxies have to presentin

order to protect their rights to attend the shareholders’ meeting. In the event that the

shareholders were unable to attend the shareholders’ meeting, share- holders were able to

appointanindependentdirectorofthe Companyorany personstoattendthe meetingandvotes

through the proxy formin which shareholders could specify the voting direction

Procedures onthe Date of Shareholders’ Meeting

¢ The Company determined the date, time and location of the meeting that was

appropriate so that shareholders could easily to attend the meeting.

¢ The Company has provided sufficient and appropriate officers to facilitate the
shareholders for inspection the meeting documents including providing stamp duties as

well.

¢ The Company provided a barcode system registration to ensure the accuracy,
convenience, and speed, and to notify the number and proportion of shareholders
attending the meeting in person and by proxy. Clear voting methods and vote counting
in which voting and vote counting were conducted openly. The company has provided a
barcode system for vote counting and display the results which help the meeting

conducted efficiently and rapidly.

¢ The Company has appointed external legal advisors to oversee the meeting to be
transparent and in accordance with the laws, regulations, and Article of Association of

the Company.

¢ The Company conducted the meeting in accordance with the agenda specified in the

notice of the shareholders’ meeting and did not add any agendas to the meeting.

¢ The Company allocated sufficient time and allowed the shareholders to express
opinions and ask questions. The directors and executives of the Company have

completely explained and provided various information to shareholders.

¢ The Company using voting ballots in every agenda. In accordance with the best
practice in holding a shareholders’ meeting, the Company requested all shareholders
and proxies who attending the meeting return all remaining voting ballots to the

Company as evidence and could be rechecked.
¢ The Company provided the video recording of the meeting.
& Procedures after the Date of Shareholders’ Meeting

¢ The Company notified the meeting resolution and voting results for each agenda
through the information disclosure system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and on

the Company’s website on the date of the shareholders’ meeting.

& The Company has recorded the minutes of the meeting correctly and completely
and has sent to the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days after the meeting date,

published on the Company website as well.

. Providing important and necessary information to shareholders by dis-closing

information on the Company’s website and through the information disclosure
system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand in order for the shareholders to be
informed of the information thoroughly.

Section 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

1. The Company realized an importance to treat shareholders equally. The Company has

set up a process and channel for minority shareholders to participate in the selection
and election of directors before the general meeting of shareholders by allowing
shareholders to propose meeting agenda, nominate a person to be elected as a
director and ask questions in advance before the meeting date as per the Company’s
criteria during the period of 27 January 2019 - 29 February 2020. There were no
shareholders proposed any matters to be included in the meeting agenda or
nominated a person to be elected as a director.



2. The Company has a written policy to prevent the use of inside information as a guideline

for keeping and preventing the use of internal information of the Company. The
Company notified the employees, executives, and directors for acknowledgement and
must strictly comply with the policy. In the year 2019, there were no directors,
executives, and employees using the company’s inside information to seek benefits for
themselves.

The Company has clearly set out the connected transactions policy. The connect
transaction was a transaction between the Company and the person who may have
conflict of interest. The Audit Committee provided opinions on the necessity of entering
into the transaction and will proceed in accordance with the notification of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board and the notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand which
must be approved by the management or the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the
case may be. The connected transactions were done fairly, market price and in
accordance with the normal course of business. In the case that there is no comparison
market price, the said connected transaction must have reasonable price for the
maximum benefits of the Company and shareholders.

The company does not have a policy to provide financial assistance to companies that
are not subsidiaries. Except in the case of granting loans or guarantee loans in
proportion to the shareholding in accordance with the joint venture agreement

The Company has set out the conflict of interest policy, by disclosing the interest of
directors and executives in order to provide the information to the Company to perform
according to the requirements regarding connected transactions, which may cause
conflicts of interest and may lead to the transfer of benefits.

Section 3 Roles of Stakeholders

Conduct” handbook as practice guidelines in conjunction with the corporate rules and

The Company recognizes the rights of all stakeholders disclosed to the “Code of Business

regulations, ethics, morality andintegrity in a constructive manner. Details are as follows:

Treatment of Stakeholders

1. Treatment of and Responsibility to Shareholders

The Companyawarethattheshareholdersareownersofthebusinessandthe Company

hasadutytobringvalueadditiontotheminthelongterm, the Companyrequiresitsemployees

tocomply with the following guidelines:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

To perform their duties with integrity, and carefully and prudently make decisions
that are fair to every shareholder for the benefit of shareholders as a whole.

To oversee the operations to ensure that the Company has good financial status
and operating performance, and that the reports on corporate position, operating
results, financial and accounting status along with other matters are prepared and
presented regularly and accurately.

To report to all shareholders on future trends, both positive and negative, of the
Company based on feasibility projections supported by sufficient and rational
information.

Not to use non-public information for personal or other persons’ gain, or to
perform any acts in a manner that may lead to conflicts of interest.

The Company shall treat every shareholder equally at a shareholders’ meeting.

2. Treatment of and Responsibility to Government Sector

The Company places significance on compliance with the laws, rules and regulations of

the government sector, particularly in undertaking its business transactions. The Company

avoids any acts that may induce improper conduct of the government authorities or officials.

Instead, it shall focus on developing mutually good relationships with them in an appropriate

and permitted manner, suchasmeetingsinpublic placesandgreetingson customaryor festive

occasions. Practices areasfollows:

2.1.

2.2,

To act properly when contacting government officials or authorities.

To always be aware that the laws, rules or regulations of different government
authorities may vary in conditions, processes or procedures, and the Company
shall strictly comply with them.



3. Treatment of and Responsibility to Employees

The Company realizes at all times that all employees are the most valuable resources and

crucial to the achievement of corporate goals, the Company establishes a policy toward fair

treatment in terms of job opportunities, remuneration, appointment, transfer and capacity

development, based onthefollowing practices

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

To treat all employees with respect for their honor, dignity and personal rights.
To keep the work environment safe for the lives and properties of its employees.

The appointment, transfer, reward and punishment of employees shall be done in
good faith, based on the knowledge, competency and qualifications of such
employees.

To put emphasis on the enhancement of employees’ knowledge and capacity by
arranging regular seminars and trainings and also giving them equal opportunities.

To set employee remuneration fairly based on market conditions, business
competition, nature of duty, operating performance, and the Company’s financial
capacity.

To avoid any unfair acts that may affect job security of employees.

To give employees an opportunity to make recommendations or complaints
regarding their work, and to seek pertinent solutions in order to bring benefits to all
parties and develop good relationships among colleagues

4. Treatment of and Responsibility to Customers

The Company earnestly undertakes the real estate development business with an aim to

present to its customers creative products and services managed based on high standards

alongside ethical conduct. Toachieve this, the Company has laid down the following practices;

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

To supply and develop products and services that fulfill customer needs.
To deliver high quality products and services under fair conditions.

To provide correct and sufficient information of its products and services so that
customers can make informed decisions; and not to make an overstatement either in
advertisements or other communications with customers that may mislead them over

the quality, quantity or any conditions of the products and services.

4.4.

4.5.

5.

To put in place a feedback and complaint procedure for customers, so that the
Company can address and resolve the said problems promptly and also use the
information to improve or develop its products and services.

information

Treatment of and Responsibility to Suppliers and Contractual Parties

The Company treats suppliers and contractual parties as important business partners

and success factors, the Company hasa policy totreatthemonthe basis of fairness and mutual

benefits, under the following practices:

5.1.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

The Company intends to attain an efficient supply of products and services under
the following principles:

¢ To compete based on equal information provided.
& To set criteria for assessment and selection of suppliers and contractual parties.
¢ To prepare contracts with proper and fair terms to both parties.

¢ To set a management and monitoring system to ensure full compliance with the
contractual terms and to prevent corruptive actions throughout the procurement

process.

¢ To make punctual payments to suppliers and contractual parties in accordance

with the agreed terms of payment.

The Company is intent on developing and maintaining sustainable relationships
with the suppliers and contractual parties who have a clear objective of attaining
price worthy quality of their products and services in tandem with mutual trust.

All executives and employees avoid accepting directly or indirectly gifts or rewards
having the value of more than 3,000 Baht.

Not to use the information obtained in the course of procurement for personal or
another persons’ interest.



The Company has criteriafor selecting suppliers with the following qualifications:

¢ Meet the criteria that the Company determines both quality, price, delivery schedule

and service

¢ Compliance with laws, having ethical standards of society and pay attention to

human rights, society and environment

¢ Having good business conditions, stable financial status and can be checked. The
suppliers have a  reliable business history and have not banning trade due to

corruption or in the list of banned companies of government and private sectors

¢ Comply with the policies and rules set by the Company

6. Treatment of and Responsibility to Creditors

The Company is committed to operating its business in accordance with principles and

disciplineinorderto build trust for creditors by adhering to the following principles:

6.1. To strictly comply with the conditions stipulated under contracts or as mutually
agreed.

6.2. In case that the agreed conditions cannot be complied with, the Company will inform
its creditors in advance to jointly consider solutions.

The Company will treat creditors with responsibility and fairness by adhering to best
practices according to the terms and conditions of the contract, guarantee conditions, capital
managementanddebtrepayment,timeline, aswellasfinancialobligationsstrictly. Moreover, the
Companywillnotconcealinformationorfactsthatwillresultindamagetocreditorsandwill report
financial status to creditors in accordance with the terms and conditions of the loan contract

correctly, completely, without distorting the facts.

7. Treatment of and Responsibility to Competitors

The Company is intent on undertaking its business toward sustainable success and
business leadership, while competing in the industry fairly and ethically under the following

practices:
7.1. To engage in fair competition.

7.2. Not to seek confidential information of its competitors by dishonest or improper
means to benefit the Company’s business operations.

7.3. Not to make a malicious accusation against or bring discredit on its competitors.

7.4. Not to perform any acts that infringe intellectual property rights of other persons
or competitors.

8. Treatment of and Responsibility to Society

The Company pays attention to community and society, the Company values the
importance of sustainable development of its neighboring communities, the society and
environment.Ilthastherefore carried outsocialand community activities continuallyalongside

socially responsible business operations, as follows:

8.1. To adopt a policy on eco-conscious business operations and to strictly comply with
applicable environmental laws and rules.

8.2. To adopt a clear corporate social responsibility (CSR) policy, which is implemented
across-the- board.

8.3. To promote among employees the awareness of and responsibility to the
environment and society.

8.4. To have respect for the tradition, custom and culture of each locality in which the
Company operates.

8.5. Toregularly carry out social, community and environmental activities, either
organized on its own or in cooperation with the government, private and
community sector organizations, in order to help improve the quality of life in the
communities in which the Company’s operations are located.



8.6. To cooperate, as appropriate, with activities of neighboring communities in the areas
in which the Company operates.

8.7. Torespond promptly and efficiently to incidents, arisen from the Company’s
operations, that affect the environment, communities, lives and properties of the
locals, by cooperating fully with relevant government authorities and agencies.

8.8. To adopt an anti-corruption policy, which prohibits the Company’s personnel from
engaging in all forms of bribery, either directly or indirectly, by offering, promising,
soliciting, demanding, giving or accepting bribes or exhibiting any behaviors
indicative of misconduct or corruption, in an attempt to gain or retain any other
improper business benefits either for the Company’s personnel or a third party.
Particularly in the giving of gifts, assets or other benefits to government officials in
Thailand and other countries, it must be ensured that such giving is not against the
laws and local traditions.
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Corporate Governance Structure and important information about the Boards of
Directors, Sub-committees, Management, employees and others

1. Corporate Governance Structure

As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s corporate governance structure is clear,
balancedandaccountable.Thestructure of companyconsistsoftheBoard of Directorsand 3 sub-
committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee and the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee asfollows;

Board Of Directors

Nomination and

Audit Committee Executive Committee . .
Remuneration Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Internal Audit

Business . . Sales, Marketing and _ - _
Project Development Project Development _ Finance and Administrative
Development and L L Customer Service _ L. L
L Division (Team A) Division (Team B) o Accounting Division Division
Strategy Division Division

2. Board of Directors Information

2.1 TheBoard of Directors Structure

At present, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 8 persons, consisting of;
¢ 7 non-executive directors, representing 87.5% of the total number of directors.
¢ 3 independent directors, representing 37.5% of the total number of directors.
¢ 1 Executive Director

¢ Two female directors representing 25% of the total number of directors.

According to the Company's Articles of Association and principles of good corporate
governance of the Group, the Board of Directors Consisting of at least 5 directors and not more
than 12 directors appointed and removed by the shareholders' meeting. The Board should
ensurethatthe Boardis made up of directors with diverse qualifications, both interms of skills,
experiences, abilities and specific characteristics as well as gender and age that necessary to
achieve the objectives and the main goals of the organization by preparing the skills matrix of
thedirectorstoensurethattheywillgetaqualified overallcommittee canunderstand and meet

the needs of the stakeholders. And at least one non-executive director with experience in

business or mainindustriesin which the company operate. The Details are as follows;
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2.2 TheBoard of Directors Authorized SignatoryDirectors

Asof 31 December 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors consists of 8 directors as follows: Theauthorized signatorydirectorsare Mr. Verapong Chaiperm or Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop

E—— or Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop or Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen, two of these four jointly sign and
ateo
affixthe Company's seal.

Position appointmentas

adirector Directors’ Qualifications and Term of Office
Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chairman of Audit Committee and Directors shall exhibit proper qualifications, not possessing prohibited characteristics
1. | Mr.Anuwat Maytheewibulwut | Chairman of Nomination and 13May 2020 as per the requirements of the Board of Directors, the securities and exchange law, the public
Remuneration Committee limited companies law, the anti-corruption law, and other concerned laws. The term of office of
(Independent Director) adirectorshallbe asfollows
Vice Chairman of the Board of
> Mr.Verapong Chaiperm Directors and Chairman of Executive 13 May 2020 1. At every annual general meeting of shareholders, at least one-third of the
Committee directorsshallretire.Ifthenumberofthedirectorsisnotamultipleofthree,thenumbernearest

. . . toone-third shallretire from office. Aretiring director may be re-elected foranother term.
Director ,Executive Committee and

3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Nomination and Remuneration 13 May 2020 . .
2. If there is a vacancy on the Board of Directors for any reason other than a
Committee
retirement by rotation,the Board of Directors shall select a person with characteristics
A S PO AU LREEers Director and Executive Committee 1SiEy 2020 according to law as a substitute director for the next Board of Directors’ meetings, unless the
Directorand Nominationand ini i i i i
5 Mr.Anucha Sihanatkathakul ' ' 2015 remaining term of office of the vacating director is less than two months. The newly appointed
Remuneration Committee director shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the director whom he or she
Director and Audit Committee i i i i
6. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul . 13 May 2020 replaces. Such appointment must be approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors with a
(Independent Director) vote of not less than three-fourths of the number of the subsisting directors. suitable
Director and Audit Committee 23 Februar : : : i
7 Vi [BER SErrrE . Y qualifications and without prohibited.
(Independent Director)) 2021
Director ,Executive Committee and Any director wishing to resign from office shall submit a resignation letter to the
8. | Mr.PumipatSinacharoen ] ) 13May 2020 . .
Chief Executive Officer Company. Theresignation

shall be effective from the date on which the resignation letter reaches the Company.

The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution to remove a particular director from



office prior to him/her retiring by rotation with at least three-fourths of the total votes of the
shareholders present at the meeting and having the right to vote, provided that the combined
number of the shares shall not be less than one-half of the total shares held by the shareholders

present atthe meeting and havingtherighttovote.

2.3TheBoard of Directors’ Roleand Duties

The duties of the Board of Directors and the management are clearly separated from each
other. In order to comply with the law, objectives, articles of association and resolutions of the
shareholders'meeting, the principles of good corporate governance of the Group have stipulated
theroles, dutiesand responsibilities of the Board of Directors. The key points can be summarized

asfollows:

Therolesandresponsibilities of the Board of Directors as stipulated in the Group Corporate

GovernancePrinciplesareasfollows:
1. TheBoard of Directors’ Scope of Authority and Duties

¢ To determine and review the structure of the Board of Directors regarding the number
of directors. Independent Director Ratio including a variety of features to suit the

company's business operations
¢ To identify main objectives and goals in support of business sustainability

¢ To consider the operating master plan, budget, business goals and policies, as well as
develop the company's capabilities.

¢ To monitor and supervise the implementation of the Company's strategy. and follow
up on the company's performance measurement by requiring that operating results be
reported regularly .

¢ To manage the company in accordance with the law, objectives, and regulations of the
company. Board resolution and resolutions of the shareholders' meeting

¢ To determine risk management policies and supervise risk management. as well as
regularly review and evaluate the risk management system.

¢ To supervise and develop the Company's corporate governance in accordance with the
guidelines of the SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

¢ To encourage employees at all levels to have awareness of ethics and morality. and
follow the principles of good corporate governance and the Company's anti-corruption
policy as well as supervise to have an internal control system and appropriate internal
audits to reduce the risks of fraud and abuse of power. including preventing illegal acts

¢ Take care of the interests of both major and minor shareholders. as well as to
encourage shareholders to exercise their rights to protect their interests and to
supervise the Company to disclose important information accurately, completely,

transparently, verifiable and timely.

& To supervise that there is an effective process and channel for receiving and dealing
with complaints of those who wish to report whistleblowers or all stakeholders. and
giving opportunities for all stakeholders to contact Complain about matters that may
cause problems directly to the Board of Directors.

¢ To consider the senior management development plan and the CEO succession plan.
and supervise to have an annual performance appraisal of senior management. and has
a prudent, transparent, and transparent system of remuneration for senior
management in line with their responsibilities and performance in order to create
incentives for both short-term and long-term.

¢ To evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors annually. and regularly
review the performance appraisal form of directors and sub-committees.

& To supervise the process of nomination and election of persons to be directors with
transparency. and the remuneration of directors and sub-committees is set
appropriately.

¢ Attending board meetings and shareholders' meetings Unless there is a force
majeure event whereby the director is unable to attend the meeting, he or she must
inform the chairman of the board or the company secretary at a reasonable time in
advance of the meeting.

¢ To develop knowledge and ability to work continuously. attend training or
participate in courses related to The performance of duties as a director or seminar
activities that continuously increase the knowledge of the operation.

2, Roles and Responsibilities of Chairman of Board of Directors

¢ To supervise, monitor, and ensure that the performance of duties of the Board of

Directors is efficient and meets the Company’s main objectives and goals



¢ To convene and chair meetings of the Board of Directors; to determine meeting
agenda items through discussions with the President and CEO; to have measures to
ensure that important matters are incorporated into the meeting agenda

¢ To allocate enough time for the management to conduct presentations and for the
directors to discuss key issues in a prudent and comprehensive manner; and to
encouragethe directors to exercise discretion prudently and express opinions
independently

¢ To promote good relationships between the executive and the non-executive directors,
and between the Board of Directors and the management

3. Roles and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer

¢ To monitor and supervise the management of the Company and its subsidiaries to be
in line with the vision, mission, value and policies, board resolutions, shareholders
resolutions, regulations and objectives of the Company for the highest efficiency and

legitimacy of the business operations of the Company and its subsidiaries.

¢ To manage and supervise the Company and its subsidiaries general administration
and ensure that it is in line with the objectives, policies, rules and regulations of the
Company as well as to monitor the performance of the management to report the overall
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries and performance to the Board of Directors

on a regular basis.

¢ To determine the human resource management policy and encourage the operations

of all functions to be in line with the guidelines of the Board of Directors.

¢ To give advice and hand down the experience in business operations to the
management and staff for the benefits of the business operations of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

¢ To manage the financial matters and the spending of the budget for the highest

benefits and efficiency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

¢ To perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company
and/ or the shareholders’ meeting of the Company according to the objectives, rules and

related laws.

3. Sub-Committees

As of 31 December 2021, the management structure of Proud Real Estate Public

Company Limited consist of 3 sub-committees, namely, (1) Nomination and Remuneration

Committee (2) Audit Committee (3) Executive Committee

Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors with independence, knowledge,

and abilities and experiences in reviewing financial reports, internal control systems, audits,

and laws. They also have insights into the Company’s business, and possess qualifications

according to the Capital Market Supervisory Board’s Notification and the Stock Exchange of

Thailand (SET)’s Notification Re: Qualificationsand Scope of Operations of the Audit Committee

B.E.2558 (A.D.2015).

The list of the committee members and their meeting attendance in 2021 were as

follows:

Name-Surname

Mr.Anuwat

Maytheewibulwut

Position

Chairmanofthe
Audit Committee
(Independent)

Attended
Meetings/Total

Meetings

(Times)

5/5

Asapercentage

100.0

2. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul

Audit Committee
Member

(Independent)

5/5

100.0

3. Mr.Dan Sornmani?

Audit Committee
Member

(Independent)

4/4

100.0

Remark: 1. The Board of Directors at the meeting No. 1/2021, dated February 22,2021, resolved to appoint Mr.Dan

Sornmanias the Company's directorand member of the Audit Committee, effective from February 23,2021 onwards



Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall review the Company’s financial reports to ensure correctness
and sufficient disclosure, and shall conduct reviews and provide opinions in an assessment form
of adequacy of internal control and risk management systems, compliance with laws, rules,
regulations, and procedures relating to securities and exchange, as well as related party
transactions or transactions that may involve a conflict of interest to ensure correctness,
completeness,andtransparency. Furthermore, the Audit Committee shallreview the Company’s
anti-corruption process to ensure alignment with guidelines of relevant supervisory bodies; the
internal processes regarding receiving and supervising the receiving of whistleblowing reports,
and handling of complaints; and consideration and selection of auditors and fixing of audit fees.

Further detailsareasshowninthe Audit

Committee’s Charterinthe 2021 Report of the Audit Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 directors with knowledge,
capabilities, and experiences in nomination and consideration of appropriate candidates for

directors.

Thelist of the committee members and their meeting attendancein 2021 were as follows:

Attended
Asa

Name-Surname Position Meetings/Total
percentage

Meetings (Times)

Chairman ofthe
Nominationand
Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut ) 1/1 100.0
Remuneration

Committee

Nominationand
Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathalkul Remuneration 1/1 100.0

Committee member

Nomination and
Mr.Pasu Liptapanlop Remuneration 1/1 100.0

Committee member

Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration

Thereare 2 main duties as follows:

1) Nomination: The Committee shall consider structures and compositions of the
boards of directors of the business group, and consider qualifications of directors with a mix of
qualities unique to the Company. The Committee shall prepare the Board Skills Matrix, and
determine criteriaand methods for nominating candidates for directors of the business group,
subcommittee members of the Company, advisors to the Board of Directors and the
subcommittees, the Presidentand CEO, andthetopexecutivesofthebusinessgroupandacross
the Company’s functions. Also, the Committee shall supervise and ensure preparations and
reviews of individual development plans of the high-level executives of the business group for

continued succession planning.

2) Remuneration: The Committee shall determine forms and criteria for
remuneration payments of the Board of Directors, the respective subcommittees, and advisors
totheBoardof Directorsand the subcommittees; consider policy frameworks for remuneration
and other benefits in financial and non-financial forms; and consider limits of bonus rates and
annual salary increase rates of the group-wide employees. Further details are as shown in the

2021 Reportofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Executive Committee consists of 4 directors who are knowledgeable, capable and

experiencedininvestment, real estate development management, Economics and Finance.

Asat 31 December 2021, the Executive Committee consists of the following 4 members

Attended
Asa
Name-Surname Position Meetings/Total
percentage

Meetings (Times)

Chairmanofthe
1. Mr.Verapong Chaiperm ) ) 19/22 86.4
Executive committee

Executive committee

2. Mr.Pasu Liptapanlop 21/22 95.5
member
) Executive committee
3. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop 22/22 100.0
member
Executive committee
4. Mr.Pumipat Sinacharoen 22/22 100.0
member




Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

Responsibleforformulating policies, goals, strategies, operational plansannual budget
andthe powers of various administrations of the Companyto proposetothe Board of Directors
for approval. They control and supervise the business operations of the Group to be in
accordance withthe policies, goals, strategies, as well as provide management advice to senior

executives, Further detailsareas showninthe 2021 Report of the the Executive Committee.

4 Executive Information

4.1 Names and positions of executives as of December31,2021

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a total of 5 executives according to the

definitioninthe Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor.23/2551.

Timetable of the Board of Directors Meetingsin 2022

Audit Committee

Board of Directors

‘ Name ‘ Position

1. | Mr.PumipatSinacharoen Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President of Project Development Division

2. | Mr.Chuntorn Chuntratip
(TeamA)

3. | Ms.Natarin Paramawes Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing Division

4. | Ms.BudsabongPansawadi Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting Division

Senior Vice President of Business Developmentand
5. | Ms. Anotai Worasunthararom

Strategy Division

No.1/2022 Wednesday 23 February 2022 08.30-10.00u. 10.00-12.00uU.
AGM 2022 Thursday 21 April 2022 10.00-12.00u.

No.2/2022 Monday9May 2022 08.30-10.00 u. 10.00-12.00uU.
No.3/2022 Monday 8 August 2022 08.30-10.00u. 10.00-12.00uU.
No.4/2022 Monday 7 November 2022 08.30-10.00u. 10.00-12.00u.

4.2 Remunerationfor Executives and Employees

According to the Company’s remuneration policy, short- and long-term forms of
remuneration shall be paid to employees at all levels based on each year’s business
performance and remuneration rates aligned with those of industry peers. The Company
conducted surveysonwagesandremuneration paidtoemployees of outside organizationsto
ensurethatitsownremuneration structurewas appropriateand competitive. Consumer price
indexes (CPIs) of government agencies such as the Ministry of Commerce and the Bank of
Thailand were used as benchmark to support the Company’s payments of wages and

remuneration toits executives and employees.



The Company focused on performance-based remuneration, using key performance
indicators (KPIs) to support performance evaluations of its employees all levels. KPIs at
organizational, functional, and individual levels were aligned to ensure that work goals were
consistent with the corporate vision and missions. Thus, executive remuneration was based

directlyonthe performance of duties and the achievement of the Company’s strategic goals.

4.3 Total Remuneration for Top Executives

For the year 2021, the Board of Director approved total remuneration comprising of
monetary remuneration and other non-monetary benefits, paid to 5 executives consisting of

the Chief Executive Officer and the first four executive, details are as follows:

Monetary Remuneration

Remuneration

Salaryand Bonus 25.25Million Baht

Otherremuneration for executives

Remuneration

Amount

Provident fund 0.53 Million Baht

5. Personnel

As of December 31,2021, the company has a total number of employees of 43 people. In

2021, the company has recorded compensation for employees such as salary, bonuses,

provident fund contributions and otherincome, totaling 45.8 million baht.

The number of employeesin each mainline of workis as follows.
1. ManagementDepartment

2. Business Developmentand strategy Division
3. ProjectDevelopmentDivisionTeam A

4. Project Development Division Team B

5. Financeand AccountingDivision

6. InvestorRelations Department

7. SalesandMarketing Division

8. Legaland Compliance Department

9. InformationTechnology Department

10. HumanResources Department

11. ProcurementDepartment

12. BusinessProcessImprovement Department

2 Persons

4 Persons

5 Persons

1 Persons

7 Persons

1 Persons

13 Persons

1 Persons

2 Persons

2 Persons

4 Persons

1 Persons

Indeed, there has no material change in the number of the Company’s employees during the

past 3 years.



Policy on Employee Remuneration and Benefits

TheCompanyrecognizesthat personnelisoneofthekeyfactorsindrivingthe Company
towards business excellence, therefore it focuses on recruiting, developing, and taking care of
allemployeesequallyandtreatingthemfairly. The Company prioritizesthewelfareand welfare
of employees, emphasis is placed on the care of employees' benefits so that they receive

appropriate compensation in accordance with their employment in the labor market.

The performance of duties and responsibilities incentives to work effectively boost
morale. And it enhances the well-being of the employees' families, the company therefore
determines to assess the remuneration and welfare of the employees annually. The Company
determine the appropriate compensation and benefits schedule by covering all ages of
employeesinaccordancewiththesituationeconomicsituation. Andtheycancompetewiththe
market in the real estate sector. In addition, in 2021, the company has started to conduct a
survey on employee engagement with the organization to use the survey results to develop
compensation and benefits that are consistent and closest to the needs and satisfaction of

employees.

In order to, the payment of remuneration to be transparent and fair, the Company has
established a policy of payment of remuneration in accordance with the Company's operating
results and yearly profitability. The Performance Index (KPI) is also used as a tool for managing
employee performance-based compensationfortherewardsthatemployeeswillreceive.ltcan
be divided into 2 types, namely monetary remuneration and non-monetary remuneration or

welfare benefit, details as follows:

Monetary Remuneration

1. Salary The Company’s policy is to fairly offer its employees’ remunerations
which are higher than the legal requirement, based on the Company’s short-term and

long-term performances. The Company applies salary payment system based on individual

responsibilities in order to motivate a continual development of its employees’ operational
competency. The Company appropriately adjusts their salary levels to be in line with the
Company’s business targets and growth direction, as well as its individual work achievements

based onits KPlapproach.

2. Bonus In 2021, the Company will begin to set clear work goals for employees
through the Performance Management System, which consists of performanceindicators (KPIs)
fromthe organizational level to the individual level to enable employees to understand the goals

and be abletowork effectivelyand useitin determining the annual bonus for employees.

3. Provident Funds The Company has established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act 1987 with the objectives to promote savings, create security for
employees and their families and for employees to receive tax benefits. The amount of the
provident fund and the employee's contribution amount depends on the employee's will.
Employees can choose aninvestment plan according to their needs and can accumulate at rates

ranging from 3 to 15% of their salary, with contributions made to each employee.

4. Social Security Fund

5. Otherbenefits such asallowances, food and travel expenses, etc.
Welfare benefit
1. Lifeand Health Insurances The Company has arranged life and health insurances

for its employees. The employees can benefit from these insurances when they are sick. The
policy covers both in and out patient, accident, and death. The sum insured depends on the job

grade of eachemployee.

2. Annual health check Because the health of employees is something that the
Company has given great importance to therefore, an annual health check has been arranged.
The purpose is to encourage employees to take care of their physical health to be complete and
healthy always. as well as knowing the risks of various diseases and conditions including

understanding and being ableto prevent diseases that may occurinthefuture

3. Social Security Fund Itis available in the event of iliness and accident not related

towork. The contributionstothefundare



compulsoryand made by employees, the Company, and the government.

4. Provident fund The part of the company makes all contributions to the fund to

beusedintheeventofanillness/accidentduetowork.

5. Grants and benefits that cover families Childbirth, funeral assistance support
forfuneralwreathsandfuneralexpenseswhich coversemployees, employee's parents, spouse

and children of employees, etc.

6. ExtraActivities The company placesimportance on employee engagementand
happiness atwork, therefore, activities are organized to promote and build good relationships,
relieve stress from work, increase the opportunity for employees to get to know employees
from different departments both between employees and between management and
employees which will lead to a strong culture, a good working atmosphere and the strength of
the organization such as New Year's activities Company Outing Trip, Chinese New Year,

Songkran Festival, etc.

Policy on People Development

The Company hasits people development policywhichisintendedtoregularly promote
competency,skills, knowledge,and proficiencyinallitsemployee. It continuestoorganizeboth
in-house and external training sessions to enhance work efficiency, and encourages the
application of training knowledge for work improvement, as well as enable its employees to
have creativity and innovative thinking. All of these shall increase the overall competitiveness

forthe Company. Its people development guidelinesinclude:

1. Selection and Recruitment

The companyrealizesthattheimage of the organizationis one of the key factors for the
successoftheorganizationthatcanhelpattractnewemployeesandretainexistingonestostay
with the organization. Therefore, the information is publicized, present a good image of the
organization including human resource management policies such as corporate culture
workingatmosphere.Sothetargetaudience canknowandunderstandthecorrectinformation

andreadytobeapartofthecompany.

In 2021, the Company has started to organize the PROUD Onboarding Program, starting
from the orientation to educate about organization culture, organizational overview, and
business overview from construction to sales and transfers. The Company provide on-the-job
training by supervisors or mentors to work and help new employees to adapt to the corporate

culture more quickly.
2. Performance Management, Rewarding and Recognition

¢ In 2021, the Company initiated the development and application of the Performance
Management System (PMS) to the organization starting from the determination of Key
Performance Indicators (KPI) together with each employee. The Company define the
goals and services of each employee and to ensure fair performance evaluation results
be transparent clear and acceptable. In addition to the performance management
through the performance appraisal according to the indicators mentioned above.
Employee Behavior Assessment is a matter that the company see and attach importance
to the same. Therefore, activities and projects have been carried out and promote

performance management such as

¢ Mid-Year Performance Review : Employees can understand their strengths and

weaknesses and can improve their performance before the annual assessment.

¢ Feedback between supervisors and operators. So that employees know the point
that they need to develop in order to move to a higher position in the future. This will

help motivate employees to continue.

¢ Creating a Way of Working: Employees are proud to be employees of the Company,
realize the quality of products and services see the importance of customers and taking
into account the results of the operation in every step new initiative to reach bigger

goals including to promote honesty with oneself to work and to the company as well.



3. PeopleDevelopment
The Company has its people development policy whichisintended to regularly promote competency,

skills, knowledge, and proficiencyinall its employee. It continues to organize bothin-house and

external

training sessionsto enhance work efficiency, and encourages the application of training knowledge

forwork

improvement, aswell as enableits employees to have creativity and innovative thinking. All of these

shall
increasetheoverall competitiveness forthe Company.
In2021, the Company has organized the following actions:

¢ Project PROUD Onboarding Program organized to take care of new employees for
a period of 4 months from the start of work until the end of the probationary period .
The new employees will be taken care of by mentors and staff both in terms of work
and other matters in order for employees to gain the necessary knowledge to work,
enhance skills for new employees and enabling them to adapt more quickly to the

corporate culture.

¢ Leadership Development Program to ensure that the organization can grow
sustainably. In 2021, the company has set up a program to develop executives at each
level with an emphasis on planning, formulate strategy and team management to

prepare executives in the organization both in business and personnel management

¢ Corporate and product branding : It is a project to educate and raise awareness of
the importance of the brand among employees. The program also brings together
expert speakers from outside to provide knowledge so that employees can create

products and communicate brands correctly and appropriately.

¢ Project Management and Knowledge Training in the organization (In-House
Training) is a project that promotes and supports the learning of employees in various
fields. To provide employees with knowledge, understanding and ability to perform
tasks properly and appropriately in each position focusing on adjusting the concept

Attitudes and working methods of employees to be able to cope with the uncertain

environment to ensure that the company will remain competitive and able to

grow stably.

Under the rapidly changing business and technology world Including the challenges in
the digital era, the new normal, forcing organizations to adapt Recognizing a variety of learning
styles, responding to both the life style of the new generation and responding to the epidemic of
the corona virus (COVID-19). In 2021, the company has focused on personnel development
throughonlinetraining courseswhich canreducetheconstraintsontimeandplacecoursesatthe

company have organized such as

o Financial Feasibility Study of Cash Flow Real Estate Project (RE121) for Business
Development and Strategy Division

o Company Secretary Program (CSP) for Legal and Compliance Department
o ADMD Product Knowledge Training for Sales and Marketing Division
o ADOBE AFTER EFFECTS for Sales and Marketing Division

o Principles of basic construction appraisal for Business Development and strategy
Division and Business Process Improvement Department

o TLCA PacRim L&D HR Scholarship for Human Resources Department
o @Getting to Yes
o Carelessness.. Check at least once a day

o PDPA : Guidelines and application of the personal data protection policy in the
organization

4. Employee Engagement
Employee Engagementtothe Organization and happinessinthe work of employees bring good
resultsin many aspects whetheritis a matter of reducing the turnover rate of employees
Creating Higher Quality and Higher Efficiency Dedicationtowork and customer service, the
company has organized activities to strengthenrelationships between employees. The
Company encourage employeesto meet and get to know each other. An Employee Engagement
Survey was also conducted as achannelfor hearing opinions, Employee feedback and utilized in
the formulation of corporate and human resource management strategiesinboth the shortand

long term.

5. Useof technology Toincrease efficiency in humanresource management
(Digital HR)



Today'sworldis constantly changing andrapidly as aresult of the leaping development of
technology. Forthis reason, the Company's human resource managementaware of the
changethereforeinitiated the introduction of technology into the work to provide
conveniencetoemployeesabletorespondand provide informationto employees atalllevels
quicklyandthoroughly Including reducing the work process and reducing the use of
organizational resources such as paper ordocument storage, etc. Inthe past year, the

following actions have been taken:

¢ ESS system development to enable employees to access necessary information
conveniently and quickly, starting from the use of technology to help with time
management. Managing paperwork related to Human Resources by the system that
the company developed taking into account the ease of use of users of all levels
(User-Friendly) applications that can be used anywhere, anytime via the internet and
smartphones. It is the reducing the use of the company's resources such as the

process of paperless, including the highest cost savings.

6. Other Important Information

The list of the persons assigned to be directly responsible for supervising accounting

practicesand

tohold positions of head of internal audit, corporate secretary, and head of compliance

areasfollows:

1. Ms. Budsabong Pansawadi, Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting
Division was appointed as the top executive of the finance and accounting function,
responsible for controlling and supervising accounting activities. The details are as
per the profile in attachment.

2. P&L Internal Audit Company Limited is responsible for the Company's internal audit,
which was appointed by the Audit Committee in the meeting No. 5/2021 on
November 5, 2021 with the opinion that it is an audit service provider and internal
control system as detailed appears in the attachment.

3. Ms.Nittaya Maetineewattanavong, Legal and Company Secretary was appointed as
company secretary by the Board of Director at its meeting No.9/2021 held on 8
November 2021, responsible for holding the Board of Directors’ meetings and the
shareholders’ meetings, providing advice regarding regulatory compliance to the
Board of Directors, and following up on and coordinating the implementation of the
Board of Directors’ resolutions. Her responsibilities also cover the retention of
important documents of the Company according to legal requirements such as
directors’ registers, annual reports, holding by directors or executives. She is also
responsible for supporting the Board of Directors’ activities to ensure efficient and
effective performance of duties; and disclosing data and information to relevant
supervisory bodies within specific time periods. Furthermore, she serves as head of
compliance, supervising the compliance with regulatory bodies’ rules and regulations

governingthe Company’sbusiness.stakeholders'reports,andreports of securities. The

details are as per the profile inthe attachment.

The Company’s Financial Analyst and Investor Relations Manager is Ms. Budsabong
Pansawadi, Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting Division. She is responsible for
disseminating corporate information, both financial and non-financial, to the shareholders,
investors, securities analysts, and investment credit rating organizations, through the
Company’s website, in the topic of “Investor Relations Information”, for ease of access by
interested persons. Foranyinquires, shareholders, investors, and relevant parties can contact
the Investor Relations Division at Tel. 02-035-0999 or Email: ir@proudrealestate.co.th ,orthe

Company’s website.
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1 Summary of the Board of Directors’ Work Results in 2021

In 2021, the Board of Directors has held a workshop with the management team on

Monday, November 15, 2021 to jointly determine the direction and guidelines for business

operations over 3-5 years, as well as to consider new business plans and budgets to develop new

projects of the company.
1.1 Nomination, Development, and Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors

Nomination and Appointment of Directors

Inselectingandnominatingappropriatecandidatesforthebusinessgroup’sdirectors, the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consider and screen those with appropriate

qualifications according to the Company’s Articles of Association, details of which can be

summarized as follows:

. To consider the candidates’ qualifications, expertise, professionalism, leadership, forward-

looking vision, morals and ethics, transparent career record, and ability to express
independent opinions.

. To consider the board skills matrix in terms of skills, experience, ability, and diversified

fields of expertise significant to the business, regardless of gender, race, or other
differences to secure the most comprehensive and productive board of directors.

. To check the proposed candidates’ qualifications with the Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC) and verify their possible conflicts of interest with the Companuy.

To select independent directors based on criteria and qualifications for independent
directors.The Company set out the definition of an independent director based on the
SEC’s 9 requirements as follows:

1). Holding no more than 1% of the total voting shares of the Company, including shares
held by persons related to that independent director.

2). Neither being nor having been an executive director, worker, employee, advisor
earning regular monthly salary, or controlling person of the Company, unless the
foregoing status has ended for at least 2 years prior.

3). Not being a person who is related by blood or legal registration of another director,
executive, major shareholder, controlling person or person to be nominated as director,
executive, or controlling person of the Company or its subsidiaries.

4). Neither having nor having had a business relationship with the Company that may
interfere with independent discretion, which includes not being or having been a
significant shareholder or controlling person of any person having a business
relationship with the Company, unless such foregoing relationships have ended for at
least 2 years prior.

5). Neither being nor having been an auditor of the Company; and not being a
significant shareholder, controlling person, or partner of the audit firm which employs
the auditor of the Company, unless the foregoing relationship has ended for at least 2
years prior

6). Neither being nor having been a provider of professional services, which includes

serving as a legal or financial advisor being paid a service fee of more than Baht 2
million per year by the Company; and not being a significant shareholder, controlling
person, or partner of such provider of professional services, unless the foregoing
relationship has ended for at least 2 years prior

7). Not being a director who is appointed as a representative of the Company’s
directors, major shareholder, or shareholder who is a connected person of a major
shareholder

8). Not undertaking any business of the same nature and in significant competition with
the Company’s or its subsidiaries’ business; not being a significant partner in a
partnership, or an executive director, worker, employee or advisor earning regular
monthly salary; or not holding more than 1% of the total voting shares of another
company that undertakes a business of the same nature and in significant competition
with the Company’s or its subsidiaries’ business

9). Not having any other characteristics that impede the freedom of expression of
opinions about the Company’s business operations

. In case of any vacancies in the Board of Directors due to the directors retiring by

rotation, the Company shall allow its minority shareholders to submit a list of
nominated candidates to the respective annual general meeting of shareholders in
advance from October to December of each year. At the shareholders’ meeting, the
election of each director shall be voted separately. Each shareholder shall have the right
to elect the nominated candidates as directors, but not exceeding the number of
directors to be elected at that particular meeting. Vote splitting is not allowed. The



shareholders shall exercise all their votes for each nominated candidate for director
separately. The candidate with the highest number of votes shall be elected. However, the
number of elected candidates must not exceed the number of directors to be elected at
that particular meeting. In the case where the 2 lower ranking candidates get a tie vote,
causing the number of the elected candidates to exceed the number of directors to be
elected at that particular meeting; the chairman of the meeting shall cast an additional
vote to break the tie.

6. In the case where a director resigns or there is a vacancy in the Board of Directors for
other reason than retiring by rotation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
nominate a new candidate with appropriate qualifications mentioned above to the Board
of Directors’ meeting for consideration and approval. A resolution for this matter shall be
passed by votes of no less than three-fourths of the remaining directors.

Nomination of Top Executives

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee stipulated criteria for nominating
candidatesforthe Company’s Presidentand Chief Executive Officer. The Companycanselectand
appoint a person, either from inside or outside of the organization, as the top executive. The
Committeeshall consider qualifications, knowledge, abilities, skills,and experiences beneficial to
the Company’s operations, and endorse these qualities in principle before submission thereof to
the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. In addition, the Committee shallnominate
candidatesforthetop executives of the business group companies based onthe Company’s pool
of executives who have knowledge, capabilities, and experiences beneficial to the business
group’s operations before proposing the matter to the Company’s and the business group’s

boards of directors for consideration and approval.

Director Development

Newly hired directors shall attend orientation programs organized by the Company to
understandthebusinessnature, directions,andrelevantinformationincludingtheshareholding
structure, management structure, past performance records, key construction projects, as well
asgood corporate governance guidelines, laws, and regulations concerned. This will benefit their
performanceofduties.The CEO shall provideasummaryof suchinformation, whilethecorporate

secretary shall prepare relevant documents including the Company’s Articles of Association,

rules,group-widegood corporategovernanceprinciples,subcommitteecharters, pastminutes

of meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors, and annual reports.

Company also realized the importance of the directors’ constant participation in the
trainings necessary to the Board of Directors’ performance of duties, and other trainings to
promote the directors’ knowledge and capability. These trainings also helped the directors
understand the nature of business, and perform duties and supervise the business with
efficiency. The training topics included corporate governance, risk management, internal
control, and laws concerning the Company’s businesses. The majority of the directors passed

thetrainings offered by the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) as shown in the directors’ profiles.

Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors/Subcommittees

TheCompanyconductsperformanceevaluationfortheentireBoard of Directorsandfor
individual directors once per year. In this regard, the directors will jointly consider their
achievements, problems, and challenges they experienced throughout the year. There are 4

different performance evaluation forms:

1. Self-evaluation form for the Board of Directors,

2. Self-evaluation form for each respective subcommittee,
3. Self-evaluation form for each individual director.

4. Evaluation Form for the Chief Executive Officer

TheBoard of Directorsshallanalyzethe performance evaluationresults summarized for
analysis and improvement of operational efficiency to ensure appropriateness and alignment

with the good corporate governance principles.



The self-evaluation formforthe Board of Directors contains the following 4 questions.
1. Board of Directors’ structure and qualifications

2. Board of Directors’ meetings

3. Board of Directors’ role, duties, and responsibilities

4. Others such as relationships with management and Directors’ and management’s
self-development etc.

In conclusion, the average performance rating of the Board of Directors was 3.72 (Fullscore 4

points)

Theself-evaluation formfor each respective subcommittee contains the following 3 questions.
1. Subcommittee’s structure and qualifications

2. 2) Subcommittee’s meetings

3. 3) Compliance with the scope of authority, duties, and responsibilities

The performance ratings of the respective subcommittees can be summarized as follows:

Ratings (%)
Subcommittees

Fullscore 4 points

1. Audit Committee 3.91

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 3.53

Theself-evaluation formfor eachindividual director contains the following 3 questions.

1) Board of Directors’ structure and qualifications
2) Board of Directors’ meetings
3) Board of Directors’ role, duties, and responsibilities

In conclusion, the average performance rating of allindividual directors was 3.76

(Fullscore 4 points).
Evaluation Formforthe Chief Executive Officer contains the following 10 questions.
1) Leadership
2) Strategy Formulation
3) Strategy implementation
4) Financial, investment and expenses management
5) Relationship with the Board of Directors

6) Relationship with the outside

7) Managementand employee relations
8) Successionplan
9) Productand service knowledge

10) Personality

In conclusion, the average performance rating of all individual directors was 3.76

(Fullscore 4 points).



1.2 Directors’ Meeting Attendance and Remuneration

Directors’ meeting attendanceasat 31 December 2021 canbe summarized as follows:

Meetings
List of directors Positions Board’s Shareholders’
Meeting Meeting
Independent Director, Chairman,
) Chairman of the Audit Committeeand

Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut 11/11 1/1
Chairman of the Nominationand
Remuneration Committee
Director,Vice Chairman of the Board of

Mr.Verapong Chaiperm Directors, Chairman of the Executive 10/11 1/1
Committee
Director, Executive Director and

Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 11/11 1/1
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Directorand Executive Director 11/11 1/1
Directorand Nominationand

Mr Anucha Sihanatkathakul ) ) 11/11 1/1
Remuneration Committee

Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul Independent Director, Audit Committee 11/11 1/1

Mr.Dan Sornmani® Independent Director, Audit Committee 9/10 1/1
Director, Executive Director and Chief

Mr.Pumipat Sinacharoen 11/11 1/1
Executive Officer

Remark

(1) The Board of Directors at the meeting No. 1/2021, dated February 22, 2021, resolved to appoint Mr. Dan Sornmani as the
Company's director and member of the Audit Committee, effective from February 23, 2021 onwards, replacing Mr. Paisit

Kaenchan, who resigned with effect from January 1, 2021 onwards.

The Company specified rates of remuneration for directors and respective
subcommittee members in monetary forms, including monthly remuneration, meeting
allowance, and corporate performance-based remuneration, such as bonuses which were
linked to the values created for the shareholders. However, the Company had no other

non-monetary forms of remuneration.

In determining criteria for paying remuneration, other appropriate considerations and
factors were also considered, i.e. 1) Industrial practice, 2) Operating results and business size,
3) Directors’ knowledge, capabilities, and experiences, 4) Directors’ role, duties, and
responsibilities, and 5) Directors’ individual performances. The directors’ remuneration rates
were appropriate, fair, and able to motivate and retain directors with required qualities. In
addition, bonus payments to the directors had to be aligned with dividend payments to the

shareholders,

Furthermore, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for
considering and determining a form of remuneration for the President and CEO before
submission thereof to the Board of Directors for approval. The Committee shall also consider
ranges of bonus rates and annual salary increment rates for the employees by considering the

corporate performance, economic situation, and competitiveness.

The 2021 AGM held on 19 April 2021 passed a resolution to approve directors’

remuneration atunchanged rates as follows:

1. Board of Directors' meeting allowance and sub-committees are paid according to the

number of meeting times as follows:

Meetingallowance of theyear 2021

Directors’ Remuneration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for considering
remuneration for the Board of Directors, subcommittees, advisors to the Board of Directors, and
advisors to the subcommittees before submission thereof to the Board of Directors for

consideration and endorsement and to the shareholders’ meeting for consideration approval.

Chairman Board/Committee Member
Board of Directors Meeting 15,000 Baht 12,000 Baht
Audit Committee Meeting 15,000 Baht 12,000 Baht
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting 15,000 Baht 12,000 Baht
2. Thereis no payment of bonusestodirectors due tothe company's operating loss.



Details of the Board of Directors’ and the subcommittees’ remunerationfor2021 can be

summarized as follows:

Meetingallowance

Bonus paid
) . . from2020
Listof directors Nomination -
Board of Audit Executive and HSIESS
Directors Committee Committee Remuneration performance
Committee
Mr. Anuwat
) 165,000.00 | 75,000.00 15,000.00 255,000.00
Maytheewibulwut
Mr.Verapong Chaiperm 120,000.00 - - 120,000.00
Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 132,000.00 - 12,000.00 144,000.00
Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop | 132,000.00 - - 132,000.00
Mr Anucha Sihanatkathakul | 132,000.00 - 12,000.00 144,000.00
Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul | 132,000.00 | 60,000.00 - 192,000.00
Mr.Dan Sornmani® 108,000.00 | 48,000.00 - 156,000.00
Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen 132,000.00 | - - 132,000.00

Remark:

(@D)] The Board of Directors at the meeting No. 1/2021, dated February 22,2021, resolved to appoint

Mr.Dan Sornmanias the Company's director and member of the Audit Committee, effective from February 23,

2021 onwards, replacing Mr. Paisit Kaenchan, who resigned with effect from January 1, 2021 onwards.

Remunerationfor Directors Leaving the Board of Directorsin 2021

-None-

1.3 Supervision of Operations of Subsidiaries and Associates

The Board of Directors has a mechanism to supervise, manage, and take charge of
operations of the subsidiaries so as to safeguard the Company’s investment interests. In so
doing, the Company’s high-level executives were appointed as directors or executives in the
subsidiaries to co-manage the business both at policy-making and operational levels.
Appointments of the Company’s high-level executives must be endorsed as per resolutions of

the Company’s Board of Directors’ meetings.

In addition, the person appointed by the Company must ensure that the subsidiary has
regulations on connected transactions, acquisition or disposition of assets or any other
important transactions of such companies in completeness and accuracy and use the rules
relating tothedisclosure of information and the above transactions inthe same manner asthe
Company's guidelinesincluding to supervise the collection of data and recording the accounts
of the subsidiaries for the company to inspect and gathered to prepare consolidated financial

statementsontimeaswell.

The Company neither had any shareholders’ agreements to manageits subsidiaries nor

operated a holding company business.

1.4 Monitoring compliancewith corporate governance policiesand guidelines

Realizing the importance of good corporate governance principles and the business
group’s code of conduct, the Company stipulated relevant policiesand practicesand promoted
implementation thereof by setting a common key performance indicator (KPI) requiring all
employees to do COC and anticorruption tests and use the test scores for improving

communications, understanding, and awareness of duties and responsibilities.

Moreover, the Company monitored the implementation of the good corporate

governance principles covering the following 4 issues.

1.Prevention of conflict of interest

The Company has a policy on conflicts of interest stipulating that in the event that



directors, executivesand employees mustinformthe Company of theirrelationship orconnected

transactionsin businesses that may cause conflicts of interest with the Company.

Inaddition,inthe Board of Directors meeting orevery sub-committee, the committeeshall
reporttheirinterests atleast before consideringthe meetingagendaandrecorditinthe minutes
of the meeting. Directors who have such interests are unable to express their opinions

independently and shallrefrain from participating in the meeting to consider thatagenda.

2.Supervisionofinternal information use

The Company has a policy and code of conduct for directors, executives and employees of
the Company to maintain the security and confidentiality of information and to prohibit the use
of material inside information of the Company that has not been disclosed to the public for the
benefit of themselves or others. including trading in the Company's securities with the following

guidelines:

1) The Company requires directors and executives to report the securities holdings of the
Company held in their names, spouses, and minor children to the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) inaccordance with Section 59 of the Securities and Exchange Act

B.E. 2535 andrelated notifications and send a copy of the report to the company

2) The Company requires directors, executives and employees to report changes in their
securities holdings to the Office of the SEC in accordance with Section 59 of the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 within 3 days from the date of the change and inform the company
secretary to prepare a memorandum of change and summarize the number of securities of
directors and executives individually for presentation to the Board of Directors in the next

meeting.

3) Directors, executives and employees are prohibited from disclosing financial
statementsorotherinformationthataffectsthecompany'ssecurities pricestooutsidersorthose
who are notinvolved and prohibiting trading in securities during one month before the financial
statements or other information that affect the Company's share price will be published to the
public. And they must not trade securities until a period of 24 hours has elapsed since the

disclosure of suchinformationtothe public.

4) The Company will disclose material results and information which affects the change
insecurities prices and affects the Company's financial statements within 45 days of the end of

the quarterand 60 days fromthe end of the period account.

3.Combating corruption

The company has a policy against all forms of corruption, whereby all directors,
executives and employees will not get involved or participate in any corruption. They will not
bribe or accept bribe or seek any benefit unlawful and unlawful in all its forms, directly or
indirectly and has regularly reviewed the implementation of the Anti-Corruption Policy.

Therefore, the Company has the following guidelines for the policy and code of conduct:

1. Directors, executives and employees at all levels must comply with the anti-corruption
policy without being involved in corruption, whether directly or indirectly.

2. Employees of the Company at all levels must be aware that corruption is unacceptable
in the Company's corporate culture.

3. Employees involved in corruption are subject to disciplinary and legal penalties.

4. If any employee sees an act that may be considered corruption related to the company,
the employee must notify the company without delay and cooperate in the
investigation of the relevant facts.

The Companywill keep the whistleblower's name and detail confidential for the safety of

thewhistleblower's life and property.

4.Whistleblowing

The Company has a policy and code of conduct regarding whistleblowing, that s, ifany
employee sees an act that may be considered corruption related to the Company. Employees
must notify the Company without delay and cooperate in the investigation of any relevant

facts.

The Companywill keep the whistleblower's name and detail confidential for the safety of

thewhistleblower's life and property.



Directors’ ownership of PROUD shares asat 31 December2021
Number of PROUD shares

31 31 Change

Name-surname Position Directors’ ownership of PROUD shares wholeaving duringtheyear 2021

December | December | duringthe

2020 2021 year - None -

Independent Director, Chairman,

. Chairman of the Audit Committee Executives’ ownership of PROUD sharesasat 31 December 2021
1. | Mr.Anuwat Maytheewibulwut = - -

and Chairman of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

Number of PROUD shares

Spouse and minor children = - _
31 31 Change

Director,Vice Chairman of the . Name-surname Position

December | December | during

2. | Mr.Verapong Chaiperm Board of Directors, Chairman of - - -
2020 2021 theyear

the Executive Committee 3 3 3 3
Executive Vice President of Project

Spouse and minor children _ _ _ 1. Mr.Chuntorn Chuntratip 100,000 100,000 -
Development Division (Team A)

Director, Executive Directorand . .
Spouseand minor children = - -

3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Nomination and Remuneration 226,046,445 | 226,046,445 - - : ;
Executive Vice President of Sales and

Committee 2. Ms. Natarin Paramawes N/A = _
Marketing Division

Spouse and minor children 3 - - . .
Spouse and minor children - - -

4. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Director and Executive Director 226,046,444 | 226,046,444 - Senior Vice President of Financeand

3. Ms. Budsabong Pansawadi = - -

Spouse and minor children = - - Accounting Division
Directorand Nominationand Spouseand minor children - - -
5. | Mr.Anucha Sihanatkathakul ) _ = = =
Remuneration Committee Senior Vice President of Business
] ) 4. | Ms.Anotai Worasunthararom = = =
Spouse and minor children - - - Developmentand Strategy Division
Independent Director, Audit Spouse and minor children - - -
6. | Ms.Anchalee Bunsongsikul - - -
Committee

] ] Remarlk: N/A means noinformation because the executive has been appointed to the position during the year 2021.
Spouse and minor children 5 - _

Independent Director, Audit
7. Mr.Dan Sornmani (1) N/A - -
Committee

Spouse and minor children N/A - -

Director, Executive Directorand
8. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen - 3,222,900 3,222,900
Chief Executive Officer

Spouse and minor children = - _

Remark: N/A means noinformation because the director has been appointed to the position during the year 2021.
(1) The Board of Directors at the meetingNo. 1/2021, dated February 22,2021, resolved to appoint Mr. Dan
Sornmanias the Company's director and member of the Audit Committee, effective from February 23,2021 onwards,

replacing Mr. Paisit Kaenchan, who resigned with effect from January 1, 2021 onwards.




Internal Control and Risk Management



Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited recognizes the importance of internal control
and risk management. To efficiently supervise operations, the Company has assigned the Audit
Committee to be responsible for independently reviewing internal control without interference
from other personnel. The Audit Committee will ensure that the Company’s internal control is
appropriate and adequate for the purposes of safeguarding the Company’s assets, protecting
interests of the Company, subsidiaries, and shareholders, and preventing fraud, corruption or
risks affecting operation arisen from conflict of interests. In addition, information shall be
adequately disclosed for transparency and auditable in accordance with good corporate

governance.

Board of Directors’ and Audit Committee’s Opinion on Internal Control

In the Audit Committee meeting no. 1/2022 on 23 February 2022, the Audit Committee
assessed sufficiency and appropriateness of internal control from the assessment report
covering various aspects. To ensure that the Company recognizes the importance of sufficient
internalcontrolandadequateriskmanagement,internalstandardscovering8aspectsofinternal
controlis used:

1. Internal Environment
. Objective Setting

. Event Identification

. Risk Assessment

. Control Activities

2
3
4
5. Risk Response
6
7. Information and Communication
8

. Monitoring

1. Internal Environment

The Company recognizes the importance of internal management in order to operate
business with capability and foster culture of good internal control. To prevent conflict of
interests or interference from the Board of Directors, management, and all employees, the
Audit Committee role and responsibility is separated from the Executive Committee. Policies
and business ethics e.g. Conflict of Interest Policy, Anti-corruption Policy, etc. have been
written for allemployees’ acknowledgement. In addition, follow-up and assessment processes

areinplacetoensure compliance of the defined business ethics.

The Board of Directors has set up Internal Audit department. The Internal Audit
department is responsible for independently perform audit, assess, and follow-up to manage
internal risk and other aspects relevant to the business in order to ensure confidence to the
entity. For assurance that the internal control is sufficient, the Internal Audit department can
directly report internal audit results to the Audit Committee whom are knowledgeable,
competent, experts in the business of the Company. Moreover, the Internal Audit department
can operate independently from the Executive Committee and the management. With the

independence, the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit can be achieved.

The Board of Directors has clearly defined management structure by designating head
of business units with defined role and responsibility along with approval authority in order to
ensure accountability. Head of business units are knowledgeable and capable. Furthermore,

head of business units will help employees to efficiently develop for the future.



2. Objective Setting

The Company has defined objective setting in risk management from both internally and
externally by assigning the Internal Audit department to performrisk assessment and report to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee of the potential risks. The potential risks are
then addressed by appropriate responses to maintain risk level within the Company’s risk

appetite.

3. Event Identification

The Company places high importance to event that may affect entity’s operation. To
prevent such risk from affecting entity’s operation, analysis is performed to identify risk factors
affecting the entity both internally and externally as well as current business operation. The
combined risks are reported to the Executive Committee to consider appropriate policy

respondingtotherisks.

4. Risk Assessment

The Companyis aware of risks and impacts that may arise as assessed from business and
internal operation of the Company. The Executive Committee has set out measures to manage
arising risks by defining preventive audit target to prevent the incident from affecting the entity.
Thelnternal Auditdepartment performsrisk assessmentforbothinternaland externalfactorsin
accordance with the business operation of the Company in every operational level, unit, and
position. The risk assessment also covers operation, compliance, and external risks that may
affect the business to ensure thorough assessment. The risk assessment is considered by the
Audit Committee and has set out measure to prevent and respond to both negative and positive
risks to ensure appropriate risk management from the person responsible for such risk. The risk

assessmentis constantly performedin order totimely adjust audit strategy in response torisks.

5. Risk Response

The Company responds to risks both internally arisen from audit of the Internal Audit
department, and externally e.g. business impacting risk, economic risk, etc. The Executive
Committeeisresponsible for handling entity-level risks as well as risk management by various
approaches. Sequentially, personwith the highest authority in the business unitis assignedto

consider andrespondtotherisks withintherisk appetite of the entity.

6. Control Activities

The Board of Directors have defined limits, approval authority, role and responsibility in
accordance with the entity’s scope of operations, including clear segregation of duties for
managementand allemployeesto comply. Furthermore, the Board of Directors have assigned
the preparation of written operational guideline to manage risks e.g. setting up of operational
standard for all units in the entity. In addition, various control activities have been set such as
Anti-Corruption Policy, and control activities for regulation compliance. The guideline set forth
is deployed to manage internal and external risks. Moreover, the Board of Directors have
interests in developing information technology system to be utilized for suitable
organizational structure and security purposes. The Company has set operational measures
for subsidiaries to comply to ensure same standard. The set-out measures are regularly

reviewed to timely address risks that may change with time.

7. Information and Communication

The Company recognizes the importance of developing information system and
communication to be in line with business characteristics and keeping up with the changing
technology.Thedevicesandoperatingsystemsshouldbereadilyaccessiblewithoutsacrificing
security purposes. The up-to-date and accurate information can maximize benefits of the
Executive Committee and the entity in operation and decision making processes. In addition,
the communication channel is clearly defined with the purposes of external and internal
disclosures of information, submission of petition or complaints, whistle-blowing leads,
unlawful actions from stakeholders. Such communicated information shall be verified and

utilized toimprove appropriate responses for fair treatment of all related parties.



8. Monitoring Activities

The Company places high importance to the monitoring and evaluation of whether
operationaltarget, businessethics,and operation of managementand employeesareinlinewith
what have been defined. The evaluation is performed to identify if any adjustment or
improvement is needed. Definitive schedule has been set to comply with this procedure. This
procedure covers self-assessment of employees and assessment from the Internal Audit
departmentwhich have audit proceduresinaccordancewithinternalauditstandardsandreport
toresponsibleperson,andreportingtothe Audit Committee orthe Board of Directorsfordecision
making. After the evaluation, the Company can timely and appropriately respond to risk arisen

fromeachincident.

Opinion can be summarized that the Company has sufficient and appropriate internal
control system suitable for business operation without material weakness in the internal control
system. Theinternal control system can protect misappropriation of assets by the management.
The financial report of the Company is prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accountingstandard. Thedisclosureof informationinthefinancialreportisaccurateandreliable.
Andthebusinessoperationofthe Companyisincompliancewiththe Securities Exchange Actand

relevantlaws.

Head of Internal Audit of the Company

At present, the internal audit department of the Company is P&L International Audit
Company Limited , an external company (Outsourcing), which has been engaged to perform
audits for the year 2021 and 2022 (annual contract) . The Audit Committee considered this
company tobesufficiently knowledgeable and capable suitable for this position.Normally, the
consideration and approval of appointment, removal, transfer of the head of Internal Audit

department of the Company must be approved by the Audit Committee.



PPPPP

RELATED TRANSACTIONS

PPPPP



In2021and 2020, the Company andits subsidiaries have significant related transactions with 6

parties that may have conflicts of interest as follows:

Related Party

Relation/Type of Relation

Transaction

Transactionvalue

(Million Baht)

2020 2019

Necessity/Description

(Please considerinthe additional notes to the financial statements)

Rationale

1.Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop

Director

ASubsidiary

-buy preference shares

5.00 -

During 2021, HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd. (a subsidiary)
increaseintheregistered capital from the existing
registered capital of Baht 50 million (0.5 million
ordinaryshares of Baht 100 each) tothe new
registered capital of Baht 800 million (2 million
ordinary shares of Baht 100 each and 6 million
preference shares of Baht 100 each). Theissuance and
allocation of the newly issued preference shares to
specificinvestors whicharerelated personsinan
amountof 0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties

inanamount of 5.82 million shares.

Thedirector subscribed for the

preference sharesinthesubsidiaryinthe

same way as generalinvestors, not

having any other special rights.

2.Mr.PasulLiptapanlop

Director

ASubsidiary

-buy preference shares

6.00 s

During 2021, HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd. (a subsidiary)
increaseintheregistered capital from the existing
registered capital of Baht 50 million (0.5 million
ordinaryshares of Baht 100 each) tothe new
registered capital of Baht 800 million (2 million
ordinary shares of Baht 100 each and 6 million
preference shares of Baht 100 each). Theissuance and
allocation of the newly issued preference shares to
specificinvestors which arerelated personsinan
amountof 0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties

inanamountof 5.82 million shares.

Thedirector subscribed for the

preference sharesinthesubsidiaryinthe

sameway as generalinvestors, not

having any other special rights.




Related Party

Relation/Type of Relation

Transaction

Transactionvalue

(Million Baht)

2020

2019

Necessity/Description

Rationale

3.Lieutenant General Poonpirom

Liptapanlop

Closerelatives of directors

ASubsidiary

-buy preference shares

7.00

During 2021, HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd. (a subsidiary)
increaseintheregistered capital from the existing
registered capital of Baht 50 million (0.5 million
ordinaryshares of Baht 100 each) tothe new
registered capital of Baht 800 million (2 million
ordinary shares of Baht 100 each and 6 million
preference shares of Baht 100 each). Theissuance and
allocation of the newly issued preference shares to
specificinvestors whicharerelated personsinan
amount of 0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties

inanamountof 5.82 million shares.

Thedirector subscribedforthe
preference sharesinthesubsidiaryinthe
same way as generalinvestors, not

having any other special rights.

4.Proud Resort Hua Hin Co.,Ltd.

Related company

ASubsidiary

Operatesthe hotel,fitness center,
and providing stadium services

and sports activities.

-Commondirector;
Mr. Pasu Liptapanlopand
Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop

areauthorized directors of

Proud Resort Hua Hin Co.,Ltd.

-Rental of land

4.20

4.20

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd. (a subsidiary) hasrent 2
plots of land total 1-0-31.8 Raiin SoiHuaHin 71 from
Proud Resort Hua Hin Co.,Ltd.inorder tolocate sales
gallery of "InterContinental Residences Hua Hin"and
"111 Social Club".Therental feeis Baht 350,000 per
month. Contract periodis 3 years started from 1
October2019to 30 September 2022. However, during
2021, therewasanamendmenttoterminate the

contracton 31 December2021.

Asstipulateintheagreementwhichisin
the same way as general contracting

partiesinthe samesituation.

-Accruedrental fee

0.70

Landrentalat SoiHuaHin 71 inordertolocate sales
galleryof "InterContinental Residences Hua Hin" and
"111 Social Club".Therental feeis Baht 350,000 per

month.

Accordingtolandrental agreement.

-Marketing management

and Other expenses

1.13

1331

Accommodation, food and beverage, room/dining
Vouchersthat provided to customers or other parties

thatrelevantto marketing promotion.

Market price or contractual agreed price
whichisinthe same way as general

contracting partiesinthe samessituation.
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Related Party

Relation/Type of Relation

Transaction

Transactionvalue

(Million Baht)

2020

2019

Necessity/Description

Rationale

(continued)

4.Proud Resort Hua Hin Co.,Ltd.

Related company

ASubsidiary

spaceon floor 25th Holiday Inn Vana Nava Hua Hin to
locate sales galleryand mockup room of "WVEHHA". The
rental feeis Baht 288,609 per month. Contract period
is 35 months started from 15 February 2021 to 31
December 2023. When the contract expires, the
subsidiary has to pay restoration cost tothe hotelin

the amount of Baht 5 million.

-Operating expenses at 0.47 1.59 Management fee, wages, cost of food and beverage As stipulateinthe agreement whichisin

“111 Social Club” whichsoldin"111 Social Club" the same way as general contracting
partiesinthe samesituation.

-Other payables 0.36 3.04 Payablesforgoodsandservices Market price or contractual agreed price,
asaresult of purchase goodsorservices
as normal business practice.

-Revenue from 0.10 - Goodssoldat“111 Social Club” Market price

“111 Social Club”

5.VanaNava Co.,Ltd. Related company ASubsidiary
Operatesthewaterjungle, -Commondirector; -Marketing management 1.58 1.34 Accommodation, food and beverage, water jungle pass | Market price or contractual agreed price
theme park, hotel Mr. Pasu Liptapanlopand and Other expenses tickets that provided to customers or other partiesthat | whichisinthesamewayas general
Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop relevant to marketing promotion. contracting parties in the same situation.
areauthorizeddirectors of
VanaNava Co.,Ltd.

-Other payables 1.48 - Payablesforservices Market price or contractual agreed price,
asaresultof purchaseservices as normal
business practice.

-Leaseliability 6.49 - Hua Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd. (a subsidiary) hasrent a Asstipulateintheagreementwhichisin

the sameway as general contracting

partiesinthe samesituation.




Related Party

Relation/Type of Relation

Transaction

Transactionvalue

(Million Baht)

2020 2019

Necessity/Description Rationale

6.Proud Resort Phuket Co.,Ltd.

Related company

ASubsidiary

Operatesthe hotel

-Commondirector;
Mr.Pasu Liptapanlopand
Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop

areauthorized directors of a
parentcompanyof Proud
Resort Phuket Co.,Ltd.

-Marketing management

and Other expenses

- 1.79

Accommodation, room/spavouchersthat providedto | Market price
customers or other parties that relevant to marketing

promotion.

Necessity and reasonability of related transactions

The Companyand its subsidiaries related transactions are based on normal business practice or
normal business support. Allthe related transactions willincur as necessary and for business
operation effectiveness withinthe group. Pricing policies are determined based on the appropriate
andfair price and conditions by considering of the company’s benefits or according to the criteria
approved by the Board of Directors or the agreed price which isanormal business practice. The
transactions mustbeinaccordance with therelated transaction policy as specified by the resolution

ofthe Board of Directors' meeting.
Policiesortrends of related transactionsinthefuture

The Companyand its subsidiaries expect thatin the futurerelated transactions will remain based on
normal business practice such as spacerental. Inaddition, the Company and its subsidiaries would
purchase land fromrelated companies and may have other transactions. However, the futurerelated
transactions will be based onthe Company’s necessity and the Company’s benefitsand in

accordance with the policies orapproval procedures as mentioned.
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Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

To the Shareholders of Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited

The Board of Directors are responsible for the separate financial statements and the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, including financial
information in the Annual Report. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards with
appropriate accounting policies applied on a consistent basis. In addition, judgment and
estimates were made with careful and reasonable consideration, and adequate disclosures
have been made in the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements fairly and
transparently reflect financial positions, performance, and cash flows for the benefits of
shareholders and investors. The financial statements have been audited by independent
certified auditors whom have given their unqualified opinions. The Company supported the
auditors with information and documents for the auditors to audit and express opinion in

accordancewiththe auditing standards.

The Board of Directors have set up and maintained sufficient and efficient internal
control systems, internal audit, and compliance; with the purpose that the accounting
informationis materiallyaccurate,complete,andsufficienttosafeguardthe Company’sassets,

managerisks, and prevent corruption or unlawful actions.

TheBoard of Directors have appointed the Audit Committee comprising ofindependent
directors responsible for reviewing accounting policies, ensuring quality of financial
statements, reviewing internal control system and internal audit, reviewing the accuracy,
sufficiencyandappropriatenessdisclosuresofconnectedtransactions. The Audit Committee’s

opinion has beendisclosedinthe Report of the Audit Committee in the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors have viewed that the overall internal control system of the
Companywassufficientandappropriate. Theinternalcontrolsystemcould providereasonable
assurancethattheseparate financial statements and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021 were reliable and in

accordance with financial reporting standards and relevant laws and regulations.

Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited



Financial Statement

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Proud Real Estate Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Proud Real
Estate Public Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of
Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2021, their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in my professional judgment, was of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context
of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do
not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for my audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.



Key audit matter and how audit procedures respond to this matter are described below.
Compliance with loan covenants in loan agreements

Compliance with loan covenants in loan agreements is a key audit matter as the Group has
significant loan balances, which are the biggest liability items of the Group. Each loan agreement
specifies loan covenants which the Group must comply, such as debt to equity ratios. If the
Group is unable to comply with the financial covenants, it may result in the lenders calling the
loans and the reclassification of the liabilities from non-current liabilities to current liabilities, which

could affect the going concern of the Group.

| have gained an understanding of the process of monitoring compliance with the various
covenants by management and testing for compliance with both non-financial and financial
covenants, including whether financial ratios are in line with those stipulated in the borrowing
agreements. In addition, we have assessed the disclosures made with respect to covenants in

the notes to the financial statements.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available

to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine this matter that
was of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. | describe this matter in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 23 February 2022



Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables

Short-term loans to related parties
Inventories

Real estate development costs
Current tax assets

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits
Investments in subsidiaries
Long-term loans to related parties
Equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current financial assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

10

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
288,630,819 161,535,102 9,463,165 47,940,442
258,171 219,787 30,607,562 62,964,552
- - 462,065,400 16,967,000
195,358 677,276 - -
3,344,655,181 1,5693,425,165 3,782,770 3,782,770
1,898,114 3,028,146 1,896,847 3,026,930
280,264,504 184,758,289 7,307,934 9,637,465
3,915,902,147 1,943,643,765 515,123,678 144,319,159
191,890 191,416 191,890 191,416
- - 221,249,025 50,249,625
- - 100,000,000 641,500,000
9,829,021 9,138,940 4,078,201 4,956,263
11,112,021 15,314,674 3,510,894 8,366,778
4,604,021 4,987,146 4,604,021 4,987,146
45,202,092 26,878,144 2,389,125 2,365,656
1,315,615 1,256,427 1,198,005 1,198,818
72,254,660 57,766,747 337,221,161 713,815,702
3,988,156,807 2,001,410,512 852,344,839 858,134,861

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term loans from
financial institutions

Current portion of lease liabilities

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate

Deferred revenue from contract work

Accrued expenses related to the projects

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

Retention payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans from financial institutions,
net of current portion

Lease liabilities, net of current portion

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for decommissioning costs

Retention payable

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

15
16

17
18
19

20

17
18
21

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2021 2020 2021 2020
19,678,365 14,097,657 14,725,197 14,097,657
673,889,814 47,421,390 8,173,360 9,628,442
101,936,000 99,818,058 1,936,000 -
5,990,042 7,218,638 2,276,040 3,230,802
657,385,323 358,525,970 8,303,932 7,238,038
- 1,383,541 - 1,383,541
1,734,647 6,234,858 1,734,647 6,234,858
611,404,406 - - -
25,918,359 - 14,023,745 -
2,919,063 3,195,521 3,822,241 547,842
2,100,856,019 537,895,633 54,995,162 42,361,180
1,258,910,144 738,877,342 964,000 -
3,273,382 6,240,400 500,353 3,142,585
2,051,392 1,137,861 2,051,392 1,137,861
8,038,796 3,008,544 3,173,508 3,008,544
19,113,129 20,893,740 - 15,368,381
1,291,386,843 770,157,887 6,689,253 22,657,371
3,392,242,862 1,308,053,520 61,684,415 65,018,551
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Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Note
Liabilities and shareholders' equity (continued)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 22
Registered
673,148,951 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Issued and fully paid-up
641,469,040 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Share premium 23
Deficits
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
673,148,951 673,148,951 673,148,951 673,148,951
641,469,415 641,469,415 641,469,040 641,469,040
263,629,186 263,629,186 263,629,186 263,629,186

(309,184,656)

(211,741,609)

(114,437,802)

(111,981,916)

595,913,945 693,356,992 790,660,424 793,116,310
595,913,945 693,356,992 790,660,424 793,116,310
3,988,156,807 2,001,410,512 852,344,839 858,134,861

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Profit or loss:

Revenues

Revenues from sale of real estate
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Cost of real estate sold

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Operating loss

Finance income

Finance cost

Profit (loss) before income tax income (expenses)

Income tax income (expenses)

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Actuarial gain (loss)

Income tax effect

Iltem not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- net of income tax

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings (loss) per share

Profit (loss)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
- 181,654,644 - 181,654,644
3,146,720 16,175,992 42,571,991 44,869,833
3,146,720 197,830,636 42,571,991 226,524,477
- 146,288,545 - 146,288,545
287,850 15,317,804 - 15,316,303
101,685,542 93,020,671 75,625,167 68,802,264
101,973,392 254,627,020 75,625,167 230,407,112
(98,826,672) (56,796,384) (33,053,176) (3,882,635)
471,137 373,301 32,112,169 34,876,261
25 (17,154,169) (4,042,711) (1,281,057) (3,693,018)
(115,509,704) (60,465,794) (2,222,064) 27,300,608
27 18,272,490 15,648,118 (27,989) (8,864,370)
(97,237,214) (44,817,676) (2,250,053) 18,436,238
(257,291) 213,443 (257,291) 213,443
27 51,458 (42,689) 51,458 (42,689)
(205,833) 170,754 (205,833) 170,754
(205,833) 170,754 (205,833) 170,754
(97,443,047) (44,646,922) (2,455,886) 18,606,992
28
(0.152) (0.070) (0.004) 0.029
199
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Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2020

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Increase share capital

Balance as at 31 December 2020

Balance as at 1 January 2021

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Increase share capital

Balance as at 31 December 2020

Balance as at 1 January 2021

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Issued and Total
paid-up shareholders'
Note share capital Share premium Deficits equity
641,469,327 263,629,139 (167,094,687) 738,003,779
- - (44,817,676) (44,817,676)
- - 170,754 170,754
- - (44,646,922) (44,646,922)
22 88 47 - 135
641,469,415 263,629,186 (211,741,609) 693,356,992
641,469,415 263,629,186 (211,741,609) 693,356,992
- - (97,237,214) (97,237,214)
- - (205,833) (205,833)
- - (97,443,047) (97,443,047)
641,469,415 263,629,186 (309,184,656) 595,913,945
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Issued and Total
paid-up shareholders'
share capital Share premium Deficits equity
641,468,952 263,629,139 (130,588,908) 774,509,183
- - 18,436,238 18,436,238
- - 170,754 170,754
- - 18,606,992 18,606,992
22 88 47 - 135
641,469,040 263,629,186 (111,981,916) 793,116,310
641,469,040 263,629,186 (111,981,916) 793,116,310
- - (2,250,053) (2,250,053)
- - (205,833) (205,833)
- - (2,455,886) (2,455,886)
641,469,040 263,629,186 (114,437,802) 790,660,424

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit (loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on sales/write-off of equipment

Provision for expected credit loss

Reversal of estimated cost for rectification and

maintenance expense

Note

Reversal of impairment loss on other current financial assets

Gain on compensation received from insurance

Accrued income for guarantee fee
Amortisation of deferred interest expenses
under lease liabilities

Amortisation of front end fee
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Finance income
Finance cost

Loss from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities

18

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2021 2020 2021 2020
(115,509,704) (60,465,794) (2,222,064) 27,300,608
15,700,040 11,418,149 6,666,544 6,315,927
946,702 14,252 223,984 14,252
253 - 253 -
(624,776) (7,859,672) (624,776) (7,859,672)
- (1,059,989) - (1,059,989)
- (2,253,012) - (2,253,012)
- - (4,050,000) -
686,382 763,510 279,380 395,981
- 1,023,212 - 1,023,212
656,240 631,423 656,240 631,423
(471,137) (373,301) (32,112,169) (34,876,261)
16,467,786 3,279,201 1,001,676 3,297,037
(82,148,214) (54,882,021) (30,180,932) (7,070,494)
201
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Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Other receivables 8,124 1,276,791 (434,028) 7,136,014
Inventories 481,918 (633,815) - -
Real estate development costs (1,166,709,027) (23,789,948) - 143,172,965
Other current financial assets - 5,066,055 - 5,066,055
Other current assets (84,120,752) (142,512,104) 4,343,577 2,164,721
Other non-current financial assets (59,186) 145,984 813 188,592
Other non-current assets - 10,500 - -
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables 75,936,828 6,449,002 (1,468,872) 316,546
Deferred revenue from sale of real estate 298,859,353 350,918,705 1,065,894 1,830,773
Deferred revenue from contract work (1,383,541) - (1,383,541) -
Accrued expenses related to the projects (3,875,435) (1,824,284) (3,875,435) (1,824,284)
Other current liabilities (229,941) 1,793,809 3,320,916 (456,179)
Retention payable 24,137,748 2,839,408 (1,344,636) (1,852,204)
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities (939,102,125) 144,858,082 (29,956,244) 148,672,505
Cash received from interest income 378,113 466,595 68,906,670 373,112
Cash paid for interest expenses (35,201,232) (31,801,373) (832,423) (3,540,681)
Cash paid for corporate income tax (1,898,114) (3,028,146) (1,896,847) (3,026,930)
Cash received from withholding tax refundable 1,012,630 1,631,901 1,012,630 1,631,901
Cash received from compensation received from insurance - 2,253,012 - 2,253,012
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (974,810,728) 114,380,071 37,233,786 146,362,919

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
Statement of cash flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid to provide short-term loans to related parties 6 - - (445,098,400) (12,857,000)
Cash received from repayment of long-term loans to
related parties 6 - - 541,500,000 -
Cash paid for purchase of investments in subsidiaries - - (170,999,400) -
Increase in restricted bank deposits (474) (760) (474) (760)
Cash received from sales of equipment 714,954 150,000 714,954 150,000
Cash paid for acquisition of equipment (1,189,464) (5,768,189) (1,179,428) (1,452,255)
Cash paid for acquisition of intangible assets 14 (299,480) (1,646,500) (299,480) (1,646,500)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (774,464) (7,265,449) (75,362,228) (15,806,515)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts 5,580,708 (431,949) 627,539 (431,949)
Proceeds from short-term loans from related parties - - - 9,000,000
Repayment of short-term loans from related parties - (50,000,000) - (9,000,000)
Cash received from long-term loans from
financial institutions 17 522,326,349 110,000,000 2,900,000 20,000,000
Repayment of long-term loans from financial institutions 17 - (99,097,320) - (99,097,320)
Cash paid for front end fee 17 (2,508,979) (50,000) - (50,000)
Cash advance for finance cost (10,786,644) - - -
Cash received from issuance of cumulative
and redeemable preference shares 20 600,000,000 - - -
Cash paid for transaction cost for issuance of
cumulative and redeemable preference shares 20 (3,854,151) - - -
Cash paid for settle lease liabilities 18 (8,076,374) (7,898,612) (3,876,374) (3,698,612)
Cash received from issuance of ordinary shares - 135 - 135
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 1,102,680,909 (47,477,746) (348,835) (83,277,746)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 127,095,717 59,636,876 (38,477,277) 47,278,658
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 161,535,102 101,898,226 47,940,442 661,784
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 288,630,819 161,535,102 9,463,165 47,940,442
Supplement disclosures of cash flows information
Non-cash items
Recorded the interest expense as real estate project
under development 38,573,785 28,036,954 - -
Increase in accrued cost of land 16 550,000,000 - - -
Increase in payables for equipment 9,500 4,439 9,500 4,439
Increase in liabilities under lease agreements 18 6,292,193 1,142,999 - 1,142,999
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.1

1.2

2.2

General information

General information of the Company2

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated
and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in real estate development.
The registered office of the Company is at 900, Tonson Tower Building, 6th Floor, Ploenchit Road,
Lumpini, Patumwan, Bangkok.

Coronavirus disease 2019 Pandemic

The Coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic is adversely impacting most businesses and
industries. This situation may bring uncertainties and have an impact on the environment in
which the group operates. The Group’s management has continuously monitored ongoing
developments and assessed the financial impact in respect of the valuation of assets,
provisions and contingent liabilities, and has used estimates and judgement in respect of
various issues as the situation has evolved.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their
presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the
Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Proud Real
Estate Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary
companies (“the subsidiaries”) (collectively as “the Group”):

Country of Percentage of
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2021 2020

Percent Percent
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.99 99.99
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.97 99.97
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.99 -
Convent Beta Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.97 -

2.3
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3.2

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has
rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it

has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

c) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the

consolidated financial statements.
The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding
International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the

standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after 1 January 2022

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying
accounting treatment and, for some standards, providing temporary reliefs or temporary

exemptions for users.

The management of the Group believes that adoption of these amendments will not have

any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.



4.2

4.3

Significant accounting policies
Revenue and expense recognition
Revenue from sale of real estate

Revenue from sale of land and houses and sale of residential condominium units is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer by
generally upon transfer of the legal ownership of the properties. Revenue from sale of real
estate is measured at the amount of the consideration received after deducting discounts
and consideration payable to the customers. The payment condition depends on the
payment terms which is stipulated in the contract with customers. Payment in advance from
customers, which made before transferring of control of the asset, has been presented
under the caption of “Deferred revenue from sale of real estate” in the statement of financial
position.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an
accrual basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss

allowance).
Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective
interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.

Cost of sale of real estate

Cost of sale of land and houses/residential condominium units is determined based on the
anticipated total development costs (after considering the actual costs incurred to date)
attributed to land and houses/residential condominium units already sold on the basis of the
salable area, and is recognised as cost of sale in accordance with the revenue recognition.

Cost of sale of real estate includes cost of other goods, such as furniture and fixtures, that
are considered part of the residential condominium unit and transferred to a customer in
accordance with the contract.

Selling expenses directly associated with projects, such as specific business tax and
transfer fees, are recognised as expenses when the sale occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist cash in hand and at banks and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable value.
Real estate development costs

Real estate development costs are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of real estate development is calculated as detailed below.
Land

Land is valued at cost on a weighted average method (calculated separately for each

projects) and is recognised as cost in accordance with the revenue recognition.
Deferred interest

Interest expenses relating to project development are recorded as deferred interest, with
capitalisation ceasing when the ownership is transferred to buyer. Such deferred interest is
recorded as a part of real estate development costs and is recognised as cost of sale in

accordance with the average revenue recognition (calculated separately for each project).
Infrastructure

The costs of construction for infrastructure like road, electricity system, water supply system
and others are recorded as a part of real estate development costs and are recognised as

cost of sale in accordance with the revenue recognition.
Deferred project development costs

Preparation costs and project development costs before sales are recorded as a part of
real estate development costs and are recognised as cost of sale in accordance with the

revenue recognition.
The Group recognises loss on diminution in value of projects (if any) in profit or loss.
Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises commission paid to obtain a customer contract as an asset and
amortised to expenses on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of an
asset recognised exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects to
receive less direct costs. Provided that the amortisation period of the asset that the Group
otherwise would have used is one year or less, costs to obtain a contract are immediately

recognised as expenses.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the

cost method.
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Equipment and depreciation

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on
impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis
over the following estimated useful lives.

Equipment - 5-10 years
Furniture and office equipment - 3-5 years
Vehicles - 4 -5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on assets under installation.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset or development of the projects that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the costs of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

To the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the development of projects, interest
costs are presented as the actual borrowing costs less any investment income from the
temporary investment of those borrowings. To the extent that funds are borrowed and used
for the general purposes, the interest costs are determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that project. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the entity that are outstanding during the
year, other than borrowings made for specific purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Following the initial recognition, the
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation
expense is charged to the profit or loss.

4.11

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives

Computer software 3 - 10 years

Leases

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group as a lessee

The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the
lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group recognises right-of-
use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on

lease payments.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease,
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the

underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the

straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Buildings 3 years

Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the

estimated useful life of the asset.
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Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit
in the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or
a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associates, and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own
a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company,
key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and
direction of the Company’s operations.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of
the buildings and equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Group
also carries out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

4.14

4.15
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Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund

are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group and employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the Group. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust

fund and the Group’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Defined benefit plans

The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments they must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Group treats these severance payment

obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified

independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefits plans are recognised immediately

in other comprehensive income.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the

taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
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Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax

rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be

utilised.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items

that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.
Financial instruments

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
However, trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue

recognition.
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is
driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate (“EIR”) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for derivative liabilities, at initial recognition the Group’s financial liabilities are
recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. In determining amortised cost, the Group takes into account any
discounts or premiums on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares are separated into financial liability and
equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance date of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares, the Group initially
recognised the value of the liability component and redemption option at fair value using a
market rate and classified as a financial liability. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the equity component.

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares - liability component are measured at
amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until they are redeemed or due to repayment. The
value of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares - equity component determined
upon the issuance of the preference shares do not change in subsequent periods. The
redemption option are subsequently measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the fair value of the redemption option are recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issuance of cumulative and redeemable preference
shares are apportioned to the liability and equity components of the cumulative and
redeemable preference shares in proportion to the allocation of proceeds to the liability and
equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.



Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has transferred control of
the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
(a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, and considers a financial asset as credit
impaired or default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit
risk and to be in default using other internal or external information, such as credit rating of
issuers.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

ECLs are calculated It is based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.18 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Group applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a
quoted market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation
technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant
observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair

value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:
Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the

reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding
matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported
amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant

judgements and estimates are as follows:



Leases (Unit: Million Baht)

The Group as a lessee Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Transfer pricing policy

Determining the lease term with extension and termination options 2021 2020 2021 2020
In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in Transactions with related parties
assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or Cost of food and beverage - 1 - - Contractual agreed price
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an Rental fee 4 4 - - Contractual agreed price
economic incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option. Other expenses 2 - - - Contractual agreed price

Transactions with related persons
Estimating the incremental borrowing rate )

Return on cumulative and
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the redeemable preference
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate shares 1 - - - Contractual agreed price
to discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the balances of the accounts between the Group and
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the those related parties are as follows:
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar (Unit: Baht)
economic environment. Consolidated Separate
Deferred tax assets financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
Amount due from and advance to related parties (Note 8)

losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the Subsidiaries ) ) 7.618.345 3,131,949

temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
Total amount due from and advance to

required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based related parties i i 7.618,345 3.131,949
upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.
6. Related party transactions Interest receivables - related parties (Note 8)
. P . . . . Subsidiaries - - 22,744,120 59,631,645
During the years, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties. Such
Total interest receivables - related parties - - 22,744,120 59,631,645

transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and

were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Group and
Other payables - related parties (Note 16)

those related parties.

Related persons 312,000 - 312,000 -
(Unit: Million Baht) Related parties 1,839,337 3,828,585 - 109,090
Consolidated Separate Total other payables - related parties 2,151,337 3,828,585 312,000 109,090
financial statements financial statements Transfer pricing policy
2021 2020 2021 2020 Redeemable preference shares -
Transactions with subsidiary companies related persons (Note 20)
(eliminated from the consolidated Related persons 18,000,000 - - -
financial statements) Total redeemable preference shares - related
Management income - - 34 34  Contractual agreed price persons 18,000,000 _ _ _
Interest income - - 32 35 MLR-0.5% per annum
Other income - - 8 - Contractual agreed price



(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Other current liabilities - related party
Subsidiary - - 2,812,188 -
Total other current liabilities - related party - B 2,812,188 B
Lease liabilities - related party
Related party 6,487,031 7,085,651 - -
6,487,031 7,085,651 - -

Total lease liabilities - related party

Loans to related parties

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the balances of loans between the Company and those
related parties and the movements in loans were as follows:

Loans to subsidiary companies

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Balance as at Balance as at
31 December Increase 31 December
Short-term loans to subsidiary companies 2020 during the year 2021
Convent Beta Co., Ltd. - 367,000,000 367,000,000
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. - 52,712,400 52,712,400
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 16,967,000 25,386,000 42,353,000
Total 16,967,000 445,098,400 462,065,400

Short-term loans to subsidiary companies are due at call, carrying interest at the rate of
MLR-0.5% per annum.

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Balance as at Balance as at
31 December Decrease 31 December
Long-term loans to subsidiary companies 2020 during the year 2021
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. 541,500,000 (541,500,000) -
Total 641,500,000 (541,500,000) 100,000,000

Long-term loans to subsidiary companies bear interest at the rate of MLR-0.5% per annum.

The payment schedules of principal and interests are due within 31 December 2023.

As described in Note 20 to the financial statements, on 3 September 2021, the Company,
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary, and investors entered into an agreement
of the shareholders of Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. Under the agreement, the subsidiary
shall settle the shareholder loan, such as loans and accrued interest, to the Company when
received the payment for the preference shares at the subscription price from the investors.

At present, the subsidiary has already repaid such loan to the Company.
Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had employee benefit
expenses payable to their directors and management as below.
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated/Separate
financial statements

For the year ended
31 December

2021 2020
Short-term employee benefits 25,251,037 19,079,358
Post-employment benefits 526,278 575,000
Total 25,777,315 19,654,358
Cash and cash equivalents
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash 98,461 208,120 73,690 126,298
Deposits at banks 288,724,248 161,518,398 9,581,365 48,005,560
Less: Restricted bank deposits (Note 11) (191,890) (191,416) (191,890) (191,416)
288,630,819 161,535,102 9,463,165 47,940,442

Total cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed account carried
interests between 0.05 and 0.25 percent per annum (2020: between 0.03 and 0.25 percent

per annum).



8. Other receivables 10. Other current assets

(Unit: Baht) (Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
financial statements financial statements
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020 2021 2020
Amount due from and advance to related Advance payment for project
parties (Note 6) - - 7,618,345 3,131,949 management fee 190,228,045 124,659,593 - -
Other receivables - unrelated parties 258,171 219,787 245,097 200,958 Prepaid expenses 4,046,391 4,261,963 2,091,667 2,683,778
Interest receivables - related parties (Note 6) - - 22,744,120 59,631,645 Advance for purchase of inventories 70,551,911 49,048,270 165,306 165,306
Total 258,171 219,787 30,607,562 62,964,552 Others 15,438,157 6,788,463 5,050,961 6,788,381
Total 280,264,504 184,758,289 7,307,934 9,637,465
9. Real estate development costs
(Unit: Baht) 11. Restricted bank deposits
Consolidated Separate . ) . )
o , , These represent fixed deposits pledged by the Company with the banks to secure credit
financial statements financial statements
facilities and letter of guarantees obtained from the banks.
2021 2020 2021 2020
Land 2,625,032,470 1,329,610,805 1,641,624 1,641,624 12. Investments in subsidiaries
Construction in progress and design
: Paid- ital hareholdi t t
expenses 624,956,466 207,721,900 1,843,573 1,843,573 Company’s name aid-up capita Shareholding percentage Cos
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Promotion costs 193,595 193,595 193,595 193,595
(Thousand (Thousand (Percent) (Percent) (Thousand (Thousand
Capita"sed borrowing costs 94,472,650 55,898,865 103,978 103,978 Baht) Baht) Baht) Baht)
Total 3,344,655,181 1,593,425,165 3,782,770 3,782,770 Ordinary shares
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. 200,000 50,000 99.99 99.99 200,000 50,000
, . o , Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 250 250 99.97 99.97 250 250
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the subsidiaries capitalised borrowing yENng
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. 20,000 - 99.99 - 19,999 -
costs to be included in the cost of land and construction in progress which were calculated Convent Beta Co., Ltd. 1,000 B, 99.97 - 1,000 -
from capitalisation rate from weighted average rate of loans as follows: Total investments in subsidiaries 221,249 50,250
Consolidated financial statements The establishment of new subsidiaries
2021 2020 a. On 27 April 2021, a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land to approve the establishment a new subsidiary under the name “Proud Horseshoe
and construction in progress (Million Baht) 39 30

Co., Ltd.”, which engages in real estate development and has registered share capital
Capitalisation rate (%) 3.25-5.08 3.78-6.10

of 200,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 20 million. The shares are

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the subsidiaries have pledged some land and 99.99 percent held by the Company. The establishment of the new company was

construction thereon as collateral for credit facilities of the subsidiaries which have net book registered with the Ministry of Commerce on 28 April 2021 and 100 percent of which

have been called up. On 27 April 2021, the Company paid for such share capital of
Baht 20 million.

value as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2021 2020

Net book value of land and construction that has been pledged as collateral 2,623 1,328



b. On 9 August 2021, a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a 13. Equipment
resolution to approve the establishment a new subsidiary under the name “Convent Movements of equipment for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were

Beta Co., Ltd.”, which engages in real estate development and has registered share summarised below.

capital of 10,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 1 million. The shares are

99.97 percent held by the Company. The establishment of the new company was (Unit: Baht)
registered with the Ministry of Commerce on 16 August 2021 and 100 percent of Consolidated financial statements
which have been called up. On 10 August 2021, the Company paid for such share Furniture and
capital of Baht 1 million. Equipment office equipment Vehicles Total
Increase in share capital of subsidiary Cost
. . . 1 January 2020 2,400,000 6,645,326 - 9,045,326
On 6 September 2021, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Hua Hin
e . , , , , Additions - 5,772,628 - 5,772,628
Alpha 71 Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary, passed a resolution approving the increase in the
. i - - . i jte- 2,400,000 190,468 - 2,590,468
registered capital in the amount of Baht 750 million (1.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 Disposals/write-of ( ) ( ) ( )
each and 6 million preference shares of Baht 100 each) from the existing registered capital 31 December 2020 - 12,227,486 - 12,227,486
of Baht 50 million (0.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) to the new registered capital of Additions - 4429,331 822,431 5,251,762
Baht 800 million (2 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each and 6 million preference shares of Disposals/write-off - (2,132,957) - (2,132,957)
Baht 100 each). The said company registered the capital increase with the Ministry of 31 December 2021 - 14,523,860 822,431 15,346,291
Commerce on 9 September 2021. Accumulated depreciation
The issuance and allocation of newly issued shares are as follows: 1 January 2020 2,399,999 213,404 - 2,613,403
. . - . . . Depreciation for the year - 2,901,359 - 2,901,359
1. The issuance and allocation of 1.5 million newly issued ordinary shares with a par P Y
value of Baht 100 each to the Company. Accumulated depreciation on disposals/
write-off (2,399,999) (26,217) - (2,426,216)
2. The issuance and allocation of 6 million newly issued preference shares with a par
o . . 31 December 2020 - 3,088,546 - 3,088,546
value of Baht 100 each to specific investors which are related persons in an amount of
. o . Depreciation for the year - 3,562,581 156,237 3,718,818
0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties in an amount of 5.82 million shares.
Accumulated depreciation on disposals/
As at 31 December 2021, the Company presents the newly issued ordinary shares as write-off - (1,290,094) - (1,290,094)
investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements and presents the newly 31 Decermnber 2021 i 5361033 156,237 5,517.270
issued preference shares as cumulative and redeemable preference shares which are
. . . . agugn . . . . 0 . Net bOOk value
recognised as financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements as described in
L 31 December 2020 - 9,138,940 - 9,138,940
Note 20 to the financial statements.
31 December 2021 - 9,162,827 666,194 9,829,021
Depreciation for the year
2020 (included in the administrative expenses) 2,901,359
2021 (included in the administrative expenses) 3,718,818
223



Cost

1 January 2020

Additions

Disposals/write-off

31 December 2020

Additions

31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2020

Depreciation for the year

Accumulated depreciation on disposals/
write-off

31 December 2020

Depreciation for the year

31 December 2021

Net book value

31 December 2020

31 December 2021

Depreciation for the year

2020 (included in the administrative expenses)

2021 (included in the administrative expenses)

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Fumniture and

Equipment office equipment Vehicles Total

2,400,000 5,644,343 - 8,044,343
- 1,456,694 - 1,456,694
(2,400,000) (190,468) - (2,590,468)
- 6,910,569 - 6,910,569

- 366,500 822,431 1,188,931

- 7,277,069 822,431 8,099,500
2,399,999 211,160 - 2,611,159
- 1,769,363 - 1,769,363
(2,399,999) (26,217) - (2,426,216)
- 1,954,306 - 1,954,306

- 1,910,756 156,237 2,066,993

- 3,865,062 156,237 4,021,299

- 4,956,263 - 4,956,263

- 3,412,007 666,194 4,078,201
1,769,363

2,066,993

14.

15.

16.

Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets representing computer software, as at 31 December 2021

and 2020 was presented below.

Cost

1 January 2020
Additions

31 December 2020

Additions

31 December 2021
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2020

Amortisation for the year
31 December 2020

Amortisation for the year

31 December 2021
Net book value

31 December 2020

31 December 2021
Amortisation for the year

2020 (included in the administrative expenses)
2021 (included in the administrative expenses)

Bank overdrafts

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated/

Separate

financial statements

5,105,890
1,646,500

6,752,390
299,480

7,051,870

1,427,416
337,828

1,765,244
682,605

2,447,849

4,987,146

4,604,021

337,828

682,605

Bank overdrafts of the Company are subject to interest at the rate of MOR. The bank

overdrafts are guaranteed by a person without demanding consideration for the guarantee.

Bank overdrafts of the subsidiaries are subject to interest at the highest rate for normal

loans. The bank overdrafts of the subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Company.

Trade and other payables

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Trade payables - unrelated parties 95,249,882 25,524,768 1,311,361 2,287,325
Other payables - related parties (Note 6) 2,151,337 3,828,585 312,000 109,090
Other payables - unrelated parties 15,039,604 7,341,589 1,021,588 2,375,567
Accrued cost of land 550,000,000 - - -
Accrued expenses 11,448,991 10,726,448 5,528,411 4,856,460
Total 673,889,814 47,421,390 8,173,360 9,628,442
PROUD
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Movements of the long-term loans account during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 were summarised below.
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Beginning balance 838,695,400 823,604,658 - 78,124,108
Additional borrowings 522,326,349 110,000,000 2,900,000 20,000,000
Amortisation of front end fee 1,925,096 2,488,372 - 1,023,212
Finance cost - Interest expenses on
borrowings 408,278 1,749,690 - -
Repayments - (99,097,320) - (99,097,320)

(2,508,979) (50,000) - (50,000)
1,360,846,144 838,695,400 2,900,000 -

Front end fee

Ending balance

Under loan agreements, the Group must comply with the conditions stipulated in the
agreements such as the maintenance of net debt to equity ratio.

According to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
was unable to maintain a certain financial ratio stipulated in the loan agreement with the
aforementioned financial institution. However, the management of the Group has
negotiated with the financial institution. On 5 November 2021, the Group obtained a waiver
letter for the condition to maintain certain financial ratios for the year ended 31 December
2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the loan facilities of the subsidiaries which have not yet been
drawn down amounted to Baht 1,068 million (2020: Baht 580 million).

18.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for used in its operations. Leases generally have lease terms

between 2 - 5 years.

Right-of-use assets

Movement of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

summarised below:

1 January 2020
Additions

Depreciation for the year
31 December 2020
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation on disposal/write-off
31 December 2021

1 January 2020

Additions

Depreciation for the year

31 December 2020

Disposals

Depreciation for the year
Depreciation on disposal/write-off

31 December 2021

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Buildings Motor vehicles Total
20,024,608 2,326,029 22,350,637
- 1,142,999 1,142,999
(7,389,823) (789,139) (8,178,962)
12,634,785 2,679,889 15,314,674
11,012,572 - 11,012,572
(10,918,122) (1,142,999) (12,061,121)
(10,656,368) (642,249) (11,298,617)
7,940,452 204,061 8,144,513
10,013,319 1,098,702 11,112,021
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Buildings Motor vehicles Total
9,106,486 2,326,029 11,432,515
- 1,142,999 1,142,999
(3,419,597) (789,139) (4,208,736)
5,686,889 2,679,889 8,366,778
- (1,142,999) (1,142,999)
(3,274,697) (642,249) (3,916,946)
- 204,061 204,061
2,412,192 1,098,702 3,510,894
PROUD



b)

Lease liabilities

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Lease payments 9,558,247 14,095,058 2,868,684 6,745,058
Less: Deferred interest expenses (294,823) (636,020) (92,291) (371,671)
Total 9,263,424 13,459,038 2,776,393 6,373,387

Less: Portion due within one year (5,990,042) (7,218,638) (2,276,040) (3,230,802)

Lease liabilities - net of current portion 3,273,382 6,240,400 500,353 3,142,585

Movements of the lease liability account during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 are summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 13,459,038 19,451,141 6,373,387 8,533,019
Additions 6,292,193 1,142,999 - 1,142,999
Decrease (3,097,815) - - -
Accretion of interest 686,382 763,510 279,380 395,981
Repayment (8,076,374)  (7,898,612)  (3,876,374)  (3,698,612)

9,263,424 13,459,038 2,776,393 6,373,387

Balance at end of year

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 32.1 under the liquidity risk.

Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 11,298,617 3,916,946
Interest expense on lease liabilities 686,382 279,380
Expense relating to short-term leases 627,911 208,105
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 96,000 96,000

d)

19.

20.

Others

The Group had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2021 of
Baht 8 million (2020: Baht 8 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 4 million (2020:
Baht 4 million)), including the cash outflow related to short-term lease, leases of low-value
assets and variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate.

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate comprises cash received in advance from
customers which can be classified by entity as follows:
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Proud Real Estate Public Co., Ltd. 8,303,932 7,238,038 8,303,932 7,238,038
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. 649,081,391 351,287,932 - -
Total 657,385,323 358,525,970 8,303,932 7,238,038

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

On 3 September 2021, the Company, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary,
and investors entered into an agreement of the shareholders of Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd.
The subsidiary agrees to offer 1.5 million newly issued ordinary shares to the Company at
the price of Baht 100 per share, totaling Baht 150 million and to offer 6 million preference
shares to related persons in an amount of 0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties in an
amount of 5.82 million shares at the price of Baht 100 per share, totaling Baht 600 million.

The rights attached to the preference shares shall be as follows:

Voting right 50 shares per 1 vote

Right to receive dividends Within 1 year from the completion of the transaction:
Preference shares are entitled to receive dividends at the

rate of Baht 7.5 per share.

After 1 year from the completion of the transaction:
Preference shares are entitled to a dividend of 10% per
annum of the par value of the preference shares.

Preference shareholders have the right to accumulate
accrued dividends of the preference shares.

Preference shares are not entitled to receive dividends
other than dividends at the rates as specified above.



The right to receive a return of
capital

Redemption of preference shares

In the event of company dissolution and liquidation,
preference shareholders have the right to receive capital
return of preference shares and accrued dividend
payable of preference shares (if any) at their residual
value prior to liquidation before ordinary shareholders.

Redemption of preference shares within 1 year

The Company and Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. shall
redeem the preference shares, either partially or entirely,
within 1 year from the date of completion of the
transaction. The investors will receive a return on the
preference shares at the rate of Baht 7.5 per share.
(excluding the tax payable of the investors).

Redemption of preference shares after the maturity of
1 year but less than 3 years

(@) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has sufficient
retained earnings.

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to investors (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company will
exercise its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
at a price equal to the par value of the shares
plus a portion of the legal reserve.

(b) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has insufficient
retained earnings

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to the investors in
the amount that can be afforded (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company will
exercises its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
in the same proportions at the price equal to
the sum of (1) the par value of the shares
(2) the legal reserve (3) the amount of unpaid
dividends and accumulated accrued dividends
of preference shares and (4) the net of the
capital gains tax minus withholding tax at the
rate of 10%, as the investors are obligated on
tax payable for the accumulated dividend of the
preference shares.

Redemption of preference shares at maturity of 3 years

The investors have the put option to request the
Company to purchase entirely preference shares from
the investors. The Company guarantees to act according
to the rights of the investors as follows:

(@) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has sufficient
retained earnings.

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to investors (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company will
exercise its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
at a price equal to the par value of the shares
plus a portion of the legal reserve.

(b) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has insufficient
retained earnings

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to the investors in
the amount that can be afforded (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company will
exercises its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
in the same proportions at the price equal to
the sum of (1) the par value of the shares
(2) the legal reserve (3) the amount of unpaid
dividends and accumulated accrued dividends
of preference shares and (4) the net of the
capital gains tax minus withholding tax at the
rate of 10%, as the investors are obligated on
tax payable for the accumulated dividend of the
preference shares.

The subsidiary presents the preference shares as a financial liability component in
“Cumulative and redeemable preference shares” account at amortised cost until maturity
within one year in the consolidated statement of financial position. The subsidiary is
confident that preference shares will be redeemed within 1 year due to the transfer of
ownership of condominium within 2022.



21.

Movements of cumulative and redeemable preference shares net from the transaction cost
for issuance of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares for the year ended
31 December 2021 were summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated
financial statements

Balance as at 1 January 2021 -
Add: Issuing during the year

18,000,000

Unrelated parties 582,000,000
Total 600,000,000
Amortisation of transaction cost for issuance of cumulative and

Related persons (Note 6)

redeemable preference shares 1,203,761
Financial cost - Return on cumulative and redeemable
preference shares 14,054,796
Less: Transaction cost for issuance of cumulative and redeemable
preference shares (3,854,151)
611,404,406

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to
employees after they retire, was as follows:
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

2021 2020
Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year 1,137,861 719,881
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 639,286 612,274
Interest cost 16,954 19,149
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain (loss) arising from
Financial assumptions changes (96,923) 100,366
Experience adjustments 354,214 (313,809)
2,051,392 1,137,861

Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year

As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term
employee benefit is 12 years (2020: 14 years) (Separate financial statements: 12 years
(2020: 14 years)).

22,

22.1

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised as follows:

(Unit: % per annum)
Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

2021 2020
Discount rate 2.22 1.49
Salary increase rate 5.00 5.00

Staff turnover rate 5.73-68.76 5.73-68.76

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of
the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
summarised below.
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated/Separate financial statements

2021 2020

Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5%

Discount rate (86,848) 92,681 (60,492) 65,415

Decrease 1.0%

(110,265)

Decrease 1.0% Increase 1.0%

(159,727) 126,151

Increase 1.0%

Salary increase rate 178,215

Increase 20.0% Decrease 20.0% Increase 20.0% Decrease 20.0%
(266,588) 352,199 (202,542) 290,439

Staff turnover rate

Share capital and warrant
Registered share capital

The increase in share capital of the Company during the year 2020 resulting from

exercising of warrants are summarised below.

Number of Ordinary shares Date of registration of
Date of Type of exercised issued for share capital with the
exercised warrant warrants exercised warrants Exercise price Ministry of Commerce
(Unit) (Shares) (Baht per share)
3 July 2020 PROUD-W?2 75 88 1.533 14 July 2020

(a final exercise date)



22.2 Warrants 25. Finance cost

Warrants Warrants as at (Unit: Baht)
Warrants as at exercised during Warrants expired 31 December Consolidated Separate
Warrants Exercise price  Exercise ratio 1 January 2020 the year during the year 2020 . . . .
financial statements financial statements
(Baht per unit) (Warrants: (units) (units) (units) (units)
ordinary shares) 2021 2020 2021 2020
PROUD-W?2 1.533 1:1.174 31,679,999 (75) (31,679,924) Interest expenses on borrowings 899,358 3,122,813 836,713 3,140,649
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 686,382 763,510 279,380 395,981
On 3 July 2020 (a final exercise date), PROUD-W2 warrant holder exercised 75 warrants to ,
Return on cumulative and redeemable
purchase 88 newly issued ordinary shares with per value of Baht 1 at an exercise price of
preference shares 15,258,557 - - -
Baht 1.533 per share. The Company received the cash of Baht 135 from the exercise of the
Others 309,872 156,388 164,964 156,388
warrants, and the Company registered the corresponding increase in its paid-up capital with
17,154,169 4,042,711 1,281,057 3,693,018
the Ministry of Commerce on 14 July 2020. Total
23. Share premium 26. Expenses by nature
Pursuant to Section 51 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, in case the Significant expenses by nature are as follows:
Company intends to offer share for sale at a price higher than the registered per value, the (Unit: Baht)
Company is required to appropriate the amount in excess of the par value to the surplus Consolidated Separate

reserve fund. Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.

financial statements financial statements

24. Revenue from contracts with customers 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenue to be recognised for the remaining performance obligations Construction infrastructure and

As at 31 December 2021, expected revenue to be recognition in the future relating to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) of contracts with

design expenses - 68,381,222 - 68,381,222

Land cost

60,890,568

60,890,568

customers are as follows: Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 49,811,429 46,922,628 49,811,429 46,922,628
Transfer and commission fee - 9,001,282 - 9,001,282
(Unit: Baht)
] Promotion and advertising expenses 1,828,725 6,316,522 1,685,702 6,315,022
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Rental and service expenses 2,874,500 1,857,619 1,503,707 1,857,619
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 15,700,040 11,418,149 6,666,544 6,315,927

2021 2020 2021 2020

Nature of business:

Real estate development 2,961,709,811 2,240,627,411 8,588,000 8,588,000

The Group expects to satisfy the performance obligations within 2 years.

However, the revenue recognised in the future are subject to several internal and external
factors including ability to make installment payments by customers and getting approved
credit facilities from banks, the progression of projects construction of the Group and also
economic and political conditions.



27.

Income tax

Income tax expenses (income) for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are made
up as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Current income tax

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Income tax expenses (income) reported in

profit or loss

(18,272,490)

2021

2020

(15,648,118)

2021

2020

27,989 8,864,370

(18,272,490)

(15,648,118)

27,989 8,864,370

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Deferred tax on actuarial gains and losses

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate

financial statements

2021

(51,458)

2020
42,689

2021
(51,458)

2020

42,689

The reconciliation between accounting profit (loss) and income tax expenses (income) was

shown below.

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate

financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020

Accounting profit (loss) before tax (115,509,704)  (60,465,794)  (2,222,064) 27,300,608
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit (loss) before tax multiplied by

income tax rate (23,101,941)  (12,093,159) (444,413) 5,460,122
Effects of:

Non-deductible expenses 4,544,727 188,732 981,703 88,879

Additional expense deductions allowed - (8,222) - (8,222)

Total 4,544,727 180,510 981,703 80,657
Deferred tax assets not recognised (967,786) (2,016,162) (967,786) (2,229,624)
Decrease (increase) in recognition of deferred tax

assets 461,153 5,553,215 438,098 5,553,215
Decrease in deferred tax assets not recognised - (7,272,522) - -
Unused tax loss 791,357 - 20,387 -
Income tax expenses (income) reported in

profit or loss (18,272,490) (15,648,118) 27,989 8,864,370

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for expected credit losses - retention 1,596,928 1,596,928 1,596,928 1,596,928
The difference between book and tax

accounting net revenue 322,865 323,226 (101,682) 295,675
Provision for long-term employee benefits 410,278 227,572 410,278 227,572
Provision for decommissioning costs 809,292 245,481 483,601 245,481
Unused tax loss 23,997,038 12,495,083 - -
Interest on loan from parent company

capitalised as project costs 18,065,691 11,989,854 - -
Total 45,202,092 26,878,144 2,389,125 2,365,656

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has deductible temporary differences Baht 5 million
(2020: Baht 5 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 5 million (2020: Baht 5 million)) and
unused tax losses which will expire in 2022 - 2026 totaling Baht 53 million (2020: Baht 49
million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 48 million (2020: Baht 48 million)), on which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised as the Group believes that the future taxable
profits may not be sufficient to allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused tax

losses.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing profit (loss) for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Basic earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2021 2020 2021 2020
Profit (loss) for the year (Baht) (97,237,214)  (44,817,676)  (2,250,053) 18,436,238
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (shares) 641,469,040 641,468,993 641,469,040 641,468,993
Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht/share) (0.152) (0.070) (0.004) 0.029
PROUD



29.

30.

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions
about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The Group is principally engaged in the development of real estate segment. Its operations
are carried on only in Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating
profit or loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the
financial statements. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as
reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to the aforementioned reportable

operating segment and geographical area.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing
performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and total
assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and total
assets in the financial statements.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent

with that for third party transactions.
Geographic information

The Group operates in Thailand only. As a result, all the revenues and assets as reflected
in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable segment.

Main customers

For the years 2021 and 2020, the Group has no major customer with revenue of 10 percent
or more of an entity’s revenues.

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company contributed to the fund monthly at the
rate of 5 percent of basic salary and its employees contributed to the fund monthly at the
rate of 3 percent to 15 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Kasikorn
Asset Management Co., Ltd., will be paid to the employees upon termination in accordance
with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2021 amounting to approximately Baht 1 million
(2020: Baht 1 million) were recognised as expenses.

31.
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31.2

31.3

31.4

32.

32.1

Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments in respect of service agreements
payable in the future, which the terms of the agreements are generally between 1 and 3 years,
of approximately Baht 6 million (2020: Baht 19 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht
1 million (2020: Baht 2 million)).

Commitments with respect to project development and related services

The Group had commitments in respect of property development cost and related services
totaling Baht 601 million (2020: Baht 480 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 0.2
million (2020: Baht 3 million)).

Guarantees

(1) The Company has guaranteed bank credit facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to
Baht 3,833 million (2020: Baht 1,450 million).

(2) As at 31 December 2021, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately
Baht 0.3 million (2020: Baht 4 million) issued by banks on behalf of the Company to

guarantee contractual performance.
Other commitment

On 22 November 2019, a subsidiary company entered into a sales and marketing license
agreement with Intercontinental Hotel Group (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. The subsidiary
company is obligated to comply with the conditions stipulated in the agreement whereby it

shall pay 3% of revenue generated by sales of condominium units.
Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents,
short-term loans, cumulative and redeemable preference shares and long-term loans. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.
Credit risk

Credit risk primarily with respect to loans, deposits with banks and financial institutions and
other financial instruments. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying

amounts as stated in the statement of financial position.



Financial instruments and cash deposits (Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

The Group manages the credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions by 31 December 2020

making investments only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to

Floating Non-interest Effective
each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of interest rate bearing Total interest rate
Directors, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s (% per annum)
Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore Financial assets

" . . ; . . Cash and cash equivalent 152,821,403 8,713,699 161,535,102 0.03 t0 0.25
mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. ash and cash equivaients °
Other receivables - 219,787 219,787 -
Market risk Restricted bank deposits 191,416 - 191,416 0.251t0 0.75
, Other financial assets - 1,256,427 1,256,427 -
Interest rate risk

153,012,819 10,189,913 163,202,732
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits with banks, Financial liabilities
overdrafts, loans and borrowings. Most of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities bear Bank overdrafts 14,097,657 - 14,097,657 MOR
floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate. Trade and other payables - 43,615,595 43,615,595 -

Long-term loans 838,695,400 - 838,695,400 MLR-2.00 to
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by MLR-1.50
type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and Retention payable - 20,893,740 20,893,740 .
liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the 852,793,057 64,509,335 917,302,392
repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date. (Unit: Baht)
(Unit: Baht) Separate financial statements
Consolidated financial statements 31 December 2021
31 December 2021 Fixed interest Floating Non-interest Effective
Fixed interest rate Floating Non-interest Effective rate 1 - 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
Within 1 year 1-5years interest rate bearing Total interest rate (% per annum)
(% per Financial assets
annum) Cash and cash equivalents - 9,356,393 106,772 9,463,165 0.051t0 0.25
Financial assets Other receivables - - 30,607,562 30,607,562 -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 287,888,502 742,317 288,630,819  0.05t00.25 Short-term loans to related
Other receivables - - - 258,171 258,171 - parties - 462,065,400 ; 462,065,400 MLR - 0.50
Restricted bank deposits - - 191,890 - 191,890 0.25t0 0.75
Long-term loans to related
inanci - - - 1,315,615 1,315,615 . i
Other financial assets parties ; 100,000,000 ; 100,000,000  MLR - 0.50
- - 288,080,392 2,316,103 290,396,495 Restricted bank deposits - 191,890 - 191,890 0.2510 0.75
Financial liabilities
Other financial assets - - 1,198,005 1,198,005 -
Bank overdrafts - - 19,678,365 - 19,678,365 MOR
- 571,613,683 31,912,339 603,526,022
Trade and other payables - - - 673,889,814 673,889,814 -
Long-term loans - 2,900,000 1,357,946,144 - 1,360,846,144 2 and MLR-2.00 Financial liabilities
to MLR-1.50 Bank overdrafts - 14,725,197 - 14,725,197 MOR
Cumulative and redeemable 611,404,406 - - - 611,404,406 8.14 Trade and other payables - - 8,173,360 8,173,360 -
preference shares Long-term loan 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 2
Retention payable - - - 45,031,488 45,031,488 - Retention payable - - 14,023,745 14,023,745 -
611,404,406 2,900,000 1,377,624,509 718,921,302 2,710,850,217 2,900,000 14,725,197 22,197,105 39,822,302




(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Floating Non-interest Effective

interest rate bearing Total interest rate

(% per annum)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 47,811,062 129,380 47,940,442 0.03t0 0.25

Other receivables - 62,964,552 62,964,552 -

Short-term loans to related parties 16,967,000 - 16,967,000 MLR - 0.50

Long-term loans to related parties 641,500,000 - 641,500,000 MLR - 0.50

Restricted bank deposits 191,416 - 191,416 0.25t00.75

Other financial assets - 1,198,818 1,198,818 -
706,469,478 64,292,750 770,762,228

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts 14,097,657 - 14,097,657 MOR

Trade and other payables - 9,628,442 9,628,442 -

Retention payable - 15,368,381 15,368,381 -
14,097,657 24,996,823 39,094,480

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss before tax to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of overdrafts and long-term
loans affected as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020

Effect to loss before Effect to loss before

Increase tax (increase) Increase tax (increase)
Currency (decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
(%) (Baht) (%) (Baht)
Baht 0.5 (6,888,123) 0.5 (4,263,965)
(0.5) 6,888,123 (0.5) 4,263,965

Liquidity risk

The Group need liquidity to meet its obligations and is responsible for its own cash
balances and the raising of internal and external credit lines to cover the liquidity needs.
The Group monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity position by recurring liquidity planning

an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent, unused committed and uncommitted credit

lines with various banks to meet its liquidity requirements.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Non-derivatives

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Cumulative and redeemable preference

shares

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

Non-derivatives

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Long-term loans

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

Non-derivatives

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Long-term loan

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2021
On demand Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
19,678,365 - - 19,678,365
- 673,889,814 - 673,889,814
- 6,214,520 3,343,727 9,558,247
- 152,318,454 1,309,627,708 1,461,946,162
- 645,000,000 - 645,000,000
- 25,918,359 19,113,129 45,031,488
19,678,365 1,503,341,147 1,332,084,564 2,855,104,076
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2020
On demand Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
14,097,657 - - 14,097,657
- 47,421,390 - 47,421,390
- 7,696,986 6,398,072 14,095,058
- 127,467,776 774,162,432 901,630,208
- - 20,893,740 20,893,740
14,097,657 182,586,152 801,454,244 998,138,053
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
31 December 2021
On demand Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
14,725,197 - - 14,725,197
- 8,173,360 - 8,173,360
- 2,356,584 512,100 2,868,684
- 1,993,842 983,809 2,977,651
- 14,023,745 - 14,023,745
14,725,197 26,547,531 1,495,909 42,768,637




32.2

33.

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

On demand Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Bank overdraft 14,097,657 - - 14,097,657
Trade and other payables - 9,628,442 - 9,628,442
Lease liabilities - 3,496,986 3,248,072 6,745,058
Retention payable - - 15,368,381 15,368,381
Total non-derivatives 14,097,657 13,125,428 18,616,453 45,839,538

Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Group’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying
interest at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be

materially different from the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it has
appropriate capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital position with reference to its net debt-to-equity ratio in order
to comply with a condition in loan agreement, which requires the Group to maintain the net
debt to equity ratio not exceeding 2:1 (2020: 2:1).

The Group’s net debt used to calculate the above financial ratio is the net value of interest
bearing liabilities minus with cash and/or cash equivalent in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s equity used to calculate the above financial ratio is the shareholders’ equity in
the consolidated financial statements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

34.

35.

Reclassifications

The Group has reclassified certain amounts in the financial statements to conform to the

current year’s classification. The reclassifications are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2020

As previously

reported Reclassified As reclassified
Other current financial assets 2,646,694 (2,646,694) -
Other current assets 182,111,595 2,646,694 184,758,289
(Unit: Baht)

Separate statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2020

As previously

reported Reclassified As reclassified
Other current financial assets 2,646,694 (2,646,694) -
Other current assets 6,990,771 2,646,694 9,637,465

The reclassifications had no effect to previously reported profit (loss) or shareholders’ equity.
Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 23 February 2022.
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Attachment 1 Board of Directors and Management

Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut(Agem

Date of Appointment: 13 May 2019

Positions: Chairman, Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Shareholding proportion: Director None
Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
Minor None

Familyrelationship with otherdirectors, executive None

Education

o0 Master of Public Administration Program in Public Administration, Chulalongkorn
University

o 2nd Hons in Bachelor of Laws, Chulalongkorn University

Training
o Training Course for DAP Directors, Class 104/2013
o Training course for senior judicial process administrators, class 15/2011 - 2012
o Training Course, National Defense College of Thailand, Class 45/ 2002 - 2003
o Training Course for Senior Administrators, Class 36

o Training Course for Senior Land Administrators, Class 7

WorkExperience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Independent Directorand Rojana Industrial Park Public Company
2012 = Present
Chairman of the Audit Committee | Limited
Positionin Other Non-Litsted Company
2019 - Present | Qualified CommitteeonlLand Ministry of Finance
2015 - Present | Council of State Office of the Council of State
2014 - Present | Member The National Legislative Assembly
2012 - Present | Executive Vice President Charoen Pokphand Group
2018 - 2022 | nssumsgnsvAtudidunakuie | o.n.w.dunviudaans:nsovukialng
NSSUNISWNSVATUICIAIUNISUS
2022 = Present _ a.n.w.ns:nsa\)umoTneJ
KaslHa=NIsvanNIs
Work Experience during 5 years
2014 - 2018 Chairman of the board JSP.Property Publiccompany Limited
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Mr.Verapong Chaiperm

(Age56)

Date of Appointment: 13 May 2019

Position: Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive Committee

Shareholding proportion: Director None
Spouse/livedtogetheras spouse None
Minor None
Family relationship with other directors, executive None
Education

o PhD.Eng. In Environmental Engineering (Water and Wastewater Engineering)
Asian Institute of Technology (AIT)

o M.S. in Civil Engineering (Environmental Engineering), University of Missouri-
Rolla, U.S.A.

o B.Eng. (Civil Engineering), Chulalongkorn University

Training
o Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 163/2019

o Top Executive in Industrial Development and Investment, class 1, Institute of
Business and Industrial Development (IBID)

o Certificate, Executive Program on Energy Literacy for a Sustainble Future (TEA),

Class 3, Thailand Energy Academy
o Executive Program, Poompalungpadin Program (Batch 1)

o Director Certification program, Thai Institute of Directors 161/2012

o Advanced Certificate course in Politics and Governance in Democratic Systems for
Executives Class 15, The College of Politics and Governance, King Prajadhipok's

o Advanced Senior Executive Program, Northwestern University (USA)

o Management Development Program, Sasin Graduate Institute of Business
Administration of Chulalongkorn University

PROUD

WorkExperience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

2564

- Present

Independent Directorand

Member of the Audit Committee

Star Petroleum Refining Public

Company Limited

2562

Position

- Present

Independent Directorand
Member of the Audit Committee

in Other Non-Litsted Company

Chief ExpertinTargeted

Industrialand Commercial Bank of
China (Thai) PublicCompany Limited

Industries Eastern Economic Corridor

2561 - | Present )
Industries (EEC) Office
Work Experience during 5 years
Eastern Economic Corridor
2560 = 2561 | Directorand Assistant Secretary )
Development Executive Board
2555 - 2561 | Governor Industrial Estate Authority of Thailand

PROUD
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Mr. Pasu Llptapanlop(Age35)

dDate of Appointment: 13 May 2019

Position: Director, Executive Director and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Shareholding proportion: Director 226,046,445 shares (35.24%)
Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
None

Minor

Family relationship with other directors, executive Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop’s brother

Education
o MSc in Real Estate Investment, Cass Business School, United Kingdom

o BA Business Management (Finance), Second Class Honors, University of
Westminster, United Kingdom

Training

o Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 138/2017, Thai Institute of Directors

Work Experience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

2015 = Present | Executive Director Elite Securities Company Limted
Positionin Other Non-Litsted Company
2015 - Present | Director HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd.,
2019 - Present | Director Hua Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd
Origin Property Public Compan
2017 = 2019 Director J Perts pany
Limited.
Robowealth Mutual Fund Brokerage
2016 - Present | Director & Co-Founder
Securities Co., Ltd.
2016 = Present | Director Whitewater west SEA Ltd.
2015 = Present | Director VANA NAVA Co., Ltd.
2015 - Present | Director Proud Group Holding Co., Ltd.
2015 - Present | Director Proud Hospitality Co., Ltd.
2015 - Present | Director Proud Resort Hua Hin Co., Ltd.
Work Experience during 5 years
The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
2558 . 2561 | VicePresident FICCSales )
(Singapore & Hong Kong)
Standard Chartered BankPIc,
2556 = 2558 | Director Financial Market Sales )
Singapore




Ms.Proudputh Liptapanlop e
Date of Appointment: 13 May 2019
Position: Director and Executive Director

Shareholding proportion: Director 226,046,444 shares (35.24%)

Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None

Minor None
Familyrelationship with other directors, executive Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop’s sister
Education

o London Business School, United Kingdom - MSc (Distinction) in Management

o University of Oxford, United Kingdom - BA (Hons) in Economics and Management

Training

o Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 138/2017, Thai Institute of Directors

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

-None-
Position in Other Non-Litsted Company
2019 - Present | Director HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd.,
2019 - Present | Director Hua Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd
2016 - Present | Director Whitewater west SEA Ltd.
2013 - Present | Director VANA NAVA Co., Ltd.
2012 - Present | Director Proud Group Holding Co., Ltd.
2012 = Present | Director Proud Hospitality Co., Ltd.
2012 - Present | Director Proud Resort Hua Hin Co., Ltd.
2012 - Present | Director Hua Hin Asset Co., Ltd.
Work Experience during 5 years
-None-




MrAnucha Sihanatkathakul

(Age62)

Date of Appointment: 2015

Position: Director and Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Shareholding proportion: Director None
Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
Minor None

Familyrelationship with otherdirectors, executive None

Education
o M.B.A (Finance), University of Houston, Texas, U.S.A.

o B.A. (Accounting & Management), Houston Baptist University, Texas, U.S.A.

Training
o (Fellow Member), Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 2/2001
o Directors Certification Program (DCP), Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) 4/2000
o Director Compensation 2003
o Non-Executive Director 2004
o Board Failure and How to Fix it 2004
o CEO Performance Evaluation 2004

o Raising the Awareness of Corporate Fraud in Thailand U 2005

Work Experience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Director and Chairman of the Audit
2007 Joyuu Amata Corporation Plc.
Committee
Positionin Other Non-Litsted Company
Present Director Moon Dance Bistro Co.,Ltd.
Present Director New Leaf Solutions Limited
Present Director Planet Blue Corporation Co.,Ltd.
ThaiChinese RayongIndustrial estate
2017 | - Present Director
development Co.,Ltd.
2016 | - Present Chairman Focus Wheig Corporation Limited
VanaNava Co.,Ltd.
2016 | - Present Director
Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong) 5 Co.,Ltd.
Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong) 4 Co.,Ltd.
2015 | - Present Director
Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong) 3 Co.,Ltd.
2013 | - Present Director Rai Arthit Co.,Ltd
2010 | - Present Chairman DatalnMotion Co.,Ltd.
AmataB. Grimm Power Co.,Ltd.
AmataB. Grimm Power 1 Co.,Ltd.
AmataB. Grimm Power 2 Co.,Ltd.
2010 | - Present Director
AmataB. Grimm Power 4 Co.,Ltd.
AmataB. Grimm Power 5 Co.,Ltd.
Amata Power (Rayong) Co.,Ltd.
Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong) 1 Co.,Ltd.
2010 | - Present Director
Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong) 2 Co.,Ltd.
2008 | - Present Vice Chaiman Amata Water Co.,Ltd.
Amata Asia Ltd.
2008 | - Present Director Amata Summit Reay Built Co.,Ltd.
888 Property Co.,Ltd.
2002 | - Present Director Focus Environmental Co.,Ltd.
1998 | - Present Director Capital Focus Co.,Ltd.
1989 | - Present Director Moon dance Development Co.,Ltd.
Work Experience during 5 years
Chairman of the Board and Executive
2003 | - 2019 Focus Developmentand Construction Pcl.
Chairman




Mr.Pumipat Sinacharoen

(Age52)

Date of Appointment: 13 May 2019

Position: Director, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Shareholding proportion: Director

3,222,900shares

Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
Minor None
Family relationship with other directors, executive None

Education

(©]

o

Training
O

o

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

MBA, Thunderbird School of Global Management, USA

BA in Economics, Thammasat University, Thailand

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 36/2005, Thai Institute of Directors
Company Secretary Program (CSP) 27/2008, Thai Institute of Directors
Leading in Disruptive World (Innovation), Stanford University, USA
Design Thinking, Stanford University

Strategic Board Master Class (SBM) 10/2020, Thai Institute of Directors

Work Experience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Fortune Parts Industry Public

Position

in Other Non-Litsted Company

2005 | - Present | Directorand Audit Committee o

Company Limited. (FPI)

KKang Yong Electric Public Company
2021 |- Present | Director

Limited
2018 | - Present | Director JSP.Property Publiccompany Limited

The Forest Industry Organization,

Officer (CFO) and Investor

Relations

2017 |- Present | Director Ministry of Natural Resources and
environment
2017 |- Present | Director Organization’s Alcohol
Work Experience during 5 years
2017 - 2020 | Executive VicePresident PTG Energy Public Company Limited
Chief People Officer and Director
of AP Academy/ Chief Finance ) ) o
2002 - 2017 AP (Thailand) Public Company Limited

PROUD
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Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul s

Date of Appointment: 13 May 2019

Position: Director, Audit Committee (Independent Director)

Shareholding proportion: Director None
Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
Minor None

Family relationship with other directors, executive None

Education
o Master of Science in Finance, Saint Louis University

o Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance, Chulalongkorn University

Training
o Academy of Business Creativity # 6/2517, Sri Pratum University
o Capital Market Leader Program # 25, Capital Market Academy

o The Executive Program in Energy Literacy for a Sustainable Future # 12, Thailand
Energy Academy

o The National Defence Course Class. # 63, National Defence College

o Senior Justice Administration Program # 24, Institute of Civil Service Development
for Judiciary Affairs, Office of the Courts of Justice

o Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 163, Thai Institute of Directors

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

WorkExperience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

2017

Present

MD & Head, Global Banking,
Thailand

I-Tail Corporation Public Company

Limited

2017

2015

Present

2017

MD & Head, Global Banking,
Thailand

Positionin Other Non-Litsted Company

-None-

Work Experience during 5 years

MD & Head, Financial Markets,
Thailand

Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) PCL

Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) PCL

2012

2015

MD & Head, Corporates, Thailand

Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) PCL

PROUD
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264

Mr.Dan Sornmanl(Agess)

Date of Appointment: 23 February 2021

Position: Director, Audit Committee (Independent Director)

Shareholding proportion: Director None
Spouse/lived togetheras spouse None
Minor None
Familyrelationship with other directors, executive None
Education

o Bachelor of Management science - International marketing, Canberra University

PROUD

Work Experience

Positionin Other Listed Company - The Stock Exchange of Thailand

2021

- Present

-None-

Positionin Other Non-Litsted Company

Managing Director

ADA Digital (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

2018

- Present

Work Experienceduring 5

Board member

years

Global Brand Lead

CREATIVEECONOMY AGENCY (CEA)

LINE Corporationand LINE Thailand

Director of Content Business

Line Thailand

First Executive Vice Presidenton

Businessinnovation

SIAMPIWAT COMPANY LIMITED

Chief Executive Officer

MullenLowe Thailand

Managing Director

FAREASTDDB (PIc)

CountryManager

WORLD GOLD COUNCIL

Group Account Director

BBDO Bangkok Co., Ltd.

IKey Account Sales Manager/

Brand Manager

SEAGRAM Thailand Co., Ltd.

PROUD
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Mr.Chuntorn

Position: Executive Vice President of Project Development Division (Team A)

Chuntratip T

Shareholding proportion: Management 100,000shares
Spouse/livedtogetheras spouse None
Minor None

Family relationship with other directors, executive None

Education
o Master of Business Administration, Kasetsart University

o Bacherlor Degree of Engineering, Kasetsart University

nnnnnnnnnnn

Work Experience

Executive Vice President of )
) L Proud Real Estate Public Company
2019 Present | Project DevelopmentDivision o
Limited
(TeamA)
2019 Present | Director HuaHin Alpha 71 Co.,Ltd
2019 Present | Director Hua Hin Sky Living Co.,Ltd
2017 2019 Managing Director Park Origin Co.,Ltd
Vice President —Project )
2013 2017 Proud Residence Co.,Ltd
Development
Assistant Vice President —Project )
2009 2013 Narai Property Co.,Ltd
Management
Vice President —Project
2002 2009 Plus Property Co.,Ltd
Development

nnnnnnnnnnn



Ms. Budsabong Pansawadi(Age36)

Position: Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting Division

Shareholding proportion: Management None
Spouse/livedtogetheras spouse None
Minor None
Family relationship with other directors, executive None

Certified Public Accountant

Education

o Bachelor of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University

Work Experience

Senior Vice President of Finance | Proud Real Estate Public Company
2021 - Present
and Accounting Division Limited
Proud Real Estate Public Company
2019 - 2020 | ChiefFinancial Officer
Limited
Deputy Managing Director of Seven Utilities and Power Public
2018 - 2019
Accountingand Finance Company
Vice President - Accounting Seven Utilities and Power Public
2017 - 2018
Department Company
Assistant Group Corporate Central Plaza Hotel Public Company
2014 - 2017
Controller Limited
2007 - 2014 | AuditManagerll PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

nnnnnnnnnnn

Paramawes

Ms. Natarin (Age48)

Position: Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing Division

Shareholding proportion: Management None
Spouse/livedtogetheras spouse None
Minor None
Family relationship with other directors, executive None

Education
o Master of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University

o Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University

Work Experience

Executive Vice President of Sales | Proud Real Estate Public Company
2021 = Present
and Marketing Division Limited
) Major Development Public Company
2018 - 2021 SVP-Customer Experience
Limited
) ) Ananda Development Public Company
2555 = 2561 Strategic CRM Director
Limited
Hutchison CAT Wireless Multimedia
2546 - 2555 Senior CRM Manager ol
o0.,Ltd.

nnnnnnnnnnn




Work Experience

Ms. Anotai

Worasunthararom

(Age 40)

Position: Senior Vice President of Business Development and Strategy Division

Shareholding proportion: Management

Family relationship with other directors, executive

Spouse/livedtogetheras spouse

Minor

Education

o Master of Science, Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University

None

None

None

None

o Bachelor of Engineering, Faculty of Engineering, Kasetsart University

SVP of Business and strategy

Proud Real Estate Public Company

2021 - Present
Division Limited
SVP of Business and strategy Proud Real Estate Public Company
2019 - 2020 o
Department Limited
Vice President of Business Fragrant Property Public Company
2016 - 2019
Development Group Limited
Senior Manager (Business )
Pruksa Real Estate Public Company
2012 - 2016 Developmentand Product
Limited
Development-Condo BU)
) ) KK.P.K.Quantity Surveyors (Thailand)
2007 = 2011 Executive Cost Engineer
Co.,Ltd
2003 - 2007 Senior Office Engineer D.K.J.Construction Co.,Ltd

nnnnnnnnnnn

nnnnnnnnnnn
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Subsidiaries
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1.Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut X
Attachment 2 Information of Subsidiaries’ Directors
2.Mr.Verapong Chaiperm Y
3.Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Y
4.Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Y
5.Mr.Anucha Sihanatkathakul v
6.Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul v
7.Mr.Dan Sornmani v
8.Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Y
9. Mr.Chuntorn Chuntratip v v v v
Note

1.V =Director X =Chairman oftheBoard of Directors v v =Executive Director




Attachment 3 : Details of Head of Internal Audit Head of Compliance Department
and Head of Compliance Department Name-surname

Head of Internal Audit Ms.Nittaya Maetineewattanavong

Position

The Company uses outsource service from P&L Internal Audit Company Limited as an
pany pany Lawyer and Company Secretary

internal auditor. The head of the internal audit team’s qualifications, education, and work
experience, are as follows: Education

& Master of Laws (Business Law), Thammasat University
Name-surname

Mr.Thanabhat Wongwit ¢ Bachelor of Laws, Thammasat University
Position Roles and Responsibilities of Company Secretary
Assistant Vice President 1. Organize the meeting of the Board of Directors in accordance with the Company’s
regulations

Family relationship with other directors, executive
— None — 2. Inform relevant executive directors about resolutions and policies of the Board of
Directors so they acknowledge them and perform accordingly.

Shareholding proportion (%)
3. Give initial advice and recommendations to the Board of Directors on issues regarding

— None — the law, regulations of the Company’s articles of association and always practice good
governance. Follow up on implementation and ensure people are following through
Education correctly and with continuity. This includes a report on significant changes to the

Board of Directors.

Bachelor of Accounting (B.A.A.) Dhurakij Pundit University
4. Record the Board of Directors meeting and follow up on the implementation in

Work Experience accordance with the resolutions of the meeting of the Board of Directors.
Internal Audit P&L Internal Audit Company Limited (2009 — Present) 5. Prepare and keep the following important documents:
Diploma 5.1. Registration of the Company’s Directors

Certified Professional Internal Audit of Thailand : CPIATH#21 5.2.  Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors

5.3. Minutes of the Shareholder’s Meeting
5.4. Company’s Annual Report
5.5. Stakeholder’s Report relating to the directors and executive directors

6. Supervise the activities of the Board of Directors and carry out other matters as
provided by law or assigned by the Board of Directors.

Remarlk: Ms.Nittaya Maetineewattanavong has been appointed as the Company Secretary effectiveon 8
November 2022 onwards. (She passed the Company Secretary Program (CSP) from the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D) Class 70/2016.)

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



Main Assets for Business Operations

The Companyand its subsidiaries’ main assets for business operations are as follow:

1. Cost of Property Development

Cost of property development are land and constructions for sales in various projects
which has book value in consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 is baht

3,344.65million.Thesubsidiaries have mortgagedthelandandbuildingsamountingto 2,623.39

million baht with banks as collateral for loans from banks. The detail as per the following details:

Unit: Million Baht
Description
Total

Land 2,625.03
Construction cost 625.15
Financial costs 94.47

Total 3,344.65

ATTACHMENT 4 REVIEW OF BUSINESS ASSETS

Asat31December2021, theCompanyanditssubsidiaries have property development

costsonbook basisin projects for sale as follows:

Bookvalue (Net)

Project Name at31Dec’21 Obligation
(Million Baht)

1 Focus Ploenchit 3.78 None

2 | InterContinental Residences Hua Hin 1,800.44 | Mortgageas

3 VEHHA 23566 collateral for
loans from

4 Future projects 1,304.77 financial
institutions

Total 3,344.65




2. Building and Equipment

As at 31 December 2021, The Company and its subsidiaries have building and

equipment for business operations as follow:

Details ‘ CostPrice ‘ Accumulated BookValue Obligation
Furnitures and office equipment 14.52 5.36 9.16 None
Vehicles 0.83 0.16 0.67 None
Total 15.35 5.52 9.83

3. Right-of-useassets

As at 31 December 2021, The Company and its subsidiaries have right-of-use assets NS

for business operations as follow:

Details Cost Price Accumulated BookValue Obligation
Buildings 20.12 10.11 10.01 None
Vehicles 2.45 1.35 1.10 None

Total 22.57 11.46 11.11
4, Intangible Assets

Asat31December2021, TheCompanyanditssubsidiaries’intangible assets for business
operations are software which has book value in consolidated financial statements Baht 4.60

million.

Investment Policy in Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

Thecompany hasapolicytoinvestinreal estate development business orifthereisany
interesting businesswithgoodreturns. Thecompanymayconsiderinvestingbyinvestingmust
be considered and approved by the Board of Directors. The subsidiary management policyisto
invest in holding shares in the long term by sending directors who are representatives of the
company to join the management in the subsidiary in proportion to the company's
shareholding. To setimportant policies and control the business operations of the subsidiaries

tobeintherightdirectionand to create profits for the company.

Asfortheinvestmentinsubsidiariesasof December31,2021,itis25.96% of totalassets
in the Company's financial statements. In the future, the Company will invest in other
businessesin additiontothe existing ones based on therisksthat may arise.aswellashavinga

good return forthe company.

DETAILS OF PROPERTY APPRAISALS

-None-
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Attachment 6 :Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of 3 members who are independent directors and exercise
duties with independence, knowledge, abilities, and experiences in auditing financial reports,
internal control systems, and relevant reviews. They also possess business knowledge and
insights,and qualitiesas specifiedinthe Notification of the Capital Market SupervisoryBoardand
the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Re: Qualifications and Scope of Work of the
Audit Committee B.E. 2558 (A.D. 2015).The Audit Committee’s compositionis as follows:

1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut Chairman of the Audit Committee
Audit Committee

2. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul

3. Mr. Dan Sornmani Audit Committee

In 2021, there were 5 Audit Committee meetings. The following are details of meeting

attendance of each Audit Committee member:
1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut Attended 5 meetings

2. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul Attended 5 meetings

3. Mr. Dan Sornmani Attended 4 meetings

(The Board of Directors at the meetingNo. 1/2021, dated February 22,2021, resolved to appoint Mr. Dan Sornmani

asthe Company'sdirector and member of the Audit Committee, effective from February 23,2021 onwards.)

The material duties of the Audit Committee can be summarized as followed:

1. Review of Quarterly and Annually Financial Statements

The Audit Committeereviewed accuracy of quarterlyand annually financial statements
and disclosures in the notes to the financial statements as audited by the auditor. The Audit
Committee inquired the auditor for opinion to ensure that the financial statements were
materially accurate and complete in accordance with accounting standards and can be

disclosedtothe publicorrelated parties.

2. Review of Internal Control System

The Audit Committee placed importance on the principles of good corporate
governance, risk management, and internal control by promoting a corporate culture with a
focus on a good internal control. The Committee also reviewed the Internal Audit Office’s
assessment results of the internal control system efficiency and effectiveness for the
group-wide work processes based on international standards on a quarterly basis. The

Committee provided

additional recommendations to enhance the Company’s operational efficiency and

effectiveness.

Furthermore, the Committee consistently monitored the management to ensure that

corrective

actions were undertaken as recommended and consistent improvements were made to

ensurethattheoperationswereinlineandappropriatewiththecurrentbusinesscircumstance.

3. Review of Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Others Requirements Relevant to
the Business

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with laws relating to the
business operations, the Securities and Exchange (SEC) Act, and the Stock Exchange of

Thailand (SET)’s requirements.
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4. Supervision of the internal audit .

The Audit Committee considered the annual risk based internal audit plan and scope of
audit, taking into consideration the existing controls implemented internally, past audit results,
corporateriskassessmentresults,andmanagementinterviewstoidentifyanyneedsorconcerns
by providing recommendations and following up on remedial action on significant issues to

achieve good governance and adequateinternal control.

5. Review of related party transactions or transactions that may have conflicts of interest

The Audit Committeereviewedanumberofrelated partytransactionsacrossthe Groupto
ensurethatthetransactions metthe SET’sandthe SEC’'s requirements based onjustificationand
the Company’s ultimate interest, and were approved by those free of a conflict of interest. The
Company’s policies regarding a conflict of interest and management of subsidiaries’ operations

wereinplace.

6. Review the performance of the auditors, selection and proposal for appointment of
the Company’s external auditors

The Audit Committee considered the requirements for hiring auditors to select and
nominate the auditorsfor2022.Insodoing, the Committee reviewed the auditors’ qualifications
andfoundthemtobe correctand complete. Thus, the Committee resolved to propose the matter
to the Board of Directors for consideration and endorsement before further submission thereof

tothe 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval.

Based ondue consideration of the nature of non audit services performed by the auditors
hired by the internal functions of the Company and its subsidiaries, the Committee opined that
such services did not affect the auditors’ independence in auditing the Company’s financial

reports.

7. Self-Assessment and Review of Audit Committee’s Charter and Manual

The Audit Committee conducted an annual performance assessment by using a
self-assessment formaccording to the principles of good corporate governanceto ensure that
they performed duties completely as assigned and in line with the SET’s best practice, and
reportedtheresultstothe Board of Directorsfor consideration. The self-assessmentratingwas
“very good.” The Committee reviewed and revised its Charter and Manual to keep up with the

changingsituationand presented the matterto the Board of Directors’ meeting forapproval.

In conclusion, the Audit Committee performed its duties in full compliance with the
Charter’srequirements asapproved by the Board of Directorsandinlinewiththe SEC’sand the
SET’s requirements. The Committee agreed with the auditors that the Company’s financial
reports were presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with Thailand’s generally
accepted accounting standards; and that the Company provided appropriate and effective
internal controls and audits while strictly complying with applicable laws, rules, regulations,
anddirectives. Throughout 2021, there were no material problems or weaknesses foundinthe
operations. In addition, the Company constantly improved its operations to ensure alignment

and appropriateness with the current business environment.

Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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